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DEFINITIONS

E

In this annual report, the following expressions shall have the RARERRK - B EBHFREIN - THFZELEA
following meanings unless the context requires otherwise: AR -

"Articles of Association”

[Ei24n8)

“Audit Committee”

EzE3 1

"Board”
E54

“Board Diversity Policy”

E=S-EPvidied

“CG Code”
[fEEE<FAll

“Chairman”

ESE

"Chief Executive Officer”

[1TE#

“Co-Chairman”

K-S

“Companies Ordinance”

NGRS

“Company”

RAVNCIN

"Company Secretary”

[REIME]

“connected person(s)”

[BAEAL]

“COVID-19"
[COVID-19]

the articles of association of the Company
Vi NN o - e =il

the audit committee of the Board
EEER T EREES

the board of Directors

B%g

the board diversity policy of the Company adopted in August 2013 and
revised in March 2019 and December 2022
RRARRZZE—=F N NARBER _E-—NF=AR T __F+ZA&7]
ZERGZ LR

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 of the Listing
Rules

ERAIMERC1 PR R E AT R

the chairman of the Board

EEGCER

the chief executive officer of the Company

RRBZITHHEE

the co-chairman of the Board

EFEQUBFEER

Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BAENE622F R AEH

CWT International Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange

CWT International Limited * —fEREAZMK L2 BRAR - HRMNEER
FrER =

the company secretary of the Company

RRBZARME

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EMRRIFTE T 2 HE

the 2019 Novel Coronavirus
2019 BV AR TR B

2
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“CWT SG”
[CWT SGJ

"CWT SG Group”
[CWT SGEE

"Director(s)”

=

“Directors’ Nomination Policy”

[EERAWEK]

“Dividend Policy”
(A BB

"ED&F"

[ED&F]

"Executive Committee”

[HITRES)

"Executive Director(s)”

[FITESR]

“Group”
[ARE&E]

“HNA Group”
[

“HNA Trust Management”
[EMEE]

“Hong Kong"/"HKSAR"
[BEL/TEERE]

“Hong Kong HNA"
[& 58]

DEFINITIONS
BE

CWT Pte. Limited, a company incorporated in the Republic of Singapore and
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

CWT Pte. Limited » M#ETIFHAMBEEMAIZA AR - RAQF ZEEREZEM
JESWNC]

CWT SG and its subsidiaries
CWT SGK EME 7]

the director(s) of the Company

ARREF

the directors’ nomination policy of the Company adopted in March 2019 and
revised in December 2022

ARBIRZE—NFZARMER - E - F+ - ABIT2ESREBUR

the dividend policy of the Company adopted in March 2019
KRRRZE—NF= ARMN 2R BEBUR

the litigation initiated by ED&F Man Capital Markets Limited to Straits
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (an indirect subsidiary of the Company) as mentioned in
the Company’s announcements dated 11 August 2023

ED&F Man Capital Markets Limited[A]Straits (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.(Zx 2 5] #9 &
EMBARREHOFDR  FRHERARABHAR T _=F \A+—A8R

H
=

the executive committee of the Board
EEEBE T ITEZES

the executive Director(s)

HITES

the Company and its subsidiaries

RRABREKE AT

HNA Group Co., Ltd.*, an indirect substantial Shareholder
BMEEBRAR - —BEEFERR

Hainan HNA No. 2 Trust Management Service Co., Ltd.*, an indirect
controlling Shareholder

BEEM _REERBERAR - —REEERRR

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
BB AR RIfTHE

Hong Kong HNA Holding Group Co. Limited, a direct controlling Shareholder
BEREMEXSEERAR - —REEZERRE
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DEFINITIONS
=

“Independent Investigation
Committee”

(B RHELZES

“Independent Non-
executive Director(s)”

(B IEMITES]

"Investment Committee”
(RELZES

“Listing Rules”

[ Em#R Al
"Model Code”
[1ZZ4E<r Al

“Nomination Committee”
[RRZEE

“Non-executive Director(s)”

[BEAITEE]

“PRC"/"Mainland China”

[T B it

“Promissory Note”

[ RIR]

“Remuneration Committee”

EdLES -4

“Restructuring Plan”

the independent investigation committee of the Board
EFeBET2BUAESEES

the independent non-executive Director(s)
BUERITES

the investment committee of the Board
EEgRE T REZES

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

Bz prag s E AR Al

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules
FRAIMSRCIFE LM EITAETETESF RS 2R

the nomination committee of the Board

EEeE T ZRE%Ee

the non-executive Director(s)

SEHTEE

the People's Republic of China, which for the purposes of this annual
report (unless otherwise stated), excludes Hong Kong, the Macao Special
Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan

hEARKEMBE - ptARFERM S (REBHEN) - TREEE - BRI
ATEH R &k aE

the promissory note dated 18 February 2022 entered into between the
Company and an affiliate of the HNA Group Bankruptcy Reorganisation
Specialised Service Trust. On and with effect from 18 February 2022, the
original affiliate assigned to another affiliate of the HNA Group Bankruptcy
Reorganisation Specialised Service Trust all of its rights and obligations in
the Promissory Note and its right to collect and be paid all principal, interest
and other sums due under or in respect of the Promissory Note pursuant to
a deed of assignment dated 18 February 2022 entered into between these
affiliates
AAREGMEERESRRERBEEENEBARMIVEHA-ZT
F_ATNBZARER R_ZE__F_A+/\BLkBEZBAE  R@BL
AEEMEENESEREEREEEMIVERA S -_A+/\BN
HRIZE M —REBRATERERNALEBCBEMNRETUREI
MEBEXNERZBRETRARALEBZMELRS « M B REMKIE L&
A

the remuneration committee of the Board
EEeBE T HFNEES

Reorganisation Plan of the Substantive Merger and Reorganisation for 321
Companies of HNA Group
CBMEES-—E -+ —HAREEAHEERREEE)

4
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“SFO”

(&5 & a5

“Share(s)”
[H% 17 ]

"Shareholder(s)”
(A% 5]

“Shareholders’ Communication Policy”

[ A% B AR
"Stock Exchange”
[H5e 22 FFr

“subsidiary(ies)”

=Gl

“Euro"/"EUR"
(BT

“GBP”
ES

“HK$"
[

"gg"
(#7037t

"USs$”
E

nop
(%]

*  For identification purpose only

DEFINITIONS
BE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)
BBENESNEE KRR

the ordinary share(s) of the Company

RRAZEBB

the holder(s) of the Shares
[SEHEST DN

the shareholders’ communication policy of the Company adopted in March
2012 and revised in December 2022 and January 2023 respectively

RRAFRR ZE——F=AKMUE DR BT _—_F+_AR_ZE_=F—A
CHPAESEEEE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEBAMERHFABRAF

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BA FmR R Tz 2 B E

HNA Group Bankruptcy Reorganisation Specialised Service Trust*, which
holds 100% of shares of HNA Trust Management
BMEEREEBRIERRBET - EFEAEMEE100% 2 IkiE

Arab Emirates Dirham, the official currency of the United Arab Emirates
PR RS & REEN N - WA AHE KABUEAE B

Euro, the lawful currency of the European Union
BRT - BOMESE B ETE B

British pound sterling, the lawful currency of the United Kingdom
HEE - REDEEEY

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

B BEEEEY

Singapore dollars, the lawful currency of the Republic of Singapore
RO TT - RTANYE AN EDE E B

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America
E 0 ZNREaRBUEEES

per cent or percentage

AL

* EHES
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
N AEER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Wang Kan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Zhao Quan

Peng Biao

Xu Xu

Independent Non-executive Directors
Leung Shun Sang, Tony

Liem Chi Kit, Kevin

Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey

Liu Yifei

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Liem Chi Kit, Kevin (Chairman)
Leung Shun Sang, Tony
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Wang Kan (Chairman)
Peng Biao
Xu Xu

INDEPENDENT INVESTIGATION COMMITTEE

Liem Chi Kit, Kevin (Chairman)
Leung Shun Sang, Tony
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Wang Kan (Chairman)
Leung Shun Sang, Tony
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Liem Chi Kit, Kevin (Chairman)
Wang Kan

Leung Shun Sang, Tony

Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey

BT

HITES
ER(ERERITEAR)
i

7

(G5

BYFHITES
R4
RS
NES 2

EllEs

BEREEY
WFEE(ERE)
2B 4

WiEeg

HITEES
TR(ERE)
B2

R

BUAEZEES
S RCIETD)

RIE4E

Hhi2ss

REZE®
TR(EE)
a4

RF

N EES

FMEES
WFEE(FE)
BRI

28 &=

M §%
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Lau Lap Ngai

AUDITOR

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Council Ordinance

LEGAL ADVISERS AS TO HONG KONG LAW

Jingtian & Gongcheng LLP
K&L Gates

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Limited
Suite 1601, 16/F., Central Tower

28 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Suites 1101-3 & 12, 11th Floor, Tower 2
The Gateway, Harbour City

Kowloon

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
521

WEBSITE

www.cwtinternational.com

CORPORATE INFORMATION

DNEER
NRIWE
2137 3%
BT

RBEBEHMEBAERAR
KA BERBHERD) TEOEMARF @ E R
T2 ELEm

BREBEENEEER
BRANANEBHERERRALEY
B R R T F A

RODBFELRE

Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Limited
B

ERREH 285

FEAE16/21601=

=R
e
BADH
BB AE
ZEEEN01-3 & 12%F

R A7 IR

521

43t

www.cwtinternational.com
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
ESEN

Mr. Wang Kan (“Mr. Wang"), aged 39, holds a bachelor's degree
in German from Shanghai International Studies University and a
master’s degree in interpreting and translating from the University
of Bath in United Kingdom (“UK"). He is also a certified public
accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and an associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. Mr. Wang was appointed as an Executive
Director, Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer in February
2022. He is the chairman of each of the Executive Committee and
the Nomination Committee, and a member of the Remuneration
Committee, and also acts as directors of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company.

Mr. Wang joined Yangtze River Air Cargo Holdings Limited* (15
FIMEEEZERERAF]), a company under HNA Group, a
substantial Shareholder pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, in 2017
and has served several senior positions for its certain companies.
Mr. Wang is currently a director of HY Energy Group Co., Ltd. (an
A-Share listed company on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, Stock
Code: 600387) and Tuniu Corporation (a listed company on the
NASDAQ, Stock Code: TOUR).

Before joining HNA Group, Mr. Wang served as the deputy
manager of the banking and capital markets department of Deloitte
LLP UK, the chief investment officer of Hung To Capital Limited
and director of overseas investment and operations of Qingdao
Haier Co., Ltd. Mr. Wang has extensive management knowledge
and working experience in the fields of investment and financing,
financial markets, financial accounting and compliance.

A service agreement was entered into between Mr. Wang and
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2023.

ERAEE(TEERED  F=Z+Npr - #F6 LEN
BaAEEEEEs e R AR ((HEDEH
KERBEZELTEMN - HNAEEeHMAe
et RELEB LT et
fle:ztil EThRERN - —F - AEZTAH
TEE  IERTHREH - FANTZES IR
ZEEeRaNTIE  URFHEESHKE
MEAARRZEMNBRAGTINES -

FTEER - E—LFNABFIMEEERRA
RARCEMER (RRIERF MIERDIEXVED
ZEERRET 2 —HRAR) » H&GEREEM
SEETETRARZSRRE - TREREEDSE
BatREERNDABRAR(LEEBFIHMARK -
&S 600387) kB REF R AR AR (G
BINASDAQE#R Z ISR » lREMRHE : TOUR)
SRR -

RIAEMEBZA - TAECETRRZEYSS
SN E R ATIR 1T B AT 5 EEEIAIE « Hung To
Capital Limited 5 R IRE B R ESHBRMHERA
BEIME BB BAE c TAEEREME - &8
W Mg kAR ARELENEE M
K TEAEES o

FTREERRBRE—DRA=ZF2RHKEAL
R T =F—-HF ALK

8
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Mr. Zhao Quan (“Mr. Zhao"), aged 53, holds a bachelor’s
degree of science in computer science software management
from Lanzhou University. Mr. Zhao was appointed as an
Executive Director and the Chairman of the Board in July 2015,
was re-designated as the Co-Chairman in November 2016, and
subsequently stepped down as the Co-Chairman in December
2017 but remains as an Executive Director. He once acted as
directors of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhao
joined HNA Group, a substantial Shareholder pursuant to Part XV
of the SFO, in 2009, and was engaged with senior management
positions. He is now a director and chairman of the board of
HNA Trust Management, a substantial Shareholder pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Zhao has nearly 30 years of working and
management experience in the areas of airlines, finance, airport
investment and operation etc., and has extensive knowledge and
working experience in corporate management.

A service agreement was entered into between Mr. Zhao and
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2023.

Mr. Peng Biao ("Mr. Peng”), aged 42, holds a bachelor’'s degree
in English from Sichuan International Studies University and a
master's degree in communications from Peking University. Mr.
Peng was appointed as an Executive Director in May 2021, and
is a member of the Executive Committee. Mr. Peng joined HNA
Group, a substantial shareholder pursuant to Part XV of the SFO,
in 2007 and has served a number of senior positions for its certain
companies. Mr. Peng has extensive management knowledge
and working experience in investment, communications, public
relations and branding.

An engagement letter was entered into between Mr. Peng and
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2023.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
EEBN

HEEE(BEAEE]D Fht=R FEHMK
B ERMBRAHERTHEXESL BN -
BEER - T-hAFLARZEIRNTESHRE
FEEF IR _F-R"E+-RABEIABEE
FBoHEBRR_ZT—tHF+-_AREHETIRF B
RENTEZT B - REETARAZHMBA
AINEE - BEER _ZZNFNMASMERSF
RAR(BBREBEEFLAEEMEXVIBZ EEK

R) BEIZEASHEERD BRASMEE
(BIRBEEZMMEERMIEXVBZTEZRR)ES
CEFLEFR -HBELEENT 2R BER
BRELZFEZHREREROI=TFORERERE
KE BAESENEREENESN TEER -

HEAELEARBRIE—DRB=F2RHEAL
R T =F—-HF ALK

ERAE(ZEE])  FHU+Z5 - FEDIII
BlREABHREEL Rt R ABEESBET 2N -
ERERZE—FHAEZAANITESE W

BHTZEENKE - ZXENRZETLFMA

BMEE(BREZSHFRAEGKAEXVE 22

BER)EEERIETETRARZEARE - Zh4E

FE - B AERNESEFAEEE S

BB A& TR -

”%$@$ﬁﬂﬂﬁ—WE%:¢Z§%%'E
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DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES
ESEHMT

Mr. Xu Xu (“Mr. Xu"), aged 39, holds a master's degree in hotel
and tourism management from Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Mr. Xu was appointed as an Executive Director in August 2023,
and is a member of the Executive Committee. Mr. Xu joined Deer
Air Co., Ltd.* (&M Z=HERAF]) (now known as Beijing Capital
Airlines Co., Ltd.* it)?\%%ﬁfm EBE ) under HNA Group, a
substantial shareholder of the Company pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO, in 2007 and has served several senior positions for its certain
companies. Mr. Xu is currently the head of board of directors’
office of HNA Trust Management, which is also a substantial
shareholder of the Company pursuant to Part XV of the SFO. Mr.
Xu has extensive management knowledge and working experience
in the fields of administration and human resources.

An engagement letter was entered into between Mr. Xu and
the Company for a term commencing from 7 August 2023 to 31
December 2025.

Mr. Leung Shun Sang, Tony (“Mr. Leung”), aged 81, holds a
bachelor's degree of commerce from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong and a master’s degree in business administration
from New York State University. Mr. Leung was appointed as
a Non-executive Director in April 1993 and was re-designated
to an Independent Non-executive Director in November 2018.
He is a member of each of the Audit Committee, Independent
Investigation Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. Mr. Leung had worked in Citibank
N.A. and W.I. Carr Sons & Co. (Overseas) in his early years and
was the managing director of CEF Group. He has over 40 years
of experience in securities and banking business, investment,
financial markets, corporate strategy and corporate management.

An engagement letter was entered into between Mr. Leung and
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2023.

BEERE(HREED  F=1tNLEm HFEEBE
TARBREERRPEERELTSM - REERZT

“ZHEN\ARZERMTES  XRWTZES
B E » REER _TZELFMAERER(RR
EEF LB ERMIEXVEARFZ X ZBR)HE
TRAREEMEERABALR/ILREBRES
RAT)  REEEEMEEBRTETRATAZER
B o IRUAERBEEEMEE (MARIEREZ LM
BEROIEXVHBARRZETERMR)EEGRAE
TE-HEEETREERANEREREAE
22BN TR

HRELRARBITE—NZREE  THH_F—
=FN\NRtBRE-_ZT_AF+-_HA=+—H
I o

RIBEXRE(REED  FN+—5 HEES
PRXAEHEBETEM MAOMIIKRBETEHERR
T8 - REER-NN=FHARZERIEH
TEERR T N\F+—ARERBULIFNT
EX -RABKRLZES BUHELZEE 1A
ZEELFMEZBEEENKE - RAEERFE
BEHERTREBERZESAR  LBEMEE

BZERRKE REFBBNTHFZES IR
TEH -RE 2BRHE  2EXERIREEL

REGTBARBTE - NRB=F2ZBE (£
PH-_T-_=F—A-B&E%-

10
Q CWT International Limited / 20234 F %



Mr. Liem Chi Kit, Kevin (“"Mr. Liem"), aged 43, holds a bachelor’s
degree (honours) in commerce from University of Toronto and
a master's degree in taxation from University of Waterloo. Mr.
Liem was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company in June 2013 and is the chairman of each of the
Audit Committee, Independent Investigation Committee and
the Remuneration Committee, and a member of the Nomination
Committee. He is a CFA charter holder and a certified public
accountant (USA). Mr. Liem is a managing director of Masan
Capital Limited, a treasurer of the council and court of the Hong
Kong Baptist University, a board member and a senior fellow
of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute (HKSI).
He has extensive experience in securities, financial market and
investment.

An engagement letter was entered into between Mr. Liem and
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2023.

Mr. Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey (“Mr. Lam”), GBM, GBS, JP, aged 72,
holds a bachelor's degree in mechanical engineering from Tufts
University in the United States and was conferred university fellow
of Tufts University and The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr.
Lam was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company in October 2013 and is a member of each of
the Audit Committee, Independent Investigation Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee. He is
also an independent non-executive director of each of Analogue
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1977), C C Land Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1224), China Overseas Grand Oceans Group Limited
(Stock Code: 81), Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (Stock
Code: 1929), CSC Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 235), Golden
Resources Development International Limited (Stock Code: 677),
i-CABLE Communications Limited (Stock Code: 1097), Wing Tai
Properties Limited (Stock Code: 369) and Wynn Macau, Limited
(Stock Code: 1128), all of which are listed companies in Hong Kong.
In the last three years, Mr. Lam was an executive director of Hong
Kong Aerospace Technology Group Limited (Stock Code: 1725)
from July 2021 to November 2023, which is a listed company in
Hong Kong. He has over 30 years of experience in toy industry and
is currently the managing director of Forward Winsome Industries
Limited which is engaged in toy manufacturing.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
EEBN

MFHREE  FO+ =5 HEZRHEZREBE
RESTBURBHEAXERBRTEM - T
BEENR —_T—=FNARZERBIUINITE
= UYREVZES BUABTZEENFHZ
BEERENEFE  URREZEENKE - A
EROMENRFFFARITE ARKBEM EEHED o M
THEAERFBUEARBRARZESHALE &
BREABREGEXNZEZAE  BEES
ERESENEFTERENELEREGE - TR
5 ERMERRETEREGEEER

MFREEEERARFRTA-—NRM=ZF2ZE
g PR -T_=F-—A—-HEER -

MR ELE - GBM, GBS, JP - FH+ 5% #E
FEEB R REHR TS T80 - WEE R
RENFBET ABER TRET - MEEELE
R-E—=F+ABZEABYINTES I
ARERZES  BURFBEELES - ERZEEk
THEESSENKE - BAABRELMARR
STREREEBRAR RO : 1977)  FAE
IR AR AR (BRD RS - 1224) - AEREINE
FEBBERARGRMDAI : 81)  BREBHRES
BAERAB(BRMHARIE - 1929) « ARENIERE
FRAF (M ARSE - 235) @ RERBEBEES
RAE (B ARSE : 677) BEEIEBEAERR
ARG - 1097) ~ XFHEBR AT RMDK
5% 0 369) KoK FRFIA R A Rl (R HK5%E - 1128)
BEMNBUIENTES - TBE=F - MEEEL
AR-ZEBE-—F+AEZ—_E-_=F+—RAEH
ETRREBMABEEEER A A BRMD AR
1725) 2HITES - BRITAEBER = +FK
B ENAMASERKNEEARARIZES
E °
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DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES
ESEHMT

In addition, Mr. Lam is a member of the Legislative Council of the
HKSAR, a non-official member of the Executive Council of the
HKSAR, a general committee member of the Hong Kong General
Chamber of Commerce and a honorary member of the Court of
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a director on the board
of Heifer International — Hong Kong. Mr. Lam also holds a number
of other public and community service positions. He ceased to
be a member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference with effect from March 2023.

Mr. Lam was awarded the “Young Industrialist Award of Hong
Kong” in 1989 and the “QOutstanding Achievement Award —
Hong Kong Toy Industry” in 1999 respectively. In 1996, he was
appointed Justice of the Peace and became a member of the Most
Excellent Order of the British Empire. Mr. Lam was awarded the
Silver Bauhinia Star in 2004, the Gold Bauhinia Star in 2011 and the
Grand Bauhinia Medal in 2023 respectively.

An engagement letter was entered into between Mr. Lam and
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2023.

Ms. Liu Yifei ("Ms. Liu"), aged 37, holds a bachelor’s degree of
science in economics and finance from The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology. She was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in November 2023. Ms. Liu previously
acted as the investment and financing vice-president and CEO
special assistant of Flexiv Technology Ltd., and also previously
served the management and senior positions of Fosun Fashion
Group (renamed as LANVIN Group), DJI Innovation Technology
Limited and FIL Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited.
Ms. Liu has extensive knowledge and working experience in the
fields of investment, finance, debt restructuring and corporate
operation management.

An engagement letter was entered into between Ms. Liu and the
Company for a term commencing from 20 November 2023 to 31
December 2025.

BAN - MBBRERBEFRIAEEE - BF
FETHERIETHE BERRSESTSE

E EARIABZERZEGRENE MERK/N
BHEEENDQEFENRE - MEEXRLETSH#Z
BABMMEREEBA - #R_T-_=F=ZAF
BREETEARBAWEEREHEZEELE -

MEZEEEDHIR —NNANFR-NAANERE
RIBEABFIEFREIRIEBTAZAEHKH
Bl FR—ANARNFEZER/NFRLIERK
REEBE - MEBELEEDHIR_FTNF - =
T——ER-FT_-_FERREIMNEE - KA
BEERAKEFBE

MEEEEEEARARTA-—NRB=ZFZZE
E AT _=F—-—A—HEEK -

BRFELL(8ux)) F=1++tm BEEHB
RHE KB EE L B BB T8 - FR-F
T+ AEZAABYIENTESE - Bkt
BEFSRFERAFRMERBHENERNT
BEREAE  NEREERNEBCEEAERE
E) - KiBAlIFREAERAR  BEE2@EE)E
RARIETERERSHBS - L TFERE - &
B BEREANLRARELEERAGAEENM
AN SR o

BT EARRATE—HEES  THH-_F=
=#F+—A-t+ARE-_ET-_RE+-_A=+—
Bl -
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
DR R

TURNOVER BY PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES FORTHEYEAR 2023
CECCFFERIERBE S CERT

83.75%

. Commodity marketing Logistics services Financial services Engineering services

BRES W whmE SREH W Iems

TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION FORTHEYEAR 2023
TECCHFERMEID 2 EXE

0.74% 0.39%

22.15% ©

. Mainland China . Other parts of the Europe . America . Africa Continent
Rl Rt Asia Pacific Region BUM M FEM
HitE A E
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
BB E

REVENUE (HK$'000)

WA (BT x)
Year £

2019

2020

2021

2022
(restated)
(Fg=E75)

2023

|

3

40,747512

44,673,571

55,448,828

38,689,030

7,226,295

GROSS PROFIT (HK$'000)
=X (GB¥ )

Year £
2019
2020

2021

2022
(restated)
(F8&75)

2023

1,536,143

1,481,066

1,910,263

1,718,532

1,646,236

TOTAL ASSETS (HK$'000)
mEE (B¥Tr)

Year
2019
2020

2021

2022

2023

24,020,577

24,915,974

24,934,882

36,504,465

25,438,229
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board, we are pleased to present the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023.

2023 was still a profit-making year of the Group. Nevertheless,
maximising the value of Shareholders is our ultimate purpose. We
are endeavour to look for new and potential business opportunities.
In fact, we have set up a joint venture in Hainan in 2023. We have
also increased the stakes in Globelink UK and Globelink Spain in
2023 and early 2024 respectively.

As set out in the announcement of the Company dated 31
March 2023, KPMG, the predecessor independent auditor of the
Company considered the commercial substance of the Group's
certain commodity trading transactions conducted in 2022 were
unclear and suggested an investigation be conducted, leading to
the delay in publication of the Company’s annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2022 and the suspension of trading in
the shares of the Company from 3 April 2023. As further set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 5 May 2023, the
Independent Investigation Committee was established comprising
all the then Independent Non-executive Directors. An independent
professional party was engaged to commence the Investigation.
The annual results as well as the annual report of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2022 were subsequently published
in September 2023. It is now our goal to resume the trading in
shares as soon as possible.

On the other hand, the Group reached a compromise with ED&F
parties by entering into a settlement agreement in August 2023,
which remarked that the long endured legal case has come to an
end.

OVERALL PERFORMANCE 2023

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's
revenue amounted to HK$37,226,295,000 (restated 2022:
HK$38,689,030,000); while the profit attributable to owners
amounted to HK$17,733,000 (restated 2022: HK$270,036,000).

The Group recorded earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation (“EBITDA") from continuing operations for the
year ended 31 December 2023 as amounted to HK$1,274,210,000
(restated 2022: HK$1,462,903,000), the amount of which is
calculated by the profit for the year from continuing operations,
before deducting the financial costs, income tax expenses,
depreciation, and amortisation for the continuing operations.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TREHRES

LOOKING FORWARD TO 2024 AND
OUR STRATEGIES

In 2023, the global economic recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic
had proved to be more resilient than expected. Global inflation
was receding from its 2022 peak, reflecting favorable supply-side
developments, and tightening by central banks. With falling inflation
and steady economic growth, the risks to global growth are broadly
balanced. On the upside, faster disinflation could lead to further easing
of financial conditions, as the Federal Reserve is widely expected
to reduce interest rates, starting in the middle of this year. On the
downside, new commodity price spikes due to geopolitical shocks,
including the recent Red Sea crisis, could prolong tight monetary
conditions. International Monetary Fund projected the global growth at
3.1% in 2024 and 3.2% in 2025.

Under such circumstances, we consider it necessary to continue
focusing on core industries, enhancing core competence, promoting
further synergy and collaboration among business sectors, and seeking
for growth opportunities in the PRC and other developing countries for
risk diversification reasons. Hainan Free Trade Port has been one of
the ports with the highest level of openness in the world nowadays,
and an increasing number of global enterprises have set out regional
headquarters or branch offices in Hainan Province. The Group
continues to explore business opportunities in Hainan Free Trade
Port and SEA countries through multiple routes, such as establishing
strategic cooperation and joint venture with local business partners. As
our footprint in the Mainland China continues to deepen, we endeavor
to learn from our experience and copy the success in Singapore and
other global regions.

In conclusion, besides carefully operating traditional business, the
Group will promote further internal synergy, and seize further growth
opportunities in the Mainland China and other regions to maximise the
Shareholders’ interests and create a brighter future.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, we would like to take this opportunity
to extend our sincere gratitude to all Shareholders, investors,
customers, suppliers and business partners of the Company for
their valuable and continuous support and trust to the Group.
We would also extend our gratitude and appreciation to all our
management and staff for their tireless efforts, diligence and
dedication throughout the year.

Wang Kan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

In 2023, the global economy faced persistent challenges, including
inflation, rising interest rates, and geopolitical shocks. The PRC
anticipated recovery proved to be more precarious than forecasted,
marked by a deepening property crisis, increasing deflationary
pressures, and subdued demand. Similarly, Eurozone experienced
stagnant economic growth, lagging behind other regions, largely
due to Germany’'s underperformance. Germany's economy
was affected by its reliance on cheap energy from Russia and
disruptions in its extensive trade relationships with the PRC, both
impacted by geopolitical events.

In 2023, the Group made the decision to discontinue its structured
trading services due to numerous challenges, such as ongoing
disputes and legal cases in previous years. With the best interests
of the Group in mind, the management decided to discontinue
the trade services business in 2023, following a gradual phase-
out that had been underway since structured trading in the year.
Previously, the Group's structured trading services business had
been included in its financial services segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's
revenue amounted to HK$37,226,295,000 (restated 2022:
HK$38,689,030,000); while the net profit for the year amounted
to HK$79,194,000 (2022: HK$255,089,000). The Group reported
a net profit of HK$21,471,000 (restated 2022: net loss of
HK$116,613,000) from discontinued operation and net profit of
HK$57,723,000 (restated 2022: HK$371,702,000) from continuing
operations. The decline in net profit from continuing operations
is mainly attributable to (i) the fair value loss on an unlisted
equity investment in a limited partnership engaged in property
investment in the United States held by the Group measured at
fair value through profit or loss; and (i) a significant drop in cargo
volume and a sharp decrease in ocean freight rates within the
Freight Logistics sector. However, there was a silver lining as both
financial services and commodity marketing segments showed
improved performance compared to that in 2022, which helped to
offset some of the negative effects caused by freight logistics.

The improved result from discontinued operation is attributable to
a provision that was made for a settlement agreement made in
prior financial year and no such further provisions were considered
necessary for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEmALED

Logistics Services
Warehousing and Integrated Logistics

As a key service provider in the chemical and shipping industry,
we navigate a volatile global market despite Singapore's positive
GDP. In the chemical sector, businesses are addressing challenges
such as reduced profit margins, pricing pressure, and rising costs
by focusing on cost efficiency, refining supply chain decisions,
and preparing for Singapore’s increased carbon tax for resilience
and sustainability compliance. Despite a sluggish 2023, there
is optimism for potential growth in the latter half of 2024 or
by 2025. Meanwhile, the shipping sector faces hurdles from
the Red Sea shipping crisis, resulting in vessel rerouting and a
threefold increase in container rates. Despite these challenges,
our integrated logistics group exceeded budget expectations and
outperformed the previous year. We continue to strategically adapt
by expanding niche trucking services, streamlining processes,
and leveraging technology for efficiency, sustained growth, and
profitability.

In 2023, the food and beverage sector in Singapore experienced
significant expansion driven by increased shipments from North
Asia and higher government-mandated food reserves. Despite
this growth, businesses in the sector are dealing with rising costs
in fuel, utilities, and a competitive labor market. The ongoing
liberalisation of the PRC's economy is anticipated to lead to a
notable increase in demand, contributing to a more optimistic
outlook for the sector in 2024.

Singapore’s warehousing space remains limited whilst new
supplies are at much higher costs as building costs sky-
rocketed in the last 3 years. The warehousing sector is expecting
approximately 1.8 million square feet of new space in 2024,
mostly pre-committed, leaving less than 0.5 million square feet
available. Warehousing demand is volatile due to global economic
uncertainty and supply chain disruptions. With demand surpassing
supply in 2024, current rates are likely to persist in the coming
months. This trend is expected to continue moderately until 2025
when more new warehouses are expected to complete. Logistics
group’s warehouses are fully utilised, and stability is anticipated
for the next 12 months, with renewals expected at higher market
rates.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Freight Logistics

In Q4 2022, the shipping market saw a significant downturn from
peak ocean freight levels. Factors driving rates up in 2022 reversed
in 2023. Decreased demand, increased shipping capacity with new
ships entering the market; inflation, and cost-of-living crisis led to
rates dropping to pre-COVID-19 levels. To manage this surplus,
shipping lines adopted strategies such as blank sailing and slow
steaming.

Intense competition in the contracting market eroded profit
margins. Our European agency network disruption and the PRC's
economic slowdown caused severe rate cuts and margin erosion,
resulting in a significant decline in export volume. Our Turkey's
office suffered from the economic crisis.

As we enter 2024, the outlook is uncertain due to ongoing market
instability. There is optimism for recovery, despite inflation easing
in western countries but remaining high overall. We are working to
maintain competitiveness and protect market share by accelerating
automation for cost-cutting and efficiency improvement, alongside
efforts to develop new cargo sources for volume diversification.
We will also extend our expansion plan to broaden our footprint
and fortify our network, entering the new year in a leaner and
stronger state.

Commodity Logistics

In 2023, our commodity logistics business demonstrated
remarkable resilience in the face of a challenging economic
environment and increasing geopolitical uncertainties that impacted
the broader market sentiment. Despite these obstacles, we not
only delivered strong earnings but also thrived, primarily due to
our strong performance in the soft commodity warehousing and
logistics sector. This accomplishment highlights the adaptability
and resilience of our workforce in navigating through evolving
market conditions.

Looking forward, our strategic focus remains steadfast in
strengthening our position in the commodity logistics sector.
Concurrently, we are dedicated to exploring new opportunities
for both organic and inorganic business growth. This approach
underscores our commitment to maintaining and expanding our
presence in the dynamic landscape of commodity logistics.
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I\/IANAGEI\/IENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEmALED

Overall, the unfavourable market condition of freight logistics
led to a significant drop in revenue from HK$7,376,388,000 to
HK$4,619,054,000 for logistics services segment. Consequently,
profit before tax ("PBT") decreased more than 65.5% from
HK$632,809,000 to HK$218,436,000. The Group will continue
to focus on its strengths by increasing its network and service
offering, improving operational efficiency and staying close to the
market to navigate through the evolving market conditions and to
explore new business opportunities.

Commodity Marketing

Commodity Marketing (“CM") specialises in global supply chain
management for non-ferrous concentrates and refined metals,
expanding into energy products and aluminum in 2023. Despite
a slight decrease in overall traded concentrates, the refined
metals volume nearly doubled, and energy products constituted a
significant 19% of the total traded volume.

CM's revenue increased by 4.3% to HK$31,175,669,000, with a
noteworthy improvement in PBT at HK$17,206,000 compared to
the previous year's loss. The profitability of concentrates trading
rose significantly due to smelters’ aggressive purchasing, driven
by economic factors like supply disruptions, decreased mine
production, and rising demand from smelter expansions. The
tighter concentrates market enhanced CM's blending opportunities
and overall profitability. Additionally, energy trading achieved a net
profit in its inaugural year.

Going forward, CM anticipates continued balancing in the copper
concentrates market and steady growth, focusing on strategic
priorities such as expanding its footprint in Africa, trading energy
products, aluminum, and potential diversification into other
minerals. Despite challenges and opportunities in the commodities
market, CM remains resilient. With a steadfast commitment to
long-term stability and strategic decision-making, we are well-
positioned to capitalise on advantageous opportunities in our
traded product categories throughout 2024 and beyond.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Services

Despite the challenging high-interest rate environment in FY2023,
we have successfully maintained our customer assets under
management (AUM) in the derivatives segment. The ongoing
high market volatility has led to increased trading volumes. Our
strategic geographical expansion includes key financial centers,
with a focus on emerging markets like Dubai and Vietnam. As a
clearing member of the Chicago Mercantile Group of Exchanges
for the past decade, we have demonstrated stability and significant
clearing volumes on various global exchanges. Currently, we are
in the process of collaborating with the Intercontinental Exchange
(ICE) to become a direct clearing member.

We are committed to accelerating our digital transformation
initiatives, allocating resources to automate processes, enhance
productivity, and digitise touchpoints for improved customer
onboarding and trading experiences. This approach not only
facilitates our expansion into retail markets but also broadens our
overall market reach.

Financial services’ PBT (excluding discontinued operation)
improved by 88.4% from HK$102,360,000 in 2022 (restated to
exclude discontinued operation) to HK$192,834,000 in 2023.
This improvement in profit was mainly contributed by improved
performance of the derivative business, coupled with higher
interest income resulting from rising interest rate.

Engineering Services (“ES”)

In 2023, engineering maintenance (“EM") successfully maintained
its performance throughout the year. Within the ES segment,
the relevant company generated revenue of HK$715,970,000
and achieved a PBT of HK$33,439,000 in 2023. Despite intense
competition in facility and vehicle maintenance sectors in 2023,
EM sustained stability, exhibiting strong performance. This positive
trend is expected to continue into 2024, given the successful
retention of key contracts.

Looking ahead, EM is embarking on a digital transformation journey
to ensure business sustainability and competitiveness. This aims
to enhance operational efficiency, controlling costs amid local and
global inflationary pressures, and elevate customer experience by
providing digitally accessible information at their fingertips.

EEEmMLED M

TERE
BE_T_=FFENSERRRMIE - B
ROEBITET AN BNEFEEEERR - ™
SRBRERE  BHRXHEEM - RARREE
WEBRERIZEBRTL  EHEINEFR
BEEHENE - BETFERZNTERRS
FIEENEEER  RMEERZEARZAER
HIBEMREAEESE - B AT - RAIEEEME
RBMEE  WRGEREESE -

BFIBMARMRBIBERAE - DEERERE
B8 RELEENRBISEES  USER
Fal 8RR 585 - DA MEB MR FIER
ETEMS  TEARMNEETSEERE -

SRBREOBRBINEN (T EED K IEEEER)
h-ZT - —FHE%102,360,0007T (KL E I A
BRERIMHSEER) NGB A%E T - = F 15
#£192,834,0007C c AR EEZE/ENITET
BEBRBNE - ARIMNBFTE R F S YA
hn e

ITREERE(IERE]D

REZTZ=F IEHEFEZE(IREZBDKIINE
EFEEHEHFERR -RIERBDEA - HERQ
RN - = FEERAET715,970,0007T @ B
TR AT A3 8 4533,439,0007T - BE T - =4
RS TBERETEFR AR - BIREEEDSE
BET BELAHNRR - ERKINRETES
2 FEBRBEHEREE S _NF -

REARR  TiRMEENR FSIBER 25K - A
REBHAFHELERRSE ) - WBERERSEE
ME - EAMEEHNBERRE D TERK
A WHEBRMEEF A LNEBCERRAETP
g -

21
2023 Annual Report / CWT International Limited O



I\/IANAGEI\/IENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEmALED

In 2023, the design & build (“D&B") division sustained the losses
incurred in 2022, primarily attributable to salary and fixed overhead
costs. However, a strategic shift from the pre-COVID model, which
involved providing D&B services to real estate developers and Real
Estate Investment Trusts (REITS), to a focus on delivering value-
added building and infrastructure-related advice/consultation to our
existing logistics warehouse customers, has resulted in positive
outcomes.

Following the strategic shift, the D&B division emerged as
the prospective solution provider for a new D&B project from
an existing logistics warehouse client. The project is targeted
to complete in two years from inception. Additionally, D&B is
collaborating with our in-house facility team to offer ongoing
monthly infrastructure-related services to logistics clients, further
contributing to the positive outlook for 2024 and 2025.

With an experience and committed team, ES managed to
deliver an increase in revenue to HK$715,970,000 and PBT to
HK$33,439,000 against previous financial year by 12.3% and
28.3% respectively.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of HK$1,998,840,000 (31 December 2022: HK$1,609,650,000).
Cash and bank balances are mostly held in Hong Kong dollar,
United States dollar, Singapore dollar, Euro and Renminbi and
deposited in leading banks with maturity dates falling within one
year. On the other hand, the Group had loans and borrowings of
HK$5,646,278,000 (31 December 2022: HK$5,732,096,000), of
which an aggregated amount of HK$4,201,446,000 (31 December
2022: HK$4,177,317,000) was repayable within one year, including
revolving short-term trade facilities of HK$3,323,467,000 (31
December 2022: HK$3,684,329,000) at the interest rate within
5.88% to 8.08% (31 December 2022: 5.88% to 7.31%) per
annum that are used to finance the working capital of the Group's
commodity marketing business. As at 31 December 2023, the
Group's loans and borrowings amounted to HK$4,183,519,000
(31 December 2022: HK$4,657,562,000) were secured by
property, plant and equipment, bank balance and fixed deposits,
trade and other receivables and inventories with an amount of
HK$4,948,088,000 (as at 31 December 2022: HK$5,824,624,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had total debt of
HK$4,672,423,000 (2022: HK$4,501,993,000), comprising loans
and borrowings and lease liabilities but excluding the revolving
short-term trade facilities amounted to HK$3,323,467,000
(2022: HK$3,684,329,000) (collectively, “Total Debt"”). The
consolidated net debt of the Group comprising of Total Debt minus
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents amounted to
HK$2,143,915,000 (2022: HK$1,779,079,000); and the total capital
of the Group (measured as Total Debt plus equity attributable to
owners of the Company) amounted to HK$9,343,704,000 (2022:
HK$9,131,993,000). The Group’s gearing ratio (net debt to total
capital) as at 31 December 2023 was 27.1% (2022: 29.8%). (For
details, please refer to Notes 27, 28, 36 and 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.)

As at 31 December 2023, outstanding derivatives on the books
were mainly commodity contracts for hedging the commodity
price exposure. The management monitors the hedging policy
closely and the hedging level of the Group is approximately 100%
of the total commodity inventories.

The Group maintains an appropriate level of foreign currency
borrowings, as determined by management, for natural hedge
to minimise the foreign exchange exposure. As at 31 December
2023, the borrowings are mainly denominated in Singapore dollar
and United States dollar.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
AND JOINT VENTURES

Saved as disclosed below, for the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Company did not have any material acquisitions and disposals
of subsidiaries, associated companies and joint ventures:

1. on 8 March 2023, the Group entered into an agreement
with Hainan Xuansong Trading Co., Ltd.* (BE&EEZ 5 A
R /X 7)) to establish a joint venture company named Hainan
Xuangi International Trade Co., Ltd.* (S EEEE SH
R 2 ®]). For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 8 March 2023; and

2. on 1 November 2023, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Ms. Elaine Lisa James to acquire
the remaining 32.88% interest of a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary named Globelink Fallow Limited. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 1
November 2023.

EEEmMLED M

RZE_=F+-_A=Z=+—8 KEEHN
BEBABHEA,672,423,000 (=2 - —
£ B#4,501,993,000T) - BIEEREE
HEfEeaE ETEEBEREHE S
B M3,323,467,0000( T - —F : B
3,684,329,0007T) (B AEK]) - REEK
REFERREREBREERRITTR
HERREEEIEERB12,143,915,000T(=
T - 4 B¥1,779,079,000T) : MAEE
MER(RBEBMARA S AEGEEZER
£)AE7E%9,343,704,000L (2 = —4F : B
9,131,993,00000) - R—_ZE-_=F+=-A=+—
H AEBENEEABLEER(FEBHEBERN) A
271% (2=~ : 29.8%)  (EEFFBERE
BB SRR TE27 - 28 - 36437 ° )

RZF-_=F+-A=1t—0 HREKEENLE
TAFZRARSFEMEREROARAL -
BB YRR - mASE R E K
FREmir EEENH100% °

RSB R B IR B YR TE M FHE E RO INE (5 K
¥ AETEREM - KMEERINERR
RIBEZ=F+-A=1+—R8  EXREBUHMN
WL KkETAHE

MEBAR  BMEATARESELEZE
AEBRHESE

BRTIXFAEREEN BE_T_=F+_A=1
—HALFE  ARBUEIAMEIR - BEQ
ARGELEZERNBRHESE -

1. R-ZZ-=F=A/\B » AEE & B
BMEHERRBRI LG - WKL BRE
HHBERESAERAFNEGELE - B
BB 2HARRERA-T ==
ANBEORSE

2. RZE_=F+—A—H AEHH
Elaine Lisa JamesZ T3] B &% © LA
U B8 22 A Globelink Fallow Limited#J3F &
EHBNBLAAINHTI2.88%ME - F
BAFBERE2EARRBA-S_=F1+
—A—HHRE -

23
2023 Annual Report / CWT International Limited O



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEmALED

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group is subject to various litigation, regulatory and arbitration
matters in the normal course of business. The Group vigorously
defends against these claims and, in the opinion of management,
the resolution of these matters will not have a material effect on
the financial position of the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group (including associate companies and joint ventures) had
a total of 6,029 employees as at 31 December 2023 (31 December
2022: 6,070). The Group’s remuneration policies are to ensure that
the remuneration package as a whole is fair and competitive, and is
able to motivate and retain current employees and attract potential
talents. These remuneration packages have already carefully taken
into account, amongst other aspects, the Group’s business in
different jurisdictions. The employees’ remuneration packages
are comprised of salaries and discretionary bonuses, along with
retirement schemes, medical insurance and share options which
form a part of welfare benefits.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate
governance standard and procedures to safeguard the interests of
all Shareholders and to enhance accountability and transparency.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the CG
Code as set out in Part 2 of Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules for
the financial year ended 31 December 2023, except the following
deviation:

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Wang Kan has been
appointed as the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer since
21 February 2022.

The Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer in the same person has the benefit of
ensuring consistent leadership within the Group and enables
more effective and efficient on overall strategic planning for the
Group. The Board considers this structure continues to enable
the Company to make and implement decisions promptly and
effectively. The Board believes that the balance of power and
authority is adequately ensured by the operation of the Board,
which comprises experienced and high calibre individuals with a
sufficient number of Independent Non-executive Directors.

Therefore, the Directors consider that the reasons for deviation
from code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code are appropriate in such
circumstance.

CORPORATE PURPOSE, STRATEGY AND
GOVERNANCE

During the year, the Board has established its purpose, values and
strategy, and satisfy itself that these and the Company’s culture
are aligned:

° Culture: be grateful in heart and keep promise in action

° Purpose: manages to preserve as well as increase the value
of all kinds of assets, maximize the shareholder’s interests
and become a first-class multi-business international
enterprise
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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° Values: be grateful, trustworthy, robust and rewarding

° Strategy: strictly comply with the applicable laws and
regulations, but also manage to develop our different
business collaboratively

Based on the strategy above, while the Group will try to keep
making profit from the business in Singapore, the Group will also
fulfil the corporate social responsibility at the same time. The
Group will also improve the quality and efficiency of workflow and
optimize the management efficiency in Hong Kong. In addition
to strictly comply with the applicable laws and regulations, we
will also aim to maximize the Shareholders’ interests through
a series of actions in an attempt to improve our market image
and market value. The statements of the auditor on its reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 69 to 78 in this
Annual Report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of eight Directors, being four
Executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive Directors.
The list of Directors is set out in the section headed "“Corporate
Information” of this annual report. In addition, an updated list of
the Directors and their roles and functions is published on the
websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the
Company respectively.

The Board is characterised by significant diversity and has a
balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Company. The Directors’ biographical
information is set out in the section headed "Directors’
Biographies” of this annual report.

The Directors give sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Group. All Directors are required to, at the time of their
appointment and annually, disclose to the Company the number
and the nature of offices held in public companies or organisations
and other significant commitments with an indication of the time
involved.
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Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Biographies”
as set out on pages 8 to 12 of this annual report, the Board
members have no other financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other.

The Board includes a balanced composition of Executive and
Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) so that there is a sufficient independent element on the
Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgment.

The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) are of sufficient number and calibre for their views to
carry weight. The functions of Non-executive Directors include:

° participating in board meetings to bring an independent
judgement to bear on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments
and standards of conduct;

° taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

° serving on the audit, remuneration, nomination and other
governance committees, if invited; and

° scrutinising the issuer’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring performance
reporting.

The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) have made a positive contribution to the development
of the Company’s strategy and policies through independent,
constructive and informed comments. They give the Board and
the committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills,
expertise, varied backgrounds and qualifications through regular
attendance and active participation.

Composition of the Board is disclosed, and the Independent Non-
executive Directors are identified, in all corporate communications
to Shareholders.

In addition, at the beginning of the year all the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company had served more than
nine years on the Board. Therefore, to comply the CG Code,
the Company has appointed a new Independent Non-executive
Director on the Board before the annual general meeting of the
Company for the year 2023.
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Board Diversity

The Board Diversity Policy had been revised in 2022. It sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board composition with a
view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development of the
Company.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, perspectives, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The Company will also take into account factors
based on its own business model and specific needs from time to
time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board has complied the Listing Rules for diversity of gender
by appointing a female Director as at the date of this annual report.
(Note)

Although the gender ratio (male vs. female) of the Board and
senior management is 7:1, the Board consider that it is important
to identify high calibre and appropriate candidates into the
Board according to the Directors’ Nomination Policy, rather
than to achieve a balanced gender ratio. As mentioned in the
Board Diversity Policy, factors for high calibre candidate include
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
perspectives, skills, knowledge etc; while factors for appropriate
candidate are to base on the Company’s own business model and
specific needs from time to time.

In addition, as at 31 December 2023, the gender ratio (male vs.
female) of the workforce was around 2:1. In fact, over 84% of
the workforce was coming from the logistics services which is
a male-dominated industry. The Group is considering to engage
suitable headcounts with relevant skills, abilities and experiences
to the workforce, instead of just achieving a balanced gender ratio.
Despite that, the Board will review the actual situation and needs
of the Company from time to time and will try its endeavor to
achieve gender diversity.

Note:

Following the resignation of Ms. Yan Shen on 7 August 2023, the Company
does not have a Director of a different gender, and hence the Company
failed to meet the requirement set out in Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules.
Following the appointment of Ms. Liu Yifei on 20 November 2023, the
Board has achieved gender diversity and thus fulfils the requirement under
Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules.
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However, the Board will continuously review the targets and
timeline for achieving gender diversity based on the actual situation
and needs of the Group.

Directors’ Nomination Policy

The Directors’ Nomination Policy had been revised in 2022. It
aims to set out the approach to guide the Nomination Committee
in relation to selection, appointment and re-appointment of the
Directors.

The criteria for evaluation, selection and recommendation for
candidate(s) for directorships to the Board comprise the character
and integrity, and qualifications (including experience). The criteria
also include the factors mentioned in the Board Diversity Policy, i.e.
to consider the gender, age, cultural and educational background.
Moreover, commitment for responsibilities, potential contribution
to the Board and other relevant factors will also be considered.

The evaluation and recommendation of retiring Director(s) for re-
appointment will consider whether such Director(s) continue(s)
to satisfy the nomination criteria, and its overall contribution and
service, which includes the level of participation and performance
on the Board and/or its committees, and the attendance records of
the relevant meetings.

If the retiring Director(s) is an Independent Non-executive
Director(s), the Nomination Committee will evaluate further
factors including the relevant provisions in the Listing Rules. If the
individual will be holding his/her seventh or more listed company
directorship, it will evaluate whether such individual will be able to
devote sufficient time to the Board. In addition, if the individual has
served more than nine years, whether he is still independent shall
be evaluated likewise.

After considering the above factors, the Nomination Committee
will recommend to the Board for the appointment of a Director in
accordance with the following main procedures and process:

° to consult any source it deems appropriate in identifying
or selecting suitable candidates (such as referrals,
recommendations, etc.);

° to evaluate the candidates (such as interviews, background
checks, etc.);
° to pass resolutions for recommendation to the Board for

appointment;
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° to provide information to the Remuneration Committee for
consideration of remuneration package of such candidate;
and

° to arrange candidate to be interviewed by the Board who

are not members of the Nomination Committee.

The Board will be ultimately responsible for the selection,
appointment and re-appointment of Directors.

Role and Function of the Board and the Management

The Board is responsible for overall strategic formulation and
performance monitoring of the Group. It delegates day-to-day
operations of the Company to the Executive Committee and
senior management within the control and authority framework
set by the Board. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Further details of
these committees are set out in this corporate governance report.

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly and holds at least four Board meetings
a year. Additional meetings will be arranged, if and when required.
The Directors can attend meetings in person or through electronic
means of communication in accordance with the Articles of
Association.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in drawing up the
agenda of each Board meeting. The draft agenda of each regular
Board meeting will be sent to all Directors for review before the
agenda is issued and all Directors may request for inclusion of
other matters in the agenda. The Chairman will take into account
the matters proposed by the Directors and where appropriate,
approve the inclusion of such matters in the agenda of the Board
meeting. Generally, at least 14-day notice of a regular Board
meeting is given and the Company aims at giving reasonable
notice for all other Board meetings. The Company also aims at
sending the agenda and the accompanying board papers, which
are prepared in a form and quality sufficient to enable the Board
to make informed decisions on matters placed before it, to all
Directors at least 3 days before the intended date of a Board
meeting. Where queries are raised by Directors, prompt and full
responses will be given if possible.
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There have been procedures in place to enable Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense. The Board shall resolve to, upon
reasonable request, provide separate independent professional
advice to Directors to assist them to perform their duties to the
Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of
Board meetings and Board committee meetings, draft and final
versions of which would be sent to Directors for comments and
records respectively, within a reasonable time after each meeting.
Minutes are recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered
and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by Directors
or dissenting views (if any) expressed. Minutes of Board meetings
and Board committee meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection by any Director/committee
member.

If a substantial Shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board (including a
material transaction with connected persons) which the Board
has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with
by a physical Board meeting, rather than a written resolution.
Independent Non-executive Directors who, and whose associates,
have no material interest in the transaction should be present at
that Board meeting.

Except for those circumstances permitted by the Articles of
Association and all applicable laws, rules and regulations, a
Director shall not vote on any Board resolution approving any
contract or arrangement or any other proposal in which he or any
of his associates has a material interest nor shall he be counted in
the quorum present at the meeting.

The Company has established mechanism in each Board meeting
by encouraging Independent Non-executive Directors to express
their independent views and input on each resolution. The
Board will review the implementation and effectiveness of such
mechanism on an annual basis.
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Attendance Records

During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the Directors
have made active contribution to the affairs of the Group and eight
physical Board meetings were held to consider, among other
things, various projects contemplated by the Group, and to review
and approve the interim results and annual results of the Group.

Details of the Directors’ attendance in 2023 are as follows:

H E A 8%
REBEEZE-_=F+-_A=1+—HIETHFE -
EEEBLEASEENSER  WERITN\XES
gen UEE(EHBB)AEEEET 2SR
HE UREENEREE P HEEREF
¥4

EER_T_—FZHFEREHABWT

Number of meeting(s)
attended/eligible to attend

HESEBRE
EEREESRAH
Executive Directors HITEE
Wang Kan =i 8/8
Zhao Quan i 8/8
Peng Biao B9 8/8
Yan Shen (resigned on 7 August 2023) BRR-ZFE-=FALHAFFT) 3/3
Xu Xu (appointed on 7 August 2023) BER=ZFZ=F)\H+HEZH) 5/5
Independent Non-executive Directors BTHHTEE
Leung Shun Sang, Tony 2EE 8/8
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin T 8/8
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey eSS 8/8
Liu Yifei (appointed on 20 November 2023) ~ RIBE(R-F==F+—A=+HEZ() A

Access to Information

The Board is supplied with sufficient explanation and information
by the management to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of financial and other information put before it for
approval. The management provides all Board members with
monthly updates which give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient details to enable the Board as a whole
and each Director to discharge their duties. Where any Director
requires more information than is volunteered by the management,
each Director has the right to separately and independently access
to the Company’s senior management to make further enquiries if
necessary.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by
the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will give
adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy and review
the profiles of the candidates and make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and nomination of
Directors.

According to the Articles of Association, any Director so appointed
by the Board shall hold office, in the case of either filling a casual
vacancy or an addition to their number, until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company who shall then be eligible
for re-election at such annual general meeting. Every Director is
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

All Directors (including all Non-executive Directors) have entered
into service agreements or letters of engagement with the
Company for a term of not more than three years.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed four Independent Non-executive Directors
and one of them has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

As required under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the number of
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company represents
at least one-third of the Board.

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

Any re-election of an Independent Non-executive Director who
has served the Board for more than nine years, his/her further
appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by Shareholders.
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Insurance for Directors’ and Officers’ Liability

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the Group
from their risk exposure arising from the businesses of the Group.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introduction of
regulatory requirements. Directors are continually updated on the
latest development of the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate
governance practice. Directors are also encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company Secretary facilitate induction
and professional development of Directors.

All Directors have provided to the Company their records of
training received during the period from 1 January 2023 or the

EERERBECEERR
$¢IE%§$&EZ&H§£EE§Ea?ﬁZEPﬂ%
IR EE AR B EBAENRBIRERE -
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t% HMEENEFHEREHREETERZEN - &

REANETHAEEEH EMRA - XRREM
EEREBRZ&EMER - ABRKREE T Mg
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date of appointment as a Director to the date of resignationasa Z—=F+-A=+—H tHBQER)ESE EJ||
Director or 31 December 2023, where applicable, a summary of  Z&28k @ BEET
which is as follows:
Continuous
professional development
BESERR
Type(Note 1) SU bj ect(Note 1
Directors = Eag) AR
Wang Kan = B, D 1
Zhao Quan R B,D 1
Peng Biao Z’ B, D 1
Yan Shen (resigned on 7 August 2023) MR - E - =F N\ A+ HEHT) B 1
Xu Xu (appointed on 7 August 2023) BER=ZF=Z=F/\ALHEZ) A B,D 1
Leung Shun Sang, Tony 2EE B,D 1
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin MRFE A B, D 1
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey s A B,D 1,2,3,4
Liu Yifei (appointed on 20 November 2023) Bl (R-_FE_-_=F+—F_-+HEZ(T) B,D 1
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Note I:

A: Attending seminars, conferences, forums, in-house briefings or
in-house training

B: Reading newspapers, journals and updates

C: Giving talks at seminars, conferences or forums

D: Others

Note II:

1: Laws, rules and regulations

2: Finance, accounting or taxation

3: Management

4: Businesses relating to the Company

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

As stated on page 25 of this annual report, the roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer are exercised by the same individual
for ensuring consistent leadership within the Group.

The Articles of Association and the CG Code have stipulated the
duties and responsibilities of the chairman of the Board. The Board
believes that the Chairman can perform his role without conflict,
and the Company’s previous disclosures regarding the roles of the
Chairman continue to apply.

Due to work arrangement, Mr. Wang Kan, being the Chairman,
held one meeting with the Independent Non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors in March 2024.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board's responsibilities. All committees have their
own terms of reference. All resolutions passed by the committees
will be reported to the Board at the next Board meeting.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in December 1998
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly
with its authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are published on the websites of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company respectively.
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The terms of reference of the Audit Committee was revised in
January 2023. The principal duties of the Audit Committee include,
amongst other things:

° overseeing the relationship with the Company's auditor;
° reviewing the interim and annual financial statements;
° reviewing the Company's financial reporting system and

internal control procedures; and

o reviewing the arrangements that employees of the
Company can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate any
activity within its terms of reference and the authority to obtain
external legal or other independent professional advice, at the
Company's expense, to perform its responsibilities if it considers
necessary. It is given access to and assistance from the employees
and reasonable resources to perform its duties properly.

The chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent Non-
executive Director and the Audit Committee comprises the
Independent Non-executive Directors. None of the members of
the Audit Committee are former partners of the auditor of the
Company. The members of the Audit Committee during 2023 and
up to the date of this annual report are:

Mr. Liem Chi Kit, Kevin (chairman)
Mr. Leung Shun Sang, Tony
Mr. Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey

During the year, three physical meetings of the Audit Committee
were held and the attendance of the members of the Audit
Committee are as follows:
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Number of meeting(s)
attended/eligible to attend

HESBERE

SEREEEBIRE

Liem Chi Kit, Kevin (chairman) MFEE(EE) 3/3
Leung Shun Sang, Tony 2 g4 3/3
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey N ES = 3/3

36
Q CWT International Limited / 20234 F %



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The major work performed by the Audit Committee during the year
included, amongst other things, the following:

° reviewing the final results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022;

o reviewing the interim results of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2023; and

° reviewing the internal controls review report and sharing
the work, findings and implementation to the Board.

During the year, the Board had no disagreement with the Audit
Committee’s view on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditor.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established in April 2005 with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authorities and duties.

The Executive Committee has been conferred with the general
powers of the Board (except those matters specifically reserved
for the Board) to manage and oversee the operations of the Group
and has been assigned with the responsibilities to perform the
corporate governance duties as follows:

° to develop and review the Company's policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to
the Board;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

° to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Group's
employees and Directors;
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° to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report; and

° to conform to any requirement, direction, regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the constitution of the Company or imposed by
legislation.

The Executive Committee comprises the Executive Directors
(as appointed from time to time). The members of the Executive
Committee during 2023 and up to the date of this annual report
are:

Mr. Wang Kan (chairman)

Mr. Peng Biao

Ms. Yan Shen (resigned on 7 August 2023)
Mr. Xu Xu (appointed on 7 August 2023)

During the year, no physical meeting of the Executive Committee
was held. All the work performed by the Executive Committee
during the year was passed by resolutions in writing.

The major work in relation to the corporate governance of the
Group performed by the Executive Committee during the year
included but was not limited to the review of the Company's
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022.
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Independent Investigation Committee

The Independent Investigation Committee was established in April
2023 with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly
with its authorities and duties.

The principal duties of the Independent Investigation Committee
include:

° to make necessary enquiries about and/or investigate
matters and events relating to the commercial
substance of certain commodity trading transactions (the
“Transactions”) and to take all action it sees fit in the
interests of the Company;

° to obtain legal advice and/or appoint external independent
party (the “Investigator”) to provide advice and assistance
on matters relating to the Transactions;

° to review and comment on the findings of the Investigator;
o to discuss the findings of the Investigator with KPMG, the
predecessor auditor of the Company;

° to report on any irregularities identified by the Investigator
to the Board;

° to authorise any further investigation that may be deemed
necessary; and

° to report the findings of the Independent Investigation
Committee to the Board and to make recommendations to
the Board on the next steps of actions.
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The Independent Investigation Committee comprises all the
then Independent Non-executive Directors. The members of the
Independent Investigation Committee during 2023 and up to the
date of this annual report are:

Mr. Liem Chi Kit, Kevin (chairman)
Mr. Leung Shun Sang, Tony
Mr. Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey

During the year, five physical meetings of the Independent
Investigation Committee were held and the attendance of the
members of the Independent Investigation Committee are as
follows:
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Number of meeting(s)
attended/eligible to attend

HEGBERE

SERERERARE

Liem Chi Kit, Kevin (chairman) MFEE(FESE) 5/5

Leung Shun Sang, Tony 2 EE 5/5

Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey NES 23 5/5
The major work of the Independent Investigation Committee BYABEZESNFABITZ2EEITEMT ¢

during the year are as follows:

° receiving and reviewing the independent investigation
report from the Investigator, including the key findings, and
making recommendations to the Board; and

° reviewing the internal controls review report and sharing
the work, findings and implementation to the Board.
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Investment Committee

The Investment Committee was established in July 2009 and
was dissolved in January 2023. During the year, no physical
meeting was held and no resolutions in writing was passed by
the Investment Committee. The members of the Investment
Committee up to January 2023 were:

Mr. Wang Kan (chairman)
Mr. Peng Biao

Ms. Yan Shen

Mr. Leung Shun Sang, Tony
Mr. Liem Chi Kit, Kevin

Pursuant to the terms of reference, the Investment Committee
comprises the Executive Directors (as appointed from time to
time) and two Non-executive Directors (amongst the two Non-
executive Directors, at least one must be an Independent Non-
executive Director).

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in April 2005 with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are published on the websites of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board
and making recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy,

° identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board;

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors;

° assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; and
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° reviewing the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and
reviewing the measurable objectives that have been set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the progress
on achieving the objectives.

Where vacancies exist at the Board, candidates are proposed
and put forward to the Nomination Committee for consideration.
The recommendations of the Nomination Committee will
then be tendered to the Board for approval. In considering the
nomination of a new Director, the Nomination Committee will give
adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy and take into
account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership
and professional ethics of the candidates. In determining the
independence of Directors, the Board follows the requirements set
out in the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee has explicit authority to seek any
necessary information from the employees within its scope
of duties and the authority to obtain external independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its
responsibilities if it considers necessary.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee is the Chairman and
the Independent Non-executive Directors constitute the majority
of the Nomination Committee. The members of the Nomination
Committee during 2023 and up to the date of this annual report
are:

Mr. Wang Kan (chairman)
Mr. Leung Shun Sang, Tony
Mr. Liem Chi Kit, Kevin

Mr. Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey

During the year, no physical meeting of the Nomination Committee
was held. All the work performed by the Nomination Committee
during the year was passed by resolutions in writing.
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The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee was revised
in January 2023. The major work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the year included, amongst other things, the
following:

° assessing the independence of the Independent Non-
executive Directors;

° considering and making recommendations to the Board on
the re-election of Directors at the annual general meeting;

° considering and making recommendation to the Board for
the appointment of Mr. Xu Xu as an Executive Director; and

° considering and making recommendation to the Board
for the appointment of Liu Yifei as an Independent Non-
executive Director.

Note:
The Nomination Committee performed the following work in April 2024:

o reviewing the structure and composition of the Board with due
regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in April 2005 with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are published on the websites of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

° making recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and
senior management of the Group;

° reviewing and approving the management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Company’s goals and
objectives;
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° determining, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of Non-executive Directors;

° reviewing and approving compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management and compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of Directors
for misconduct; and

° ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee may consult the Chairman and/or
the Chief Executive Officer about their remuneration proposals
for other Executive Directors. It has explicit authority to seek
any necessary information from the employees within its scope
of duties and the authority to obtain external independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its
responsibilities if it considers necessary.

The remuneration policies for the Company as well as the
Directors are aligned with the market and reward for performance.
The Company reviews the remuneration package annually, taking
into consideration of the market practice, competitive market
position and individual performance.

The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is an Independent
Non-executive Director and the Independent Non-executive
Directors constitute the majority of the Remuneration Committee.
The members of the Remuneration Committee during 2023 and up
to the date of this annual report are:

Mr. Liem Chi Kit, Kevin (chairman)
Mr. Wang Kan

Mr. Leung Shun Sang, Tony

Mr. Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey

During the year, no physical meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was held. All the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year was passed by resolutions in writing.
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee was
revised in January 2023. The major work performed by the
Remuneration Committee during the year included, amongst other
things, the following:

° considering and approving the terms of the engagement
letter of Mr. Xu Xu; and

° considering and approving the terms of the engagement
letter of Ms. Liu Yifei.

Note:
The Remuneration Committee performed the following work in April 2024:

o considering, reviewing and determining the remuneration of the
Executive Directors for the year of 2024; and

o making recommendations to the Board on the directors’ fee of the
Independent Non-executive Directors for the year of 2024.

Details of remuneration paid to Directors and senior management
for the year are set out in Note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

In addition, the Company has established a directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration policy during the year. In proposing
any such remuneration, it should take reference to:

° the then prevailing market conditions;
° the performance of the Company;
° the individual performance of the Director or the senior

management; and

° other factors to be determined from time to time.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring good
information flow within the Board and that board policies
and procedures are followed. The Company Secretary is also
responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman and/
or the Chief Executive Officer on corporate governance and the
implementation of the CG Code. The Company Secretary is an
employee of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the
Group's affairs.
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The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer. All Directors also have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that board
procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations, are
followed. The selection, appointment and dismissal of the
Company Secretary are subject to the Board approval.

The Company Secretary has confirmed that he has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year of
2023.

DIVIDEND POLICY

In compliance with the requirement set out in code provision F.1.1
of the CG Code, the Board adopted the Dividend Policy. According
to the Dividend Policy, in proposing any dividend payout, the Board
shall also take into account the following criteria, including:

° the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;
° general business conditions and strategies;
° distributable profit of the Company and each of the other

members of the Group;

° the Group's expected working capital requirements and
future expansion plans;

° the Group's indebtedness level, debt to equity ratios,
liquidity position and future commitments at the time of

declaration of dividend;

° any contractual restrictions on payment of dividend (may be
imposed by the Group's lenders or other third parties);

° taxation considerations and legal and regulatory restrictions;
° general economic conditions and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial

performance and position of the Company; and

o other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT,
AND INTERNAL AUDIT

The Board believes that a robust system of internal control and
risk management can enhance the operational efficiency and
effectiveness of the Group, as well as safeguard the Group's
assets and the Shareholders’ investments. The Board is
responsible for ensuring, maintaining, and overseeing the overall
system of internal control and risk management within the Group.
The Audit Committee assists the Board in its oversight role
regarding internal control and risk management within the Group,
reviewing and assessing the overall effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems.

The internal control and risk management systems are
documented and incorporated into the Group's business
authorization and approval process, becoming an integral part of
the overall operation of the Group.

Throughout the year under review, the Group has revised its
authorisation and approval process. This process establishes
authorisation limits for senior management of the Group's core
entity, CWT SG, as well as for the heads of major business units/
departments. It covers areas such as investments, liquidation, long-
term strategic plans, short-term plans/budgets, human resources
management, capital and expenditure. These authorisations are
also fully aligned with the relevant provisions of Chapter 13,
Chapter 14, and Chapter 14A under the Listing Rules, outlining
the approval procedures to be followed while complying with the
Listing Rules.

Each major business unit is required to prepare an annual business
plan and budget. During the preparation of these plans, the
Company, senior management of CWT SG, and the heads of
business units identify and assess any potential risks, implement
corresponding measures, and strive to manage, control, or mitigate
those risks.

The Board and the Company’s management review monthly
management reports on the operational and financial performance
of each major business unit, using the relevant business plans
and budgets to assess the actual performance of the Group.
The Company’s management, along with senior management
from each major business unit, hold regular meetings to
address monitoring issues, identify areas for improvement, and
take appropriate actions. They also review and evaluate the
effectiveness of all significant monitoring aspects.
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Throughout the year under review, the Group has revised the risk
management framework at the group level to strengthen the risk
management processes, including risk identification, assessment,
control, monitoring, and follow-up. This framework aims to better
coordinate and supervise risk management activities from a
strategic perspective. The Company’s management supports the
Board of Directors in ensuring and maintaining sound internal
control and risk management functions. They continuously review
and monitor the internal control and risk management systems and
procedures to ensure that they reasonably safeguard the Group
against significant errors and potential risks. During the review
period, the Company further developed explicit policies such as
the “Connected and Related Party Transactions Policy”, "“Notifiable
Transactions Policy” and “Communication Policy”, based on
established best practices. These policies provide clear written
guidelines for handling and disclosing related transactions and
inside information, as well as procedures for internal control.

Throughout the year under review, the Group has established
a corporate governance services team (“CGST"), consisting of
professionals from the Group's legal and internal audit, to enhance
and systematise internal controls and corporate governance within
the Group. The CGST performs internal audit services, reviews
internal control procedures, and provides legal services such
as reviewing legal documents, initiating/coordinating external
legal reviews and services, in collaboration with external legal
advisors to ensure that the Company’s business operations
comply with relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong,
Singapore, and other jurisdictions if applicable. The internal audit
function operates independently of the Company’s operations,
continuously monitoring internal control and risks faced by the
Group, and reporting to the Audit Committee. They also provide
recommendations for improvements to the internal control and risk
management systems based on their findings.

Throughout the year under review, the Board has continuously
reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's internal control systems
through the Audit Committee and the Company’'s management,
based on the monthly and semi-annual internal audit reports
submitted. The Board considers these systems to be effective
and adequate. The Board also believes that sufficient resources,
employee qualifications and experience, training programs, and
budget have been provided for the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting functions.
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Whistleblowing Policy and Anti-Corruption Policy HHREBRERERETHE

In 2022, the Company has: RZEZZF - ApaElE :

(i) revised the whistleblowing policy for employees and other (i) BRI ARBIMNRRHEK BREREMNEMF
stakeholders of the Company to raise concerns to the Audit MERNBZZESREE L - ZBGRE L
Committee, and such policy has been uploaded to the HERAQNFREAFESER &

website of Company for easy access; and

(ii) established an anti-corruption policy to promote and support (i) HIEREFHRE - DAME#E R R AE
the relevant laws and regulations. ROE o
Internal Control Review NEPEEIEEE

During the year, the Company has engaged an independent WAREE » ARG DI B H I AP IE R LAE
internal control consultant to review the internal control systems &EAREBAIEIRAZGELEF - AR B2 HIFEIN
and procedures of the Group. The following new policies and ¥ EREF - WE I BFAEDKRE :
procedures were established and voluntarily disclosed hereunder:

. business continuity and disaster recovery plan . BB R HERE
. business investment management policy and procedures . ¥R EBEERBERNER

. cash flow management system . REREEIE

. communication policy o BEEGR

. connected and related party transaction policy . Bl [ [ B 7 2 S IR

. enterprise risk management policy . EERERER

. financial reporting and disclosure manual . BRSO

. notifiable transaction policy . BT RO ZBR
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as a code of conduct
of the Company for Directors’ securities transactions.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all the Directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
and the Company's code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

Employees who are likely to possess inside information in relation
to the Company or its Shares are prohibited from dealing in Shares
during the relevant period.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s
auditor are set out as follows:

ETERFRZNEETA
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HK$'000
Services rendered FriR AR 3% JBEMTF T
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited AREAETMEEFRERAT
- Audit services - T RS 3,861
Other member firms of Baker Tilly International Baker Tilly International i i & 1\ 7]
- Audit services - FBRARTS 3,939
- Non-audit services - JEEET RIS 23
Other External Auditors H /N EEAZ AT
- Audit services - B RS 14,194
- Non-audit services - EFET RS 4,586
Total @5t 26,603
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
financial statements of the Group which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group on a going concern basis and
in presenting the annual and interim reports and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules. The Directors aim to
present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the
Group's position and prospects.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board adopted the Shareholders’ Communication Policy
reflecting the current practices of the Company for communication
with its Shareholders. Such policy aims at ensuring that the
Shareholders are provided with ready, equal and timely access
to balanced and understandable information about the Company,
in order to enable the Shareholders to exercise their rights in an
informed manner, and to allow the Shareholders to engage actively
with the Company.

To foster effect communications with Shareholders, the channels

for shareholders to communicate their views includes the

following:

(i) Through the enquiries to the share registrar of the Company

(ii) Through the corporate communication of the Company by
providing extensive information in its annual and reports

and announcements

(iii) Through the investor relation’s section of the Company's
website at www.cwtinternational.com

(iv) Through the participation of the shareholders’ meeting
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The Shareholders” Communication Policy has been uploaded to the
website of the Company as an effective means to convey to the
Shareholders and other stakeholders.

The implementation and effectiveness of the Shareholders’
Communication Policy was reviewed and the results were
satisfactory.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful
forum for the Shareholders to exchange views with the Board.
All Directors will make an effort to attend. External auditor will
also attend the annual general meeting to address Shareholders’
queries. In case of any general meeting to approve a connected
transaction or any other transaction that is subject to independent
Shareholders’ approval, members of the independent Board
committee will also make an effort to attend to address
Shareholders’ queries.

During the year, one general meeting was held, which was the
annual general meeting held on 15 December 2023 (the “2023
AGM").

The predecessor auditor of the Company, KPMG, attended the
2023 AGM. Details of the Directors’ attendance at the general
meeting of the Company held during the year are as follows:
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at the
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Executive Directors HITER

Wang Kan i v

Zhao Quan i 4

Peng Biao EAi v/
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During the year, the Company has sent the notice of the 2023
AGM to its Shareholders at least 21 days before the 2023 AGM.
Separate resolutions were proposed at the 2023 AGM on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors, and all resolutions put to vote at a general meeting
were taken by way of a poll. At the 2023 AGM, the chairman of
the meeting explained the procedures for conducting a poll and
answered questions from the Shareholders on voting by poll, if
any. The results of the poll were published on the websites of
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company
respectively.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convene a General Meeting

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights
of all Shareholders having a right to vote at general meetings can
request the Directors to call a general meeting pursuant to section
566 of the Companies Ordinance. The request must state the
general nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting, and
may include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at the meeting. Such request must
be authenticated by the Shareholder(s) making it and sent to the
Company in hard copy form or in electronic form for the attention
of the Company Secretary.

Put Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights
of all Shareholders or at least 50 Shareholders who have a relevant
right to vote at a general meeting can request the Company to
circulate to the Shareholders a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed resolution
or other business to be dealt with at that meeting pursuant to
Section 580 of the Companies Ordinance. The expenses shall be
borne by the Shareholder(s) making the request unless the meeting
concerned is an annual general meeting and the statement is
received by the Company in time for sending with the notice of the
meeting. The request must identify the statement to be circulated,
and must be authenticated by the Shareholder(s) making it and
sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form for
the attention of the Company Secretary at least 7 days before the
meeting to which it relates.
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Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights
of all Shareholders or at least 50 Shareholders who have a right to
vote on the resolution at an annual general meeting can request
the Company to give to the Shareholders notice of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance.
The request must identify the resolution of which notice is to be
given, and must be authenticated by the Shareholder(s) making it
and sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form
for the attention of the Company Secretary no later than 6 weeks
before the annual general meeting to which the requests relate, or
if later, the time at which notice of the meeting is given.

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Specific enquiries or suggestions by the Shareholders can be sent
in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at our registered
office or by email to our Company. In addition, Shareholders can
contact Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Limited, the share
registrar of the Company, if they have any enquiries about their
shareholdings and entitlement to dividend. Relevant contact details
are set out on page 7 of this annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, a new Articles was adopted at the 2023 AGM.
Details of the amendment to the Articles were set out in the
circular of the Company dated 23 November 2023. Save as
aforesaid, there is no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors herein present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a Hong Kong-based investment holding company
principally engaged in integrated logistics services and related
engineering services. The Company is also engaged in the
affiliated business of commodity marketing and financial services.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 5 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
and the financial status of the Group as at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 79 to 231 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year (2022: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business and a discussion and analysis of
the performance for the year ended 31 December 2023 and an
indication of likely future development in the business of the
Group are provided in the Chairman’s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis of this annual report. Description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group can be found
throughout this annual report, in particular Notes 2, 3 and 37 to the
consolidated financial statements. An analysis using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the Financial Highlights and
the Management Discussion and Analysis of this annual report.
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The Group is committed to promote environmental policies, during
the year:

1. Commodity Marketing

Commodity marketing business and its employees
operate in accordance with code of ethics and business
conduct policy and corporate and social responsibility
policy. The policy documents state that the company
strives to minimize detrimental environmental issues
and is committed to meeting all environmental laws and
legislation in the countries and regions in which it operates.
There have been no reported environmental issues that the
operating company is aware of during the year 2023.

2. Logistics Services

We conform with environmental regulations and take
responsibility in the way we operate to minimise
environmental impact. Our environment, health and safety
management policies guide us in our efforts to provide a
safe and environmental-friendly workplace. Through the
use of green features and more fuel-efficient strategy,
we reduce emissions from our warehouse and transport
operations. We also actively promote reduce, reuse and
recycle work practices. There were no deviations from our
environmental and safety policies and practices during the
year under review.

3. Financial Services

Due to the nature of its business, financial services
business does not have any environmental policies in place.

4. Engineering Services

We continue to maintain our ISO standards certification
on environmental, quality, occupational health and safety,
including business continuity management systems. We
have been accredited with certified facilities management
company (certified) status by Singapore International
Facility Management Association. In 2023, we embarked
on ISO 55001: Asset Management System to develop the
accountability of assets. We are pleased to announce that
we have been certified to ISO55001 in January 2024.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group complied HE-ZT-_=ZF+_-_A=+—HIFE  AEH
with all relevant applicable laws and regulations that have a DETHAREEEEAFZENMEHRBERD LR

significant impact on the Group: AR

1. Commodity Marketing

Commodity marketing business and its employees operate
in accordance with code of ethics and business conduct
policy, corporate and social responsibility policy, and global
anti-corruption policy. The policy documents state the
company's commitment to obeying the laws of Switzerland,
Singapore and other countries in which commodity
marketing conducts business, and for its actions to be
guided by the virtues of good citizenship. There have been
no reported breaches of law that the operating company is
aware of during the year 2023.

2. Logistics Services

We comply with applicable laws and regulations in countries
where we operate. In Singapore, where our core operations
are based, legislations related to our business nature mainly
include workplace safety and health, environment, road
traffic and fire safety. To the best of our knowledge, there
is no serious breach that will materially affect business
operations.

3. Financial Services

Financial services business provides financial services and
trading access to the global derivatives markets in general.
Our regulated entities Straits Financial Services Pte. Ltd.
and Straits Financial LLC come under the regulatory ambit
of the Monetary Authority of Singapore and the Commodity
Futures Trading Commission in the United States
respectively. These entities are subjected to regulatory
reporting obligations throughout the year. For the year
under review, business operations have been compliant,
and there are no significant regulatory breaches that have
hindered or threaten to hinder the continuity of the business
and existing licenses.
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4. Engineering Services

We obey and comply with the human laws and legislations
in Singapore, as well as applicable business compliance
and regulations relating to our industry. To the best of our
knowledge, there have been no reported breaches of law
that the operating company is aware of during the year
under review.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 232
of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during
the year are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity on pages 85 to 88 of this annual
report and in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year for charitable
purpose amounted to approximately HK$426,260 (2022:
HK$195,195).

4. TRER®
BAE T BB RN ) AR SO
B AREBRPTEEENEREH AR
FOER - LBRPIFTA > REBEFE - &8
REE B EFERRNERBER -

LEMBRE
AEBBEAAMBFEZEAHEEREER
B EHEHIINAFRE202E -

Y - MERRE
ER - AEENE - BERRBEHZHERD
REAMERERMETIS -

EEIS

=MIFE32

fit

ER - ARERAATREREED 2 HE5 AR5
RAFRESAZESBH L HFARBEHE R
AR BEAMES2 -

B

FR - AEBEE ZEZZBRLO A EAL26,260
(T4 : B#195,1957T) °

58
@ CWT International Limited / 20234 4 i



DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual
report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Wang Kan

Zhao Quan

Peng Biao

Yan Shen (resigned on 7 August 2023)
Xu Xu (appointed on 7 August 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Leung Shun Sang, Tony

Liem Chi Kit, Kevin

Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey

Li Yifei (appointed on 20 November 2023)

In accordance with article 104(A) of the Articles of Association,
Mr. Wang Kan, Mr. Peng Biao and Mr. Leung Shun Sang, Tony
will retire and, are eligible for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

DIRECTORS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

A list of names of the directors who held office in the
Company's subsidiaries during the year and up to the date
of this annual report is available on the Company’s website
(www.cwtinternational.com).

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service agreement with the Company,
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

The Directors who held office as at 31 December 2023 had the
following interests in the Shares and underlying Shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2023 as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code:

EERRSTHRAERKRSD
MHEROREEZE ZEZRAR

X

R-ZZF-=F+-_A=+—H EEFE=N%H
EARRBZ B KBRS EE AL ARIERES
KREIEIGPIFEI621RB TREFZERM - HRIE
RRETRIZEBA AR B MR P2 AT

Long Positions in the Shares of the Company REATRGBZHER
Total interests
as to % of the
issued share
Numbers of capital of the
Capacity in which Shares in Company as at
Name of Director interests were held Class of Shares the Company 31 December 2023
BERGARDT
R-s=-=#f
RAEDRZ +-A=+—-H
Y RERZZEN B 63 48 5l RHEE ERITRAZEDL
Leung Shun Sang, Tony  Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 20,000,000 0.18%

R4 ERBAEA Tk

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors, chief executives or their respective associates had
any other personal, family, corporate and other interests or short
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

No right to subscribe for equity or debt securities of the Company
has been granted by the Company to, nor have any such rights
been exercised by, any Directors or chief executives (including
their spouses or children under 18 years of age) during the year
ended 31 December 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” in this annual report, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective spouses or
children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in which
a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE BETWEEN
THE COMPANY OR ANY OF ITS SUBSIDIARIES
AND A CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER OR
ANY OF ITS SUBSIDIARIES

During the financial year, except those disclosed in the section
headed "“Connected Transaction” hereunder, there was no contract
of significance between the Company, or any of its subsidiaries,
and a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the year, no Director has been recorded as having interests
in the businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the Group
from their risk exposure arising from the businesses of the Group.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER

THE SFO

As at 31 December 2023, to the best knowledge of the Company
and according to the information as shown only in the register
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, the following
companies and persons had interests in the Shares and/or
underlying Shares which fell to be disclosed to the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Long Positions in the Shares/Underlying Shares

REIFSRBERAETREZRR
EERRA

z

RZEZ=F+=-—A=+—8  BARRAE
M RBEARFEIEE S KB KHE 33615
GzBRMARzER  THRARREATRES
k/SAEBARGFEER  MAREES NEE
1&BIEEXVERE 2 R B3 B M AN A R EE -

RRG,HERDZEFR

Interests as to %

Number of of the issued
Shares/ share capital of
Capacity in which underlying the Company as at
Name of Shareholder interests were held Class of Shares Shares 31December 2023  Note
£ NG|
y R-BZZ=F
R,/ 8 +=B=+-H
RRER HERZEZSH R4 8 5l ROEE eRfTREzESL M
Hong Kong HNA Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 4,734,008,489 41.53% 1
EEEM BaEBA gL
HNA Holding International Co., Limited Interests of controlled  Ordinary shares 4,734,008,489 41.53% 1
("HNA Holding International ") _ corporations
EMEXRRERAR(EMEERAR]) BEBE#R LRk
HNA Logistics Group Co., Ltd.* Interests of controlled  Ordinary shares 4,734,008,489 41.563% 1
("HNA Logistics”) corporations
EmnEEERAR (DERWR]) REE 7 #n LRk
HNA Holding Group Co., Ltd.* Interests of controlled  Ordinary shares 4,734,008,489 41.563% 1
("HNA Holding Group”) _ corporations
EMEXSEERAG(BHEERE]) mEBE#ER LRk
Shanghai Daxinhua Investment Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 1,109,244,000 9.73% 1
Management Co., Ltd.*
("Shanghai Daxinhua”)
PERHEREERARDT ERBEAA LimA
(I EBRHE])
HNA Express Investment (Shanghai) Interests of controlled ~ Ordinary shares 1,109,244,000 9.73% 1
Co., Ltd.* ("HNA Express") corporations
EMRERE(LEBRAR RIEER B Rl
(IgfEE )
HNA Asset Management Group Co., Ltd Interests of controlled  Ordinary shares 1,109,244,000 9.73% 1
(THNA Asset Management ). __corporations
BREEEESEARAR RIPER 2 B LRk
(BmEEER])
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Interests as to %

Number of of the issued
Shares/ share capital of
Capacity in which underlying the Company as at
Name of Shareholder interests were held Class of Shares Shares 31 December 2023  Note
5 RN
R-B-ZF
B4,/ 4B +=A=+-H
BRRAE FERZZ 57 R RAEE BRAREAZARL Mt
HNA Group Interests of controlled  Ordinary shares 1,109,244,000 9.73% 1
corporations
AMEE RIEER LimA
HNA Trust Management Interests of controlled  Ordinary shares 5,843,252,489 51.26% 1
corporations
BMEE RIEER LimA
CITIC Trust Corporation Ltd.* Trustee of a trust Ordinary shares 5,843,252,489 51.26% 1
("CITIC Trust”)
REEEEREARA(HEERED EREXFA LimA
Everbright Xinglong Trust Co., Ltd.* Trustee of a trust Ordinary shares 5,843,252,489 51.26% 1

("Everbright Xinglong”)

KARBEREEFEREERR(HAERE))

Note:

1.

EREXEA TR

As at 31 December 2023, the trustees of the Trust are CITIC Trust
and Everbright Xinglong (the “Trustees”). The Trust is created for
the implementation of the Restructuring Plan and for the benefit of
all the creditors of the 321 companies (including HNA Group). The
Trust is the controlling shareholder of HNA Trust Management, and
HNA Trust Management is established as the holding company
of 321 companies pursuant to the Restructuring Plan. HNA
Trust Management directly owns 100% shares in each of HNA
Holding Group, HNA Group, HNA Asset Management and HNA
Capital Group Co., Ltd* ("HNA Capital”) (& & AEBHR A
7)) respectively. For details, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 31 January 2021, 10 February 2021, 15 March
2021, 25 October 2021 and 1 November 2021.

HNA Holding Group directly owns 100% shares of HNA Logistics,
which in turn directly owns 100% shares of HNA Holding
International, a company that directly owns 100% shares of Hong
Kong HNA. Hong Kong HNA beneficially owns 4,734,008,489
Shares (being 41.53%).

HNA Asset Management directly owns 100% shares of HNA
Express, which in turn directly owns approximately 43.48% shares
of Shanghai Daxinhua. HNA Group directly owns approximately
45.65% shares of Shanghai Daxinhua. The remaining approximately
10.87% shares of Shanghai Daxinhua is held by HNA Capital.
Shanghai Daxinhua beneficially owns 1,109,244,000 Shares (being
9.73%).
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, there is a
sufficiency of public float of the Company’s securities as required
under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities (whether
on the Stock Exchange or otherwise) during the year ended 31
December 2023.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have any
reserves available for distribution as calculated in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Companies Ordinance.

The Company’s capital reserve represents a non-distributable
reserve.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, MAJOR
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for less than 30% of the total sales from
continuing operations for the year. Purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the total
purchases relating to continuing operations for the year. None of
the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company's issued Shares) had any interest in the Group's
five largest customers and suppliers.
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Commodity Marketing

Commodity marketing business operates its business with
integrity, fairness and openness, guided by its code of ethics
and business conduct. We treat all employees, customers and
suppliers equitably, honestly, and with good management in order
to ensure a harmonious and safe working environment. There
were neither significant infringements nor deviation from our usual
practices that the relevant company is aware of during the course
of 2023.

Logistics Services

We are committed to a conducive working environment and treat
all our stakeholders with fairness and integrity. We engage with
employees, customers and suppliers to review processes and
improve performance while forging strong relationships. Our active
interactions with stakeholders keep us on top of things and help
shape our business plans and strategies. No anomalies with regard
to our stakeholder management and business conduct were
brought to our attention during the year under review.

Financial Services

We are committed to the ethical treatment of all our stakeholders.
For our employees, we are committed to honesty, just
management and fairness, providing a safe environment, and
respecting the dignity due to everyone. The relevant company
strictly observes all safe management requirements, to ensure
the safety of our employees and business continuity. For our
customers, we value them as our business partners and are
committed to provide them with value for money services. For
our suppliers, we value them as our business partners and are
committed to fair competition and the sense of responsibility
required of a good customer and partner.

Engineering Services

As a responsible company, we adhere to employment and trade
union legislations in Singapore, as well as applicable business
regulations relating to our industry. We value and foster positive
relationships with our employees, customers, suppliers and
subcontractors. We also work with the local union and the
government to support tripartite partnership among the employer,
employees and the authorities. We uphold integrity, fairness and
transparency in our dealings with our stakeholders and expect
the same from them. There has been no reported breach of law
committed during in the year 2023.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETEHEE

BAmES
BmEBEZEHHEBRTRIRERERTES - A
BE - AFREHEEEEBELER - AT

BB FABEREE - BEPREER  WEAR
HERE  URRIERRMELZE2 R-2T_=
F o HBEARY AR EMEREEEMIRER
MAEERNER

Y57 BR %5

BB 2 EE @O TERE - WARFHMHE
MEEHEFMERNHE - HAEES - TP RH#
EEBE RAAERRERR  RABEILE
B REER - RAEFNERGES - EUAEER
- A BHIE XM & R RES - REBEFEA -
B A MERFFOEEREREBRT A EM
HENBR

= b AR 75

BABONETEBREOTAHFAERNE - 51
BEMS - HAIBANHETHE - 2EEE - 218
RFFE BELZERE  YHEREENE
B - HEAAREBBEBTHALEEERT - Ui
REEMRZEREBAFKENL - LEPME » I
PIREBEBRME BN ARSRES R REIE
B-pftEEmE  RPAIRES/EBEH - B
REAFHRFARFROETFPEEHEENEL

IRER®K

EA—MBaEEMRR BB I BRI
¥EMITgrEE URBERMTERENERRE
¥EE  cHRMERTLERES  BF - #HEBRS
BEBRYREIBEER ZMATHE T e LENE
B ZHEX - RERERERZHEMN=ZFAIE &K
MEEFBHENRSGHERFHE 2 FEREHD
REN WHARMPIREITTE - R =% - #f
ERREAMEREENRS -

65
2023 Annual Report / CWT International Limited O



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETEHREE

We are collaborating with local companies on projects aimed at
providing waste-to-energy solutions for our customers’ assets.
This will reduce carbon emissions and enable ourselves and our
customers to create a sustainable and greener environment for
future generations through technology and innovation.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The following is the connected transaction during the year:

On 8 March 2023, Hainan Xuntong International Logistics Co.,
Ltd.* (8maVBBREYRABR AR, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a joint venture agreement
(the "Joint Venture Agreement”) with Hainan Xuansong Trading
Co., Ltd.* (BE#EE 5 EMR2AF]) ("Hainan Xuansong").
Pursuant to the Joint Venture Agreement, the said parties agreed
to establish Hainan Xuangi International Trade Co., Ltd.* (/& F &
B S HBR/AF]) (“Hainan Xuanqi”) to jointly cooperate on the
procurement and sales of bulk commodities, to provide customers
with supportive value-added services such as transportation,
warehousing, and risk management, and to build an integrated
comprehensive service system with bulk commodity trade as the
core of the system.

Hainan Xuansong is an indirect subsidiary of HNA Trust
Management which is a controlling Shareholder holding
approximately 51.26% of the total issued Shares. Therefore,
Hainan Xuansong is a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As such, the entering into of
the Joint Venture Agreement and the formation of Hainan Xuanqi
constituted a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the terms of the Joint Venture Agreement, Hainan
Xuntong and Hainan Xuansong would own 10% and 90% of the
registered capital of the joint venture company, Hainan Xuangi,
respectively. As Hainan Xuntong would only hold 10% equity
interest of Hainan Xuanqi, Hainan Xuangi would not become a
subsidiary of the Company after its establishment. For further
details (including total consideration and terms), please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 8 March 2023.

There was no related party transaction in Note 38(a), (b) and (c) of
the consolidated financial statements which took place during the
year constitutes connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction under the Listing Rules. The Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules during the year.
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Note:

On 8 January 2024, CWT Globelink Pte. Ltd. (“CWT Globelink”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Mr. Joaquin Pueyo
Giménez ("Mr. Giménez") entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the
“Sale and Purchase Agreement”). Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase
Agreement, CWT Globelink agreed to acquire, and Mr. Giménez agreed to
sell, 360 shares of Globelink Uniexco, S.L. ("GL Uniexco") (representing
30% of the total issued shares of GL Uniexco) at a total consideration
of EUR4,800,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$41,040,000). Upon
completion, CWT Globelink would hold 86% of the issued share capital
of GL Uniexco and GL Uniexco would remain as a subsidiary of CWT
Globelink and the Group. The consideration amount would be supported by
internal resources of CWT Globelink.

As GL Uniexco is a subsidiary of the Group and Mr. Giménez held 44% of
the issued share capital of the GL Uniexco before the entering into of the
Sale and Purchase Agreement, thus Mr. Giménez is a connected person
of the Company at the subsidiary level. As such, the entering into of the
sale and purchase agreement constituted a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For further details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 8 January 2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 25 to 54 of this annual
report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Please refer to the note of the section headed “Connected
Transaction” above.

AUDITOR

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 15
December 2023, KPMG retired and Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
was appointed as auditor of the Company. Save as disclosed
above, there was no other changes in the Company’s auditor in
the past three years.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETEHEE
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Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited will retire and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, at which a resolution for re-appointment of
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company will be
proposed.

By order of the Board
Wang Kan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024

*  For identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

@ ? bakertilly
K B [k

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
CWT International Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

=

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CWT
International Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 79 to 231, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2023, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policy information.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter
described in the Basis for qualified opinion section of our report,
the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the predecessor
independent auditor (the “Predecessor”) identified 140
transactions (the “140 Transactions”) that involved repeated
transfers of titles of gold concentrates with the same group of
counterparties (the “Counterparties”) within a short timeframe
and their commercial substance was unclear.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (continued)

The 140 Transactions resulted in a gross transaction sale value of
US$1,608,740,000 (approximately HK$12,599,652,000) and gross
transaction purchase value of US$1,608,580,000 (approximately
HK$12,598,399,000). These amounts were recognised by
the Company on a net basis, resulting in a net revenue of
US$160,000 (approximately HK$1,253,000) in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 December 2022. It was also identified that
commissions of US$310,000 (approximately HK$2,428,000)
(the "Commissions”) were paid to the Counterparties involved
in the 140 Transactions. As a result of these transactions, the
Group recorded a trade receivables balance of US$1,256,801,000
(approximately HK$9,793,370,000) and a trade payables balance
of US$1,236,565,000 (approximately HK$9,635,685,000) as at 31
December 2022.

The Predecessor was unable to substantiate the commercial
substance of the 140 Transactions, the Commissions and
the relationship with the Counterparties. Consequently, the
Predecessor was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to determine whether the effects of the 140 Transactions
and the Commissions have been properly accounted for and
disclosed including the accuracy and completeness of related
party transactions. The Predecessor’s opinion on the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 was qualified accordingly. As disclosed in Note 2(a) to the
consolidated financial statements, during the year ended 31
December 2023, all balances resulted from the 140 Transactions
have been settled and there were no transactions with the
Counterparties nor related balances as at 31 December 2023. The
Group has also ceased the operation of the relevant structured
trading services during the year. Our opinion on the current year's
consolidated financial statements of the Group is also qualified
only because of the possible effects of the foregoing matter on
the comparative information and the opening balances of trade
receivables and trade payables for the year ended 31 December
2023.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“"HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code"”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

REERNER®

140IBR FEERHIBEEHE1,608,740,000
XL (445 %12,599,652,0007T) kX 5 R4
¥61,608,580,0003 7T (4775 %12,598,399,000
JL) o BARIRFEAERRZELHE  EBHR
HE-_ZTZ-—F+-_A=+—HIFEHRLEER
N E b 2 U e R F WA 160,000 T (475 #
1,253,0007T) ° BHNEEIFE M140IBR 5 MY
F 77 % 14310,0003 7T (4775 % 2,428,0007T) K91
(L))  BARZEXIHINEER  RZT==
F+ZA=+—H X EBE5EHGEKEZERE
##41,256,801,0003% 7T (478 %9,793,370,0007T)
RSB ZERIE&R1,236,565,0003% 7T ()78 1
9,635,685,0007T) °

AIZEMELEFEI40BERINEERNS - B
A RESFHREER - Bt - ATZEANEEES
ROBENENZE  UBT140EXZZRAS
WEEBREEZAAERRER  BREEBHIRIH
EREMRTEMN - AIZESAMY BESEHZEZZT
T+ A+ HLEFEMNRATBHRERD
BRBEEFRE - MR A HERERM E2(a)
FIiRE #E_ZT-_=F+-_A=+—HItFE
B 140BXSERNRALHBEEN A=
T+ A=+ B EAHFHETRS
kg - BEBENTERFRELEBEERE
MEZRIEHEE - EREN LM EEITEH LR
BRI EBEE-E-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE
EUWESRENENESRENPVEHREEY
2 ZMY BESERENFENGRETBRERD
BERIEFRE -

BPEREBESHMASRMNFEE LR
((EREFHEYDETES - RPEZFELT
AENEEDEARNREZBERET 76 MR
RAEAFEZBETIBOPIEE— SR - RBEEES
AR AEEMMER S EERTRI(TFRD)
BFBLR BEEE - YCRETRIBETEME
BEME - RAAE - RAMESHETRERESR
REEZWRERMINET T RIRHEER -

70
Q CWT International Limited / 2023 F 4 =&



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

OTHER MATTERS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022 were audited by the Predecessor whose
report dated 17 September 2023 expressed a qualified opinion on
those consolidated financial statements as described in the Basis
for qualified opinion section of our report.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matters described in the Basis
for qualified opinion section, we have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated
in our report.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

The key audit matter
BREAEE

HREETEEG

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANETNAEEZSE

Recognition and measurement of revenue
generated from commodity marketing revenue

AmEZRARIRTE

We identified recognition and measurement of commodity
marketing revenue as a key audit matter as it is quantitatively
significant to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. In addition, the volume of transactions
increases the risk of error in the recognition of revenue and
judgement is involved in estimating the price adjustments of
affected commodities at the end of the reporting period.

AR EHE LHGEERREMEERERABERESE - WEKM
BEAMmBSIBACZERKFEAMBESFTIE - I XFHTEE
EINERERRA R - ARRERRETHEEX T ERm 2B
BT L R A

Commodity marketing revenue generated from sales of metal
concentrates with physical delivery are recognised at the point
of transfer of control of the commodity. The Group estimates
the fair value of the consideration under the sales contract with
reference to the forward price for the month of settlement, and
provisionally estimates the quality and quantity of the commodity.
These estimates are provisional as they are subject to a final assay
and weight certificates carried out by an independent third party.
At settlement, the amount of the receivable is fixed based on the
spot price of the commodity at certain dates and the confirmed
metal contents and quantities with any differences between the
actual and provisional sales amounts being recognised in revenue.
BREVYIANEESBBBEEENARE HMAREEEmAOE
I ER - BEEE2ZLEEEANERAERAFHEESNIE
TREZAABEVERGAAmNEERHNE - RREFMART
BUF-FTHSRETAREEEFEMNTE  EmMZEHitAERG
e REER - BRFIENSEDEEEmRNE THENBAEER
LFERNEESERBEET  ERHERRE THERCHANE
AZEERPARER -

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition
and measurement of commodity marketing
revenue included the following:
BMARTEERESRABRLTENETE
FELAT&IE -

° evaluating the design and implementation
of key internal controls which govern
the recognition and measurement of
commodity marketing revenue;

J REENRESRARRRFTENEER
ERECIEIE I - AT E R R B

o inspecting the sale and purchase
agreements, on a sample basis for each
type of commodity marketing transactions,
to understand the terms and evaluate the
appropriateness of revenue recognition,
measurement and presentation with
reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;
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A2 BB AER - 5T E RII®
AARREN

o comparing, on a sample basis, revenue
transactions recorded during the year
with the underlying sale and purchase
agreements, bills of lading, invoices and
bank-in slips for settled balance and
assessing whether the related revenue
had been recognised in accordance with
the Group’s revenue recognition policies;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BERETEE®
The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BREASHE BN EFTNAREEZSEE

Recognition and measurement of revenue
generated from commodity marketing revenue (continued)

AmESWARIRE G

An analysis and accounting policy of the Group’s revenue for the comparing, on a sample basis, specific

year is set out in Notes 2(v) and 4 to the consolidated financial revenue transactions recorded before and
statements respectively. after the financial year end date with the
EEERFRANKRASTREFEER S BIE R GRS B IREM T underlying sale and purchase agreements
2(v) 24 - and bills of lading to determine whether

the related revenue had been recognised
in the appropriate financial period; and
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o evaluating the accuracy of the inputs
adopted by management in valuing
provisional sales amounts by agreeing,
on a sample basis, i) the provisional
prices to the forward prices provided by
brokers; and ii) quantities and qualities of
commodities to underlying documents
such as sale agreements and the final
assay and weight certificates.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. As described in the Basis for qualified
opinion section above, we were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate evidence about the possible effects arising from
the 140 Transactions and the Commissions on the comparative
information and the opening balances of trade receivables and
trade payables for the year ended 31 December 2023. Accordingly,
we are unable to conclude whether or not the other information is
materially misstated with respect to the amounts or other items in
the annual report affected by this matter.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B % B R S

REPORT ON OTHER MATTERS UNDER
SECTION 407(2) AND 407(3) OF THE HONG
KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE

In respect of the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the possible effect of the 140 Transactions and
the Commissions on the comparative information and the opening
balances as described in the Basis for qualified opinion section of
our report above:

° We were unable to determine whether adequate accounting
records had been kept; and

° We have not obtained all the information or explanations
that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, are necessary
and material for the purpose of the audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Del Rosario, Faith Corazon.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024

Del Rosario, Faith Corazon

Practising certificate number P06143
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeEakHEMaE2ERE R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

2023 2022
—E=F —E -
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
Hat BETF T BT T
(Restated)
(A& E %)
Continuing operations FESEER
Revenue WA 4 37,226,295 38,689,030
Cost of sales SHE A (35,580,059) (36,970,498)
Gross profit EA 1,646,236 1,718,532
Other income HAb U A 6 505,175 234,290
Other net (loss)/gain Hib(BB) WS FHE 7 (234,886) 27,433
Selling and distribution costs HERDIHER (464,883) (434,026)
Administrative expenses THAX (795,267) (755,421)
Finance costs B & RS 8 (521,251) (368,233)
Share of profits less losses of associates, 75 H 2 7134 FE E5 18 (30
net of tax BiIR) 38,571 67,433
Share of profits less losses of joint DA B R TR EE (30
venture, net of tax FMRELIR) 5,670 (29)
Profit before taxation B A5 B4 A 9 179,365 489,979
Income tax expense FrigHif > 10 (121,642) (118,277)
Profit for the year from continuing REFELEEBNTERT
operations 57,723 371,702
Discontinued operation ERIEREER
Profit/(loss) for the year from REERIEEEEBHFE
discontinued operation wm Al (E518) 13 21,471 (116,613)
Profit for the year FREm 79,194 255,089

The notes on pages 91 to 231 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REBREREMGEEKEXR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ ~F =41~ H =1 —HILF &

2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-—
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
HtaF BETF T BT T
(Restated)
(A& E %)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ HitbZ2m(BIx%), W3 :
income:
Items that will not be reclassified to TEEH 7 HEEREZHEE -
profit or loss:
Defined benefit plan remeasurements EHRTEREFEE (10,316) 28,698
Tax on defined benefit plan EHAERMETEITIE
remeasurements 1,219 (3,418)
Net changes in fair value of financial BRARBEGFAEMEEmREE
assets measured at FVOCI JEMEELAREBEE
E)FE - (105)
(9,097) 200, 17/
Items that may be reclassified HEEUEES 7 BEBEHZ
subsequently to profit or loss, net of  EH (HIBREHE) :
nil tax:
Exchange differences arising from BMEGING B A R SRR E
translation of financial statements of BN ERE
overseas subsidiaries 30,741 (99,805)
Exchange differences reclassified to profit M ENBARIFEHHES
or loss on disposal of subsidiaries B [E N =5 5,724 (5,550)
Effective portion of changes in fair value IR&REL P2 AR EEE
of cash flow hedges H B BED (2,534) 7,806
Share of other comprehensive expense of D HEEE AR REEHEZH
associates and joint ventures HEERAY (1,462) (3,654)
32,469 (101,203)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) FEEM 2wz (F)
for the year 23,372 (76,028)
Total comprehensive income for the year /€ 2 HE K& EE 102,566 179,061

The notes on pages 91 to 231 form part of these consolidated ZF91E231 B 2 M #BKE A M EREK 2 — 38
financial statements. % o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mREBREREMEZERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

2023 2022
—E=F —E -
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
Hat BETF T BT T
(Restated)
(A& E %)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: N TATEEFEERF,
(Bs518) -
Owners of the Company KRBEEA A
- from continuing operations - REFELEER 17,733 270,036
~ from discontinued operation - REBERIEREFES 21,360 (116,823)
39,093 153,213
Non-controlling interests IR =
- from continuing operations - REBERLEER 39,990 101,666
~ from discontinued operation - RE R IEREFET 111 210
40,101 101,876
Profit for the year FEHF 79,194 255,089
Total comprehensive income from AT ALTRGREFELE
continuing and discontinued operations ~ BNMEKRILELERK Z 2H
attributable to: sk 45
Owners of the Company ZN/NETEZZE N 60,400 92,697
Non-controlling interests AR 42,166 86,364
Total comprehensive income for the year &€ 2 HE K& EE 102,566 179,061
Earnings per share BRER 14
Basic and diluted (HK cents) — from AR REE(BI)- 2REF
continuing and discontinued BIEENERIEEEER
operations 0.34 1.34
Basic and diluted (HK cents) = from ER RS (B I)- kB
continuing operations BELEER 0.16 2.37

The notes on pages 91 to 231 form part of these consolidated 91 E231 B 2 M #EKE S M IE®REK 2 — 3B
financial statements. % o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
a5 B35 IR R 3R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 ¥ & =4+ —-H=41—H

2023 2022
—EB-=F —=E-=
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
HtaF BETF T BT T
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BE A& 15 3,399,267 3,483,141
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 16 2,150,935 2,266,476
Intangible assets BAE 17 134,019 159,583
Interests in associates AN e 18 292,363 203,717
Interests in joint ventures NG & ERE R 19 139,372 212,208
Other financial assets HEther&EE 20 30,447 196,682
Prepayments, deposits and other FERHIE - Be Rk
receivables H At R RIE 23 82,350 29,521
Other non-current assets HEMIEREEE 18,532 18,487
Derivative financial instruments PTEERMIA 37(e) 8,313 39,121
Deferred tax assets RIEN AR B 31 60,383 57,165
6,315,981 6,666,101
Current assets REBEE
Other financial assets HEmemEE 20 1,337,753 1,412,592
Inventories FE 21 2,984,637 3,234,355
Trade receivables FEWE 5 8R1E 22 2,275,364 12,392,161
Prepayments, deposits and other FERRIE - ke k
receivables H At lE U FRIE 23 9,946,945 10,310,826
Contract assets BHEE 24 112,416 97,778
Derivative financial instruments PTEEMIA 37(e) 288,252 598,484
Tax recoverable AT E B E 32,966 13,089
Pledged bank deposits BEIRRITIE R 25(e) 145,075 169,429
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeFHEER 25(a) 1,998,840 1,609,650
19,122,248 29,838,364

The notes on pages 91 to 231 form part of these consolidated Z91E231 B 2 M EKE S M IE®RE 2 — 3B
financial statements. % o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R a M AROR R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 ¥ ~F = =41 _-H=1—H

2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-—
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
k23 BT T BT
Current liabilities REBEE
Contract liabilities aHAR 24 58,485 173,763
Trade and other payables ENESRBENEMEMNZKIE 26 11,606,176 22,163,537
Loans and borrowings B R ER 27 4,201,446 4,177,317
Lease liabilities HEAE 29(a) 289,875 299,313
Derivative financial instruments PTEESMTA 37(e) 496,693 645,476
Current tax payable FEAT & EAB IR 64,943 63,496
16,717,618 27,522,902
Net current assets REBEEFE 2,404,630 2,315,462
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAS 8,720,611 8,981,563
The notes on pages 91 to 231 form part of these consolidated S 91E231H 2 WEBR G A MIEHRE 2 — &
financial statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
E AR R R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 ¥ & =4+ —-H=41—H

2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-—
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
HtaF BETF T BT T
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Trade and other payables ENESRBEREMENTKIE 26 130,705 107,504
Loans and borrowings BERRER 27 1,444,832 1,554,779
Lease liabilities HEBE 29(a) 2,059,737 2,154,913
Derivative financial instruments PTEEMIA 37(e) 11,089 65,904
Defined benefit obligations FUIE fa M I 30(b) 27,046 17,871
Deferred tax liabilities REHIEBE 31 249,040 249,390
3,922,449 4,150,361
Net assets EEFRE 4,798,162 4,831,202
Capital and reserves BAR#E 32
Share capital [N 4,731,480 4,731,480
Reserves & (60,199) (101,480)
Equity attributable to owners of RABEE ANEEER
the Company 4,671,281 4,630,000
Non-controlling interests AR 126,881 201,202
Total equity R 4,798,162 4,831,202

The consolidated financial statements on pages 79 to 231 were F79ZE231H Z R A UBHREER _ZE_NF =
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 A -+t BEESS L RETE - Wh 15

March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by: BEEREFER
Wang Kan Zhao Quan

=i izt o

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

E -

The notes on pages 91 to 231 form part of these consolidated Z91E231 B Z M EKEE M IE®RE 2 — 5B
financial statements. % o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KRRRARRER
Fair Perpetual Attributable to
Share valug Capital ~ Translation Hedging Statutory  Accumulated capital non-controlling
capital 1eServe 1eServe reserve reserve reserve losses ~ instrument Subtotal interests Total
AEE FalEs

i BE  ERBE  EMBE  UMER  AwEE EHER WRIIR it il ait
HSO0 SO0 SO0 SO0 SO AU ASUR MO WSO SO (SO0
TR BRETT EkFn BRFn BRTn BETR BRTR BRTR EETT BRTn BT

At 1 January 2022 nk: b3
-B-BzE# 4,731,480 (81) 2215 90,538) Ti4 9333 (1934,712) 1,819,390 4,537,861 185,448 4,723,309
Profit or the year FEEA - = = = = = 163213 = 163213 101876 255,089

Other comprehensive (expensel/income Hb2E R/ ki

Defined benefit plan remeasurements EftAERHE = = = = - - 28,69 - 28,69 - 28,698
Tax on defined benefit plan remeasurements  EERTEHEHE - - - - - - (3418 - (3418) - (3418
Net changes n fair value of financial assets RAREEALEE
measured at FVOC b SRAEDALE
EEG5E - 99) - - - - - - (99) (6} (105)
Exchange differences arising from tranlation of &SN B A B AS
financial statements of overseas subsidiaries  REEZEZEZE - (1) - (84.407) - 109 - - (84,299) (15,506) (99,805)
Exchange differences reclassfied toprofitor  HENBLARBERAE
Joss on disposal of subsidiaries SERNESZE - - - (5,550) = = = = [5,550) = (5,550)
Eftective porton of changes in fairvalue of cash B4 REH iV AL EE
flow hedges FERNENSG - - - - 7806 - - - 7806 - 7,806
Share of other comprehensive incomeflexpense) A EBELRIRAEEE
of associates and joint ventures JEMRERE /() - - 3 (2740 - 91 23,659 - (3,654 - (3,654)

Total other comprehensive (expenselfincome  Ef2E (B%) /Wi
a% - 100) 3 (117,364) 7,806 200 48939 - 60,516) (15512) (76,028)

Total comprehensive (expenselfincome forthe  EE2E(ER) /i
year 28 - (100) 3 (117,364) 7806 200 202,152 - 92,697 86,364 179,061

The notes on pages 91 to 231 form part of these consolidated ZF91E231 B 2 M EKE S M EREX 2 — 38
financial statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERZEDHXR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =41~ H=1—HILFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARAERREER
Fair Perpetual Attributable to
Share value Capital ~ Translation Hedging Statutory  Accumulated capital non-controlling
capital  reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses instrument  Sub-total interests Total
A
v BE  ENEE  ENEE  UMEE  feRB ZitFR  AABARIR NGt kEREREE A%
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000

ERTL EETR  ARTr BT BRTn BETx E¥TR BRI BETR BETT EETT

Acquisition from non-controlling interests RIEERERNE - - - (558) - - - = (558) 10460 9902
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests AR RS = = = = = - - - - 81,070/ (81,070)
Transfer to statutory reserve in compliance with ~ BHA BN BB £E
foreign entitles' statutory requirements REEEZIERE - = = = = 2173 2173) = = = S
- - - (558) - 2173 2173) - (558) (70,610 (71,168)
Balance at 31 December 2022 i a2
TZAZT-BzER 4731480 (181) 2218 (208,460) 8,680 11,706 (1,734,733) 1,819,390 4,630,000 201202 4,831,202

The notes on pages 91 to 231 form part of these consolidated Z91E 231 B B G AT KRR 2 — 56
financial statements. o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REEZEHX

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ROARERRER
Attributable
Fair Perpetual to non-
Share value Capital ~ Translation Hedging Statutory  Accumulated capital controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses ~ instrument Sub-total interests Total
MER
e i Exif Eif bapl- 14 HERE ZitFE  AAEKIA Nt FEREREL it
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$ 000 HKS$'000 HKS 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A¥Fr  E¥Fr E¥Fn BEFn BEFn BEFn BEFn BEFn BEFn BEFn BEFR
At 1 January 2023 W-Ezzf
-B-RzEH 4731480 (181) 2,218 (208,460) 8,580 11,706 (1,734,733) 1,819,390 4,630,000 201,202 4,831,202
Proftfor the year FEER - - - - - - 39,03 - 39,093 40,101 79,19
Other comprehensive (expense)/income H2E@R)/ b
Defined benefit plan remeasurements Ef AT R - - - - - - 10.316) - 10,316) - (10316)
Tax on defined benefit plan remeasurements  EfERERAEHE - - - - - - 1219 - 1219 - 1219
Exchange diferences arsing from translation of 2B ENHBARE KSR
financial statements of overseas subsidaries ~ REEZEREE - (3) - 28,434 - u5 - - 28,676 2,065 30,741
Exchange differences rechssified toprofitor ~ HENBAARERAE
Joss on disposal of subsidiaries FERNENZE - - - 5,724 - - - - 5,724 - 5,724
Effective porton of changes in fairvalue of cash B TEH R AAEE
flow hedges 2YrNENSH - - - - (2534 - - - (2534) - (25534)
Share of other comprehensive income/ HEBELARAY
(expense) of associates and joint ventures PECEBRE
Wi/ (B%) - - 8 (24,768) - 292 23,006 - (1462) - (1,462)
Totd other comprehensive fexpenselincome £ 2E(R0)/ 1548 - ] 8 9390 (2534) 537 13909 - 21307 2,065 831
Total comprehensive (expenselincome for e~ ER2E(F)/ WitE
year - 4] 8 9,390 (2534) 531 53,002 - 60,400 42,166 102,566

The notes on pages 91 to 231 form part of these consolidated FI91E231B 2B RGEMBEHRE 22—

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mARDmEER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =41~ H=1—HILFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AAAEERRES
Fair Perpetual Attributable to
Share value Capital ~ Translation Hedging  Statutory  Accumulated capital non-controlling
capital  reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses instrument  Sub-total interests  Total
MEE
k& s EARE  EXARE  HARE  iRERE ZitFE  XAEKIR Mt FEREEEE A
HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS$'000  HKS'000

BNTn EETR  EETR ERTR BRTn BRTx BRTR BRTL ERTR BRTL ERTR

Capital reduction of a non-wholly-owned -2 ENBLARRE
subsidliary - - (4,867) 5,381 - - - - 514 (3,763)  (3.249)
Capital contribution by non-controling interests ~ JERRIEZ T & - - - - - - - - - 4 4

Dividend paid to non-controling interests MIEERERS N RS - - - - - - - i
Changes in non-controling interest (Note 3200)) 3R IEEEE)

(101,664 (101,664)

(HE321a) - - (26,507) (1,243) - - - - (21,750) (9,349)  (37,009)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAT - - 4,867 3,250 - - - -8 (1,758) 6,359
Transfer to statutory reserve in compliance with ~ AHAGIEEZ
foreign entitles' statutory requirements EERTERE
ERRA - - - - - 2,248 (2.248) - - - -
- - (26,507) 7,388 - 2,48 (2,248) - (19119 (116,487) (135,606)
Balance at 31 December 2023 RZB-=f%
TZAZt-HZEE 4731480 (184) (24,281) (191,682) 6,046 14491 (1,683,979) 1,819,390 4,671,281 126,881 4,798,162

The notes on pages 91 to 231 form part of these consolidated 91 ZE231HE Z WHEBKGAP KRR 2 — 30
financial statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
N R T

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-—
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
HtaF BETF T BT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETE
Cash generated from operations BEXEBRECRE 25(b) 951,001 2,009,556
Interest paid EfTFE 25(c) (323,762) (181,457)
Income tax paid B FTSHE (131,269) (170,355)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RETHMB RS TR
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 495,970 1,657,744
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEE
Purchase of intangible assets BEEVEE (1,476) (3,555)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEE#% - = &R (71,475) (61,811)
Placement of pledged bank deposits BEBRITHERZFEA - (113,263)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposit BEEAIRITHF R IR 26,968 =
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant H&E¥Z  WE KM RE 2 P15
and equipment KIE 3,746 8,969
Purchase of other financial assets BEEEMCREE (1,666,837) (1,941,792)
Proceeds from disposal of other HEHMERMEE 2 MBHIEAE
financial assets 1,798,749 571,363
Interest received EHFE 463,152 124,983
Dividend received from joint ventures and UgERA & 1b 3 I B & N B AL B,
associates 68,807 110,464
Dividend received from other financial B H fih & B & E AR B
assets 263 -
Net cash inflow from acquisition of WENBARIMEBZRERA
subsidiaries HEE - 19,638
Net cash outflow from disposal of a HE—ENBARMSZES
subsidiary T FER (1,245) -
Acquisition of additional interest in an W — MBS NE, AENE
associate/joint venture ZREIMER 18 (34,553) =

The notes on pages 91 to 231 form part of these consolidated S 91E231H 2 WEBR G A MIBEHREK 2 — &
financial statements. % o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ ~F =41~ H =1 —HILF &

2023 2022
—E=H —=E-=
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
HtaF BETF T BT T
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED R&ZFE TS (FiA) 2R
IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES FHE 586,099 (1,285,004)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEEE
Acquisition of additional interest in a Wb — [ P BB A ) 2 BB AN 2
subsidiary 32(d) (37,099) -
Capital contribution by non-controlling IR EREE
interest 47 -
Proceeds from borrowings raised ESENFBRIEA 25(c) 1,788 462,532
Issue of digital bonds BIIBEFES 25(c) 381,544 =
Repayments of borrowings BEER 25(c) (499,655) (142,417)
Repayment of loan to a third party BEE=FEX 25(c) - (2,398)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHREaE 25(c) (420,885) (451,657)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 7 {5 JEIZ f iz % B, (101,664) (81,070)
Loan repayment to non-controlling BEIIFERERER
interests 25(c) - (8,091)
Loan advance from non-controlling FEE SR BN ER
interests 25(c) 26,572 -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING RETBAZREEE
ACTIVITIES (649,352) (223,101)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRREEEEBIEGMFHE
EQUIVALENTS 432,717 149,639
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FHzHRe¢RHESEEER
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,603,909 1,476,394
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE JMES[E R# B - &
CHANGES (42,007) (22,124)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT F#ZHEe¢RESEEER
END OF THE YEAR 25(a) 1,994,619 1,603,909

The notes on pages 91 to 231 form part of these consolidated S 91E231H 2 WHEBR G A MIEHRER 2 — &
financial statements. 9o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R M A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong and its shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). HNA Holding Group Co., Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, is the
immediate parent of the Company. Hainan HNA No. 2
Trust Management Service Co., Ltd., a limited liability
company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"), is the intermediate parent of the Company.
HNA Group Bankruptcy Reorganisation Specialised Service
Trust (the “Trust”), a trust registered in the PRC, is the
ultimate controlling party of the Company. Neither of
these companies produces financial statements available
for public use. The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information section to the annual report.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(a) Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the requirements of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the "Companies Ordinance”). These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the
Stock Exchange. Material accounting policies
adopted by the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) are
disclosed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 2(b) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current accounting period reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2023 comprise the Group
and the Group's interests in associates and joint
ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements is the historical
cost basis except that the following assets and
liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in
the accounting policies set out below:

= other investments in debt and equity
securities measured at fair value;

- derivative financial instruments;

- inventories held under broker-trader
exemption; and

- trade receivables and payables containing
provisional pricing features.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods. The major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
predecessor independent auditor of the Company
identified 140 transactions (the “140 Transactions”)
that involved repeated transfers of titles of gold
concentrates with the same group of counterparties
(the “Counterparties”) within a short timeframe
spanning from August 2022 to September 2022.
The 140 Transactions were conducted by certain
subsidiaries of the Company and their commercial
substance was unclear. It was also identified that
commissions were paid to the Counterparties
involved in the 140 Transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(a) Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

All balances resulted from the 140 transactions have
been settled by the end of August 2023 and there
were no transactions with the Counterparties during
the year ended 31 December 2023 nor related
balances as at 31 December 2023. The management
of the Group has ceased the operation of the
relevant structured trading services and is disclosed
as discontinued operation (see Note 13) in these
consolidated financial statements. The management
has also implemented a series of measures to
strengthen internal controls of the Group.

In addition, certain comparative figures have
been reclassified to conform to the current year's
presentation.

(b) Application of new and amendments to
HKFRSs and changes in material accounting
policies
The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA to
these financial statements for the current accounting
period:

° HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (including
the October 2020 and February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

o Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of
Accounting Estimates

° Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax
related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction

° Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax
Reform-Pillar Two model Rules
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(b)

Application of new and amendments to
HKFRSs and changes in material accounting
policies (continued)

° Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the
amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax
Reform-Pillar Two model Rules

The Organisation for Economic Co-operation
Development (“OECD") published the Pillar Two
model rules (“the Pillar Two legislation”), which
are designed to introduce a global minimum tax
rate of 15 percent for large multinational enterprise
("MNE") group within scope of the rules and need
to be adopted into local domestic law by each
jurisdiction according to the jurisdiction’s legislative
process. The Pillar Two model rules apply to MNE
group with a total consolidated group revenue of
Euro 750 million or more in at least two of the four
preceding years, although jurisdictions may introduce
a lower threshold. The Group is within the scope of
Pillar Two as its consolidated revenue is more than
Euro 750 million for the preceding two years.

The Group has adopted the amendments for the
first time in the current accounting period. The
amendments provide a temporary mandatory
exception from deferred tax accounting for the
top-up tax that may arise from the jurisdictional
adoption of the Pillar Two legislation and requires
new disclosures about the tax exposure related to
Pillar Two income taxes in periods which the Pillar
Two legislation is in effect, enacted or substantially
enacted but not yet in effect in annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(b)

Application of new and amendments to
HKFRSs and changes in material accounting
policies (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax
Reform-Pillar Two model Rules (continued)

The mandatory exception is effective immediately
and applies retrospectively. In the opinion of the
directors, the retrospective application has no
material impact on the Group's consolidated financial
statement as there is no legislation enacted or
substantially enacted for Pillar Two model rules as
at 31 December 2022 in any jurisdiction in which
the Group operates. For group entities operating
in jurisdictions where the Pillar Two legislation is
enacted or substantially enacted but not yet in effect
during the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
has applied the temporary exception in the current
accounting period. Accordingly, the Group neither
recognises nor discloses information about deferred
tax accounting related to Pillar Two income taxes.
The information about the Group's exposure to Pillar
Two income taxes is set out in Note 10.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the
first time in the current accounting period. HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements is amended
to replace all instances of the term “significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting
policy information”. Accounting policy information
is material if, when considered together with
other information included in an entity's financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(b)

Application of new and amendments to
HKFRSs and changes in material accounting
policies (continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies (continued)

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of
the related transactions, other events or conditions,
even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not
all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial
accounting policy information, such information must
not obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also
amended to illustrate how an entity applies the
“four-step materiality process” to accounting policy
disclosures and to judge whether information about
an accounting policy is material to its financial
statements. Guidance and examples are added to
the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance. Accordingly, immaterial accounting
policy information are not disclosed in these
consolidated financial statements.
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2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(b)

Application of new and amendments to
HKFRSs and changes in material accounting
policies (continued)

Abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism
in Hong Kong

In June 2022 the Hong Kong SAR Government (the
“Government”) gazette the Hong Kong Employment
and Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting
Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the
“Amendment Ordinance”), which will come into
effect from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”).
Once the Amendment Ordinance takes effect, an
employer can no longer use any of the accrued
benefits derived from its mandatory contributions
to mandatory provident fund (“MPF"”) scheme to
reduce the long service payment (“"LSP") in respect
of an employee's service from the Transition Date
(the abolition of the "offsetting mechanism”). In
addition, the LSP in respect of the service before
the Transition Date will be calculated based on the
employee’s monthly salary immediately before the
Transition Date and the years of service up to that
date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong” that provides
accounting guidance relating to the offsetting
mechanism and the abolition of the mechanism. The
abolition of the offsetting mechanism did not have a
material impact on the Group’s results and financial
position.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. The financial
statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date on
which control commences until the date on which
control ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any
unrealised income and expenses (except for foreign
currency transaction gains or losses) arising from
intra-group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains,
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests (“NCI”) are presented in
the consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable to
the owners of the Company. NCI in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between
NCI and the owners of the Company. Loans from
holders of NCI and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position in accordance with Notes 2(p), (qg), or (r)
depending on the nature of the liability.
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2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it derecognises the assets and liabilities of
the subsidiary, and any related NCI and other
components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary is measured at fair value
when control is lost.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an interest in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(d)

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over the financial and operating policies.

A joint venture is an arrangement in which the Group
or Company has joint control, whereby the Group
or Company has the rights to the net assets of the
arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and
obligations for its liabilities.

An interest in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method. They are
initially recorded at cost, which includes transaction
costs. Subsequently the consolidated financial
statements include the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of those
investees, until the date on which significant
influence or joint control ceases.

Unrealised gains arising from transactions with
equity-accounted investees are eliminated against
the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the
extent there is no evidence of impairment.
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2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(d)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

If an associate becomes a joint venture or vice versa,
the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. When the Group increases its
ownership interest in an associate or a joint venture
but the Group continues to use the equity method,
goodwill is recognised at acquisition date if there
is excess of the consideration paid over the share
of carrying amount of net assets attributable to the
additional interests in associates or joint ventures
acquired.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
interests in associates and joint venture are stated at
cost less impairment losses.

Other investments in debt and equity
securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt and
equity securities, other than interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, are set out below.

Investments in securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to
purchase/sell the investment. The investments are
initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments
measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL")
for which transaction costs are recognised directly in
profit or loss. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification.

2

mE

MBRREREEREX

SITHEER @)

(d)

(e)

BENARGELE®
M—RBEERBARB—REED
X RRZTAR - REES T TE
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BHZ2ARHAZLENEIMER
EEFEERMENDSR RIS
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RARRZMBIRRERF - R
RAE A B2 R R AR SRR
BERSIK -

ERRREAES 2 HMBRE

AEERREBERARBSRE
(RMBAR BERRREED
R ZERBRIN ZBERSHNAOT ©

AEBEARBAHERESH
R/ R EREFKRE - RET
FRARBEMEZEERHKA
55k - MR AR EES ARE (TR
DABEFABRDAEZZER
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102
@ CWT International Limited / 20234 4
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e M RER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2 HFEVBEBRRGEREEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SITHEER @)

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
(e) Other investments in debt and equity (e) BEERBRABHZHMEZRE®E
securities (continued)
(i) Investments other than equity (i) REARELUINIIRE
investments
Non-equity investments held by the Group AEERFENIERKEEH
are classified into one of the following AR TEA—EFTE58ER -

measurement Categories:

= amortised cost, if the investment is - R - WEEA
held for the collection of contractual WEMEBHAKEE
cash flows which represent solely HIEERE - AR
payments of principal and interest. RESES RFER
Interest income from the investment Koo WEFEH B
is calculated using the effective ATh{E A B H &%
interest method. Any gain or loss on FTE o RIEFERKE
derecognition is recognised in profit or A=k BB R ER
loss. RHER °
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e UMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

AR REREEREK
SITHEER @)

ERRRAERS 2 EMBRE @

(e) Other investments in debt and equity (e)

securities (continued)

(i) Investments other than equity (i) REBARELUINRE (B
investments (continued)
= FVPL if the investment does not meet = EAnEEFAE
the criteria for being measured at & MIRETHEE
amortised cost. Changes in the fair BHEK AT ENEZ
value of the investment (including £ WENRREE
interest) are recognised in profit or BE(BEFEMNBINIE
loss. AR o
(i)  Equity investment (i) RAEARE

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVPL unless the equity investment is
not held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group
makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI") such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. If such election
is made for a particular investment, at the
time of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve is transferred to
accumulated losses and not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised
in profit or loss as other income.

REARESFHRE D ERIE
RAEE AR @ BRIEK
AEEWIFFIEFET AR -
ARVITHERRER A&
BRAT TR E AR EE
EREBBARBEFAR
fhemks((RAREER
AHMEERE]D) - KHL
REENREZSNEMLE
HUR R o BRIEETIIZ
BRI T AL - HEEEET
ARBREN AR EER
TR o MBS EREE
HAREE - AIRLER
RAREERERANHEE
ERERFER - BXIFE
BIERREE - REBRAE
F( PO BREAABE
sPAB@mE R AR EER
AE M2 E)RE /R
B ORBRER AR
A e
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e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

REVBBREREEREKN

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(f)

(g)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with
changes therein recognised in profit or loss, except
where the Group's derivatives qualify for cash flow
hedge accounting or hedges of net investment in a
foreign operation.

A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or
a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of
the instrument is more than 12 months and it is
not due to be realised or settled within 12 months.
Other derivatives are presented as current assets or
current liabilities.

Hedging

The Group designates certain derivatives and
non-derivative financial instruments as hedging
instruments in qualifying hedging relationships for
fair value hedges and cash flow hedges.

(i) Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and qualify as fair
value hedges are recorded in profit or loss
immediately, together with any changes
in the fair value of the hedged item that is
attributable to the hedged risk. The change in
the fair value of the hedging instrument and
the change in the hedged item attributable to
the hedged risk are recognised in the same
line of profit or loss relating to the hedged
item.

SITHEER @)

(f)

(g)

PTEEMIA
TTETANREARBERR - &
% BRIEAKENITETANER
RS RERBIMNEERHR
BFRLs  TRTAETARAR
EBEE  EEBNMERARESR -

574 T AR FIEREIHI A 8581218
ABE12EARTEERIEEH
A TAKEIRIERBEELIF
mEBAE HMITETARIZ5S
MBEENRBAEME -

¥
AEERKETITETARENTES
MTAREEAHHIAR  UFERQ
REEHH RIREIRE L EEH I+
BR1% o

(i)  AREEHE
EERGERIEAA(BEY
MZUTETAZ RABES
B)E R E D R R AR R 2
IR AR EEZ EMEE
BIRSRIBE ATIRR » Hh T
AR EEEHREHHE
R AEREZ HOHIA B B BN A
mEERAEENIAR AR
HH -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =41~ H=1—HILFE

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(9)

Hedging (continued)

(i)

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative is designated as a cash
flow hedging instrument, the effective portion
of changes in the fair value of the derivative
financial instrument is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in the hedging reserve within equity. The
effective portion that is recognised in other
comprehensive income is limited to the
cumulative change in fair value of the hedged
item, determined on a present value basis,
from inception of the hedge. Any ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

2

HREMKBREREEREK
SBERER @

(g)

P (E)

(i) BEhEEHH®
ETETERETARESR
T AR fTESRTA

DR BEEHHEURLI N
Hh 2 E KSR - L0
R AR SRR REt -
REMEEKENERNE
RCRR 0 (E FRBA 1 0h B 46 B 4%
REBENREHHEBE AR
BEMRED - TAEX
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e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(9)

Hedging (continued)

(i)

Cash flow hedges (continued)

When the hedged forecast transaction
subsequently results in the recognition of
a non-financial asset such as inventory, the
amount accumulated in the hedging reserve
is removed from the reserve and is included
in the initial cost of the non-financial asset
when it is recognised.

For all other hedged forecast transactions, the
amount accumulated in the hedging reserve
is reclassified through other comprehensive
income to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment in the same period or periods
during which the hedged cash flows affect
profit or loss.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for
hedge accounting or the hedging instrument
is sold, expires, is terminated or is exercised,
then hedge accounting is discontinued
prospectively. When hedge accounting is
discontinued, the amount that has been
accumulated in the hedging reserve remains
in equity until the transaction occurs and it
is recognised in accordance with the above
policy. If the hedged future cash flows are no
longer expected to occur, then the amount
that has been accumulated in the hedging
reserve is immediately reclassified through
other comprehensive income to profit or loss.

2
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(g)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ ~F =41~ H =1 —HILF &

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

mE

MBRREREEREX

SITHEER @)

(continued)
(h)  Property, plant and equipment (h) W% BERRE

The following items of property, plant and equipment A2 - BB REEHBIE B BRA

are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and BWEFIERBEBE 27

impairment losses: Bk

= right-of-use assets arising from leases over = T ERE B IE KA FERES
freehold or leasehold properties where the HEMENYEE =T DHE
Group is not the registered owner of the BEAEERNFERAEEE &
property interest; and

= items of plant and equipment, including = WERZEEE @ BEEE
right-of-use assets arising from leases of R E K& EMEERNSE
underlying plant and equipment. FREEE -

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or FERTIYE  BERRBEEER

valuation of items of property, plant and equipment, ZAGETRIE G A - AE A

less their estimated residual value, if any, using the ZEEB 2RASEE - R EbE

straight-line method over their estimated useful FABEMAE)TE - BBENIE

lives and is generally recognised on profit or loss as WmIER

follows:

Freehold land is not depreciated

KAFERE T W EmITE

Leasehold land and buildings 5 to 27 years, or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter

HE L RETF SERVFSZRMB s BREE

Plant, machinery and equipment 5to 10 years

E -~ Hes kR BEE106F

Furniture, fittings, computers and 1to 5 years

office equipment

R RE - BEEMAERME 1FE5F

Motor vehicles and trailers 5to 10 years

B M E 5EZE105F

Leasehold improvements 15 years, or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter

HEMEEE 16F IRz BEE

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

WEIHE A ERFHRFSGER

RE[EHRE B HE TR L EL A
B(ER) -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

AR REREEREK
SITHEER @)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(i) EBEEE

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are NEBMBAZEREELEKAR

measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and Rt R EA R REEE
any accumulated impairment losses. =)

(i) Intangible assets

Computer software

Computer software which is acquired by
the Group, where it is not an integral part
of the related hardware, is treated as an
intangible asset. Computer software is stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses.

Computer software is amortised to profit or
loss using the straight-line method over its
estimated useful life of 3 to 5 years.

Customer contracts

Customer contracts relate to the estimated
value of contracts acquired in a business
combination; and have finite lives and
are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

BB

A EBEAZ BRI
B RRERE 1 2 AR D -
AR BBV EE - B
R P AR R 5T 88 KO E
BRI -

BRI E G AT RS
I3 EoFRAEREHH

=8 -

EFEH
BEANBEERA O g
BamzHEmER - A
75 B AR 3 B A A 2 5t
89 BOR AR E o

Customer contracts are amortised to profit or EPEHNREPEHESF
loss using the straight-line method over the EEFEHAEGLAEHEEE
customers’ contract periods of 1 to 5 years. o

London Metal Exchange (“LME”) license

The license relates to the estimated license
value acquired in a business combination and
has finite life and is measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses.

LME license is amortised to profit or loss
using the straight-line method over its
estimated useful life of 30 years.

32 B2 5 5 ([LME)) 3
T
SRS A Ot R BT
BB (B EARR
.75 [E) 5 AR 3 BABX AR 2
S84 KR BB EE -

LMEFFA] @z {h st Al E A 5
HB0FRAEREHIHER
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(i)

Intangible assets (continued)

Business Relationships (“BRS”)

BRS relates to the estimated economic
benefits from business relationships arising
from a business combination. BRS refers to
business relationship between suppliers and
customers. BRS is estimated to have finite
life and is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

BRS is amortised to profit or loss using the
straight-line basis over its estimated useful
life of 4 to 5 years.

Brand (“BD")

BD relates to the estimated economic
benefits from brand arising from a business
combination. BD refers to the acquired
company's good reputation and name known
in the market. BD is estimated to have finite
life and is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

BD is amortised to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over its estimated useful life of 10
years.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

2

AR REREEREK
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(i)

BEEE®H)
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E ik AR Y USRI
Mo G HEREHERRET
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e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(j)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(i)

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets such as laptops and
office furniture. When the Group enters into
a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease
on a lease-by-lease basis. If not capitalised,
the lease payments associated with those
leases are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

AR REREEREK
STHEER @)

(j)

HEEE

REBERE NS EERE L
EEBHELABEEMEE - HENR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(j)

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over
the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate.

After initial recognition, the lease liability is
measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective
interest method.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement
date, plus any initial direct costs incurred,
and an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, less any lease incentives received.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

2

AR REREEREK
SITHEER @)

(j)

HEEE®)

(i)

EREABA(E)

BHEER(LE HEBRE
MERERRZENHEEN
REREER  AERHEER
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RIFHERR - HEARE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2 HFEVBEBRRGEREEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL S BERER @)

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
(i) Leased assets (continued) (i) HEBEE®
(i) As a lessee (continued) (i) ERREA (B

The lease liability is remeasured when there BIEEE IR ZF) 5| R K
is a change in future lease payments arising HEMNZED  HEAEER
from a change in an index or rate, or there BRI EEEREBRENK
is a change in the Group's estimate of the H2hEr8EEE  HES
amount expected to be payable under a TRt AEERETBAER
residual value guarantee, or there is a change EITHEEE - EHEIAX LR
arising from the reassessment of whether the ERmMELEEY  AgEH
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise FTEHEAE - EMHEAR
a purchase, extension or termination option. Rt m X EFHFEE - A5
When the lease liability is remeasured in this FAEE CREMEELA
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to JEFRE - SnEREEE
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, REBERET @ AIREBEA
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying B o

amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when EHAHEEET(NEES
there is a lease modification, which means AR RERBHRENHEESR
a change in the scope of a lease or the EHEREZE) R - M
consideration for a lease that is not originally BT R ERERHEE
provided for in the lease contract, if such B A EaEEEN
modification is not accounted for as a ATE - EWIBAT HE
separate lease. In this case, the lease liability BEEREBELETHENTKE
is remeasured based on the revised lease MEH - PMEFTEX B BAE
payments and lease term using a revised AT ZE et
discount rate at the effective date of the =

modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial REREMBARRERA - KE
position, the current portion of long-term HEBEBENREBESEER
lease liabilities is determined as the present ERRERE+—EARNG
value of contractual payments that are due BENEANTRHIRGE -

to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that AEERMBRAKRBILE
do not meet the definition of investment TR EMETENE
property and lease liabilities separately in the FAEEENEESE -

statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2 HEUBBREHEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL B BERER @

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
(i) Leased assets (continued) () HEEE®
(i)  As alessor (i) 1EEHHEA

The Group determines at lease inception AEBRHEREREES
whether each lease is a finance lease or HEsmEMHExKLEM
an operating lease. A lease is classified as & WHEERHEREEM
a finance lease if it transfers substantially BREMWEE 2 8 K10 Rk &
all the risks and rewards incidental to the EHEABA - EESE
ownership of an underlying assets to the ARERE - [A - HES
lessee. Otherwise, the lease is classified as HREEHEE -

an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non- e eslEaRIFERET
lease components, the Group allocates B AEBZREHERERE
the consideration in the contract to each EEREOREDEEEH
component on a relative stand-alone selling 7 o

price basis.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, WASEB AR MEHAEA -

the sub-leases are classified as a finance e TJQ%‘EE FEH’JT&*&
lease or as an operating lease with reference REEE DEARENE
to the right-of-use asset arising from the head SEEHE - WMEHEETDE
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease HAFA &M A& EE AT
to which the Group applies the exemption 2(j (VFriiEace - RIARSEE
described in Note 2(j)(i), then the Group DHEEDERKEMRE -

classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

The Group recognises lease payments AEEBHERRALCEHE
received under operating leases as income on HETRERMBEENKAES
a straight-line basis over the lease term. ERERBWA o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables

The Group assesses loss allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECLs") on the
following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables and
other receivables, which are held for
the collection of contractual cash flows
which represent solely payments of
principal and interest);

= contract assets as defined in HKFRS
15;

- lease receivables; and

= other financial assets measured at
amortised cost.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Generally, credit losses are
measured as the present value of all expected
cash shortfalls between the contractual and
expected amounts.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes
into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables, lease
receivables and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial assets, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to
12-month ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the
financial assets since initial recognition, in
which case the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2 HEUBBREHEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL B BERER @

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (k) FEEEBEEREEREGE)
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, (i) KRELET A SHVEER
contract assets and lease receivables WA E S EN S EEE
(continued) =3
Significant increases in credit risk 1= EE R AIE L
When determining whether the credit risk RETLRIA(BEER
of a financial instrument (including a loan A MEERR B VA E
commitment) has increased significantly REREANEEAUREGE
since initial recognition and when measuring EHEEEER  AEEZ
ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and EAEE B EE A BERA
supportable information that is relevant and BN EEHNEERT
available without undue cost or effort. This EER o WIEBFEERNAE
includes both quantitative and qualitative SEMNBFELEBENEEER
information and analysis, based on the SHEM T E R EHER AR
Group's historical experience and informed S HRBEAETE
credit assessment, that includes forward- w o

looking information.

Depending on the nature of the financial BUARGREENTE -
assets, the assessment of a significant ER B AE LA/ TS Tk
increase in credit risk is performed on either & Bl B A ol R HL 1T ©
an individual basis or a collective basis. When i T B iR LR E 1T
the assessment is performed on a collective cREEREARNEER
basis, the financial assets are grouped based BREH(mB AR REE
on shared credit risk characteristics, such as R ET R EITH A o

past due status and credit risk ratings.

The Group considers that a default event REBRE - WEKATK
occurs when the borrower is unlikely to pay A RETE AR S B B R R
its credit obligations to the Group in full, FHRER(WHEE)FITHH
without recourse by the Group to actions BRTRAEEESRZNE
such as realising security (if any is held). EEEK AENRENS
(G
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =41~ H=1—HILFE

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial asset’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any change
in the ECL amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
for all financial assets with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through
a loss allowance account.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2 HEUBBREHEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL B BERER @

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (k) FEEEBEEREEREGE)

(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, (i) KE2MT A BHEZER
contract assets and lease receivables WA E S EN S EEE
(continued) =3
Credit-impaired financial assets (continued) 1EERESHEEE)
Evidence that a financial asset is credit- PRIEEEERENERS
impaired includes the following observable FEUATAIERE G
events:
= significant financial difficulties of the = EHALREET B

debtor; E
= a breach of contract, such as a default; - BEREX - ELD
= it becoming probable that the borrower - BRARE 7] e H
will enter into bankruptcy or other B EE S E 1T H Ath B 7%
financial reorganisation; or EFA %
= the disappearance of an active market - RN EIT AHBRT
for a security because of financial MEMEMES KL
difficulties of the issuer. BRI o
Write-off policy ikl
The gross carrying amount of a financial HHEBER AT YKE R
asset, lease receivable or contract asset is IH - AEBE R =#eE(EHh
written off (either partially or in full) to the g emEE  EKRA
extent that there is no realistic prospect of ERESEHNEENBIERT
recovery. This is generally the case when the B ZzBEhBTEHREASE
Group determines that the debtor does not EEEHBALEEELA
have assets or sources of income that could EARHRSMEHNIAK
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the TRIREBEMBEN SR -

amounts subject to the write-off.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ ~F =41~ H =1 —HILF &

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-
financial assets, other than inventories and
deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the assets’ recoverable
amounts are estimated. Goodwill is tested
annually for impairment. An impairment loss
is recognised if the carrying amount of an
asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount.

Goodwill that forms part of the carrying
amount of an interest in an associate is not
recognised separately, and therefore is not
tested for impairment separately. Instead, the
entire amount of the interest in an associate
is tested for impairment as a single asset
when there is objective evidence that the
interest in an associate may be impaired.

({)] Inventories

Inventories where the Group acts as a broker-trader
include metals and energy commodities acquired
with the purpose of selling them in the near term
and generating a profit from fluctuations in price, and
are measured at fair value less costs to sell.

All other inventories are valued at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out (“FIFO")
basis and includes the full costs of materials,
freight and insurance and all other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

AR REREEREK
SITHEER @)

(k)

n

FEBEREERE®

(i)  EHEREBEERE
AEEFREREE(FER
EEBBEERIN ERE
BEREHRE HHERN - UE
ErBHBEMBRBIR -
WEEERE@TR @ g
RETBENAREEHE - &
BEFETRENA - WE
ESEREELBMHRE
BRBH MG ATKREEE -
Alg R IEEE -

B E AR ERREE
Mo mEmES 2 @R ER
B 1tk A & #E 17 {8 B R (2R
Ao RZ ERATBRER
TREgE X B R a5 R BE th 3RO
BN BERARERNER
THEBERE—BEEEITR
BRI -

rE
AEERIRLERIBAZFERRE
RIHEL KRB ERKSESE
MmBAZ LB MERAR - Lk
DAEERHERANTE

o

FRA R B AR A &3 %E
AR ZEIEESIRR - AT#EFE
TR AEXEBBRPZEAEE
R TERK Z (A FTACAS B 1T 8 & P
AL TN

R Ty iR S 5e th ([ SRS D)%
BT BRME EBRRRZE
PR LA B 5 1 B 38 K B30 B 3 B %
S BOR B AR P &£ 2 P /A AR
7 o

120
Q CWT International Limited / 20234 4



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

n

(m)

Inventories (continued)

Due to the provisional pricing of the purchase of
the concentrate inventory and the subsequent price
adjustments on the basis of the quotational period
and the short inventory turnover period, cost of
concentrate inventory represents fair value of the
inventory.

Inventories allocated as hedged items in a fair value
hedge relationship are adjusted for the change in the
fair value attributable to the hedged risk component
(commodity price risk).

Allowance is made where necessary for obsolete,
slow moving and defective inventories.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue before being unconditionally
entitled to the consideration under the payment
terms set out in the contract. Contract assets are
assessed for ECLs and are reclassified to receivables
when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. A contract
liability would also be recognised if the Group has
an unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ ~F =41~ H =1 —HILF &

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(n)

(o)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented as a
contract asset.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are initially measured at their
transaction price. Trade receivables that contain
a significant financing component and other
receivables are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs. Except for trade receivables
containing provisional pricing features which are
measured at FVPL, receivables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method and including an allowance for credit losses.

Insurance reimbursement is recognised and
measured in accordance with Note 2(u)(i).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents
are assessed for ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(p)

(q)

(r)

(s)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Except for trade payables containing
provisional pricing features which are measured at
FVPL, trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs.

Perpetual borrowings

Perpetual borrowings repayable upon an event not
controllable by the Group are stated at cost and
classified as current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Short-term employee benefits are expensed
as the related service is provided. A liability
is recognised for the amount expected to
be paid if the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount
as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans are expensed as
the related service is provided.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
(s) Employee benefits (continued)
(ii) Defined benefit retirement plan obligations

The Group’s net obligation in respect of
defined benefit retirement plans is calculated
separately for each plan by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods and discounting
that amount. The calculation is performed by
a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method.

(iii)  Other employee benefits

The Group operates other employee benefit
schemes. Every year the Group calculates the
amount to be debited/credited to the bonus
pool under the schemes. Such amounts are
recognised in the profit or loss. Payments
to beneficiaries are dependent on certain
conditions such as minimum service period
and long-term profitability. Payments within
12 months to beneficiaries after the service
period are reclassified from non-current
liabilities to current liabilities.

(t) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and
deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination, or items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

REVBBREREERERKN

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax comprises the estimated tax payable or
receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustments to the tax payable or receivable
in respect of previous years. The amount of current
tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the
tax amount expected to be paid or received that
reflects any uncertainty related to income taxes. It is
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also
includes any tax arising from dividends. Current tax
assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria
are met.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is
not recognised for:

- taxable temporary differences arising on the
initial recognition of goodwill;

= temporary differences on the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise
to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences;

- temporary differences related to interests in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures to
the extent that the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future; and

- those related to the income taxes arising from
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted to
implement the Pillar Two legislation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ ~F =41~ H =1 —HILF &

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2 HEMBRRERNEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SBRER®
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(t)  Income tax (continued) (t) FABH@E

The Group recognised deferred tax assets and AEBREREEGEREAREE
deferred tax liabilities separately in relation to its 7 R IR E R IE & B IR IR
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets. afE-

APABREEBE RPHAHBEEL
KA E R ZRAREERIAEE
PR IR & ER B4 1| 7T B2 AT (R 84
B T ARERR o RIRFESRBLA A TS
RIFAARE FERR IR & iy R Bl 1 &
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RIERTBUEN I AR IR A SR 5P
BRRMEGEGREEREH
BOEITHE -

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be used. Future taxable profits are
determined based on the reversal of relevant taxable
temporary differences. If the amount of taxable
temporary differences is insufficient to recognise
a deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable
profits, adjusted for reversals of existing temporary
differences, are considered, based on the business
plans for individual subsidiaries in the Group.

ELERAEER S RS PRET
way o ARG EE BT
B ARADBEEREEE © AR
ERBUE MBI R R S - AR

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and are reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will
be realised; such reductions are reversed when the

probability of future taxable profits improves.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if

certain criteria are met.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(u)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and
onerous contracts

Generally, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessment of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the expected net cost
of continuing with the contract, which is determined
based on the incremental costs of fulfilling the
obligation under that contract and an allocation of
other costs directly related to fulfilling that contract.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.
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e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
(v) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Freight services

Freight services include air, sea and land
freight forwarding services and handling
of cargo across countries and handling of
documentation. Revenue from outbound
freight forwarding is recognised over the
transit time from the departure of shipments
from port of disembarkation, whereas
revenue from inward freight forwarding is
recognised when shipments arrive at port of
arrival.

Revenue is recognised based on the price
specified in the contract. Customers are
required to pay for the services rendered
immediately or within 14-60 days from the
date of invoice according to the agreed credit
terms.
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e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2 HFEVBEBRRGEREEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL S BERER @)

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
(v)  Revenue recognition (continued) (v) WARERE
(ii)  Provision of logistics services (i)  EBEYTRE
Logistic services refer to the provision of MnRBERES FERE
warehousing services, container services, BiERY EWRE  FE
transportation services inventory management BRI NG EIEIRTE

services and record management services.

For bundled packages, the Group accounts HRAAXEE - BRER
for the individual services as separate R A Frim Bl - BD AR %% AT £
performance obligations as they are distinct, ARAEBEFNEMIBE 5
i.e. the service is separately identifiable AR BERPAIHP X
from other items in the bundled package o AN i E R AR 75
and a customer can benefit from it. The RAEBRBIHBHERT - &4
consideration receivable under the contract HETEKRETREERS
is allocated to the separate services in a BUEEIRERMPHE
bundle based on their relative stand-alone BR - BULEEBNIEEH
selling prices. The stand-alone selling prices WllRE - BEMWBEEEER
are stated in the contract. Customers are B2 30260 H WX ©

required to make payment within 30-60 days
from the date of the invoices.

Warehousing services B AR

Warehousing services refer to the provision ERERBERE A EZ= RN
of warehouse space for storage of the FREPHER - W HiR
customer’s products. Revenue is recognised BREHEAEY - BERGER
over time as services are being transferred FTREMRHEER - REE
to the customer, based on the time elapsed. BiERAREREERENEM
Services are normally billed in advance on a REEmELKE -

monthly basis or such other shorter interval
as agreed with customers.
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e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(v) Revenue recognition (continued)
(ii) Provision of logistics services (continued)
Container services

Container services refer to the container
storage, repairs and handling. Revenue is
recognised over time for container storage
as services are being transferred to the
customer, based on the time elapsed. For
repairs and handling, revenue is recognised
upon completion of the service. Services are
billed for each completed job but are usually
consolidated and billed on a monthly basis.

Transportation services

Transportation services include local delivery
of goods or transfer of containers/cargoes
from warehouse/storage yard to the port/
customers’ premises. Revenue is recognised
upon completion of the service. Services
are billed upon completion and are usually
consolidated and billed on a monthly basis.

Inventory management services

Inventory management services include
rendering of import clearance, documentation
and trucking services for inbound shipment
and performing inventory stock-take and
other related services over a specified time
period. Revenue is recognised when services
are completed. Services are usually billed on
a monthly basis.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(v)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Provision of logistics services (continued)
Record management services

Record management services include
storage, collection and retrieval and disposal
of document over a specific time period.
Revenue generated from providing document
storage, collection and retrieval and disposal
services is recognised over time as services
are being transferred to the customers, based
on the time elapsed. Revenue generated
from collection, retrieval and disposal services
is recognised when services are completed,
services are billed on a monthly basis.

Commodity trading

Commodity trading includes structured trading,
physical trading and supply chain management
of base metal non-ferrous concentrates with
predominant focus on copper, lead, zinc and
other minor metals and energy products like
naphtha and distillates.

Revenue is recognised when the customer
has control over the commodities upon the
transfer of title according to the terms and
conditions of the sales contracts.
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2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(v)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii)

Commodity trading (continued)

The sale price of certain commodities is
initially recorded based on the provisional
prices depending on the contracts. Until
final settlement occurs, adjustments to the
provisional sales prices are made to take
into account metal price changes, based
upon the month-end spot price and metal
quantities upon receipt of the final assay
and weight certificates, if different from
the initial certificates. The Group marks to
market its provisional sales prices based on
the forward price for the estimated month
of settlement. In the consolidated statement
of financial position, such mark to market
adjustments are included within “trade and
other receivables”.

Payments of certain deals especially metal
concentrates and energy products are due at
sight or extended payment terms according
to contract terms and are secured by letter of
credit or documentary collection. Payments
of other deals are due as per the credit terms
stated in the invoice and most of them are
secured by credit insurance or approved by
an internal credit committee.
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REVBBREREEREKN

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(v)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Commodity trading (continued)

Where the Group also undertakes the
purchase and sale of commodities in a
short period of time acting as a principal,
and in the process transferring control of
the commodities to its customers (the
“transition sales”), the Group initially
considers these contracts as derivatives
at FVPL and the resulting gains and losses
together with the cash received are included
in the determination of the transaction
price on settlement, in the same manner as
revenue from physical commodity trading
recorded on a gross basis as described in the
preceding paragraphs.

Where the Group acts as in the capacity
of an agent rather than as the principal in
the purchase and sale of commodities, the
revenue is recognised nets of cost of goods
sold. Revenue is recognised as earned when
the trades are executed.

Equipment and facility maintenance
services

Equipment and facility maintenance services
include management and maintenance of
facilities, vehicles and equipment. Revenue
is recognised over time for services that are
transferred to the customer, based on the
time elapsed. For services that are rendered
over a period of six months or less, revenue
is recognised upon completion of the
services which is expected to approximate
revenue to be recognised over time, based
on the time elapsed, due to the short service
period. Customers are required to pay for the
services rendered within 30—-60 days from
date of the invoice.
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ma

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(v)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Design-and-build

The Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to
date. Revenue is recognised over time,
with reference to percentage of completion
of design-and-build services per the price
agreed under the contract. The percentage
of completion is measured by reference
to the quantity surveyor's certification and
customer’s acknowledgment of the value of
services transferred to date, relative to the
total contract price or milestone payment as
set out in the contract (“Certified Value of
Completion”).

Progress billings to the customer are based
on Certified Value of Completion and payment
is based on credit term (normally 30 days) set
out in the contract.

Broking services

Revenue is recognised when services are
rendered to customers for clearing and
brokerage services (brokerage fee income)
and when trades are executed by customers
and the company acts in the capacity of an
agent (clearing commission and brokerage
fee). Clearing commission is due immediately
and deducted directly from the customers’
funds placed with the Group. Brokerage fees
are generally on 14-30 days credit term.

2

AR REREEREK
SITHEER @)

(v)

LN 469

(v)

(vi)

R HEE

AEEHESETKENLZ
RIBE B ARG ;1T 248
F o WMATI2ZEAKBHE
GONERS %Eié“éJrEﬁiL%ihHﬁ*
MBADH - BERERER - T
IB/5 tt)'ﬁﬂ%lﬂ EIJ;Eﬁi
MABREPHESDER
RISEENER - HHRE
WAEMmANEENER
MAR(RBTIEED

=
B -°

A% P W ER ) # E 5 Tb%ﬁ"
AT LEE - MR

ReEMmEEERRE 7%
30R) o

BEIR%
BEREPRHAEE RELR
BELEBRA)AREFPH

IRZMARBAREA ST
NITEHERERELE)
- BITERRMA - BE M
BRI WERKREPF
AXREENESTHE - &
LENEER-RBI14E30
H e

134
@ CWT International Limited / 20234 4



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(v)

(w)

Revenue recognition (continued)
(vii) Investment income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
under the effective interest method. The
‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial
asset to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset. In calculating interest income,
the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset (when
the assets is not credit-impaired). However,
for financial assets that have become credit-
impaired subsequent to initial recognition,
interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no
longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of
interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss
when the Group’s right to receive payment is
established.

Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the respective functional currencies of group
companies at the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rates at the reporting
date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured based on historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated at the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction. Foreign currency differences
are generally recognised in profit or loss.
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2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(w)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

However, foreign currency differences arising from
the translation of the following items are recognised
in other comprehensive income:

= an investment in equity securities designated
as at FVOCI (except on impairment, in which
case foreign currency differences that have
been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss); and

- qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that
the hedges are effective.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations,
including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on acquisition, are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the exchange
rates at the reporting date. The income and
expenses of foreign operations are translated into
HK$ at the exchange rates approximating at the
dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the exchange reserve, except to the extent that the
translation difference is allocated to NCI.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its
entirety or partially such that control, significant
influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative
amount in the exchange reserve related to that
foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss as
part of the gain or loss on disposal. On disposal of
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to that foreign operation that have been
attributed to the NCI shall be derecognised, but
shall not be reclassified to profit or loss. If the Group
disposes of part of its interest in a subsidiary but
retains control, then the relevant proportion of the
cumulative amount is reattributed to NCI.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

2 HAEVEBRRFEREEREKX
STHEER @)

(continued)
(x) Borrowing costs (x) ERHEE
Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which BREANEEEEMEZH -
they are incurred.
(y) Government grants (y) B#RE
Grants from the government are recognised at their i & BARE # WEX AT 1 B B 2R
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that SEBEREMAMEERER - X
the grant will be received and the Group will comply AR E AR EEER °
with all attached conditions.
Government grants that compensate the Group for HEREBATE LM BT,
expenses incurred are recognised in profit or loss as RAXERAME ZARIERE
‘other income’ on a systematic basis in the periods RAETEMBAL - ERERERER
in which the expenses are recognised, unless the FIETTE WA BL G RR SN © TR
conditions for receiving the grant are met after the BT+ B AT CER RS TR ©
related expenses have been recognised. In this case,
the grant is recognised when it becomes receivable.
(z2) Related parties (z) E3EER
(a) A person, or a close member of that (a) EIARZEAZITFRETEL
person’s family, is related to the Group if BERUTIERERBHELE
that person: BB -
(i) has control or joint control over the (i) PRl g FE wll A S
Group; ;
(ii) has significant influence over the (ii) HAEBEBEKNY
Group; or 2%
(i) is a member of the key management (i) BAEERAEEZ
personnel of the Group or the Group's BRARFEEREA
parent. BB °
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

2

Bt 75 R 2R MY &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(z) Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same Group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a Group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a Group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group's parent.
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e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(2)

(aa)

(bb)

Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:
(continued)

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group has a
legally enforceable right to offset the amounts and
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’'s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
(cc) Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group's business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and which:

- represents a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations;

= is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose
of a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations; or

- is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a
view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs at
the earlier of disposal, when the operation meets
the criteria to be classified as held for sale or when
a business that represented a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations ceases
operation. When an operation is classified as a
discontinued operation, the comparative statement
of profit or loss is re-stated as if the operation had
been discontinued from the start of the comparative
year.

3  ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Sources of estimation uncertainly

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources at reporting date, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets in the next financial year are mainly
the measurement of loss allowance for receivables as
described in Note 37(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

REVENUE 4

The Group is principally engaged in integrated logistics
services and related engineering services. The Group is also
engaged in the affiliated business of commodity marketing
and financial services.

Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by major products and service lines from continuing

WA

AEBEERSHEEWRRS MEMETE
% - ARENTMEARE S RS BRE
Z W EETS -

WA 2 815
R EREEBNTEEQRRBRES
2 EFAKERADT :

operations is as follows:

2023 2022
—E-=F —F-—
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT Vet v
(Restated)
(A€ &)
Disaggregated by major products and RIXrEERKBREEE S
service lines
Freight services E RS 3,000,945 5,737,638
Logistics services Y R 7% 1,557,418 1,543,084
Commodity trading and related services 5 E 5 LRI RS 31,175,669 29,890,618
Equipment and facility maintenance H R R IERE R
services 706,710 623,641
Design-and-build ERETEREE 899 3,065
Broking services 540 AR 7S 626,035 634,532
Others At 69,052 106,415
Revenue from contract with customers ~ BF A X Z WA 37,136,728 38,538,993
Revenue from leases HEWA 89,567 150,037
37,226,295 38,689,030
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REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by the timing of revenue recognition and by geographic
markets is disclosed in Note 5.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, as the remaining
performance obligations of the Group are either from
contracts that have original expected durations of one year
or less or from contracts where the Group has a right to
invoice a customer in an amount that corresponds directly
with its performance to date, the Group has applied the
practical expedient in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 and
does not disclose information about the transaction price
allocated to its remaining performance obligations.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker
("CODM"), being the most senior executive management
of the Group, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on the types
of goods or services delivered or provided.

In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following reportable segments.

Logistics services

This reportable segment includes warehousing, transportation,
freight forwarding and cargo consolidation, supply chain
management services.

Commodity marketing

This reportable segment includes physical trading and
supply chain management of base metal non-ferrous
concentrates with predominant focus on copper, lead, zinc
and other minor metals.

4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Engineering services

This reportable segment includes management and
maintenance of facilities, vehicles and equipment, supply and
installation of engineering products, property management,
and design-and-build for logistic properties.

Financial services

This reportable segment includes provision of financial
brokerage services and assets management services.

The operation of the structured trading services included
in the financial services segment was discontinued in the
current year. The segment information reported does not
include any amounts for the discontinued operation, which
are described in more details in Note 13. Accordingly, the
segment information for the year ended 31 December 2022
has been restated.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s most
senior executive management monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment profit before taxation represents operating
revenue less expenses. Segment assets represents assets
directly managed by each segment, and primarily include
inventories, receivables, property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets. Segment liabilities represent liabilities
directly managed by each segment, and primarily include
payables, loans and borrowings and lease liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments. Segment profit
includes the Group's share of profit arising from the
activities of the Group's associates and joint ventures.
[tems not managed by or derived from the operations of
reportable segments are classified as “unallocated” in the
segment reconciliations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =41~ H=1—HILFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 7o EBE #t @)
Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or Ao HNER SEHEERHEM
loss, assets and liabilities and other material BEXREEHHER
items
2023 2022
—EB-= —F -
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(#EE3))
Continuing operations FREREEK
Reportable segment profit or loss 2o PER
Total profit before taxation for reportable 7] 2 #R %> 2Bk %1 A Vi K| 42 58
segments 463,630 620,615
Unallocated amounts: RARSH -
Fair value change of other financial EmemEEAABESE
assets (163,920) -
Loss on disposal of property, LEME - BRE REE 2 EE
plant and equipment - (355)
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) PE 5 Uz (B518) %58 4,879 (10,725)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE (2,674) (2,097)
Finance costs BERA (36,023) (36,243)
Unallocated income and gains RABUA KM= 3,263 667
Unallocated expenses RO (89,790) (81,883)
Profit before taxation R 75 BT 4 179,365 489,979
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RER M

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5

Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

DEERE @)
i 2 3%

iz  EERAEREM

loss, assets and liabilities and other material BEREBHKR®E)
items (continued)
2023 2022
—E-= —=E_—
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BT
(Restated)
(FE&E3)
Reportable segment assets 2o PBEE
Logistic services Ym R 7,317,911 7,822,114
Commodity marketing e S 6,205,455 6,623,720
Engineering services TER 528,444 492,754
Financial services SRR 11,141,490 11,027,967
Elimination of inter-segment assets D EBEE EHH (419,428) (493,743)
Total reportable segment assets A2 DEEELTE 24,773,872 25,472,812
Unallocated assets: AOBEE
Interests in associates and joint REE R RGEDE s
ventures 431,735 415,925
Deferred tax assets FEEFIBEE 60,383 57,165
Tax recoverable A Y el £ I8 32,966 13,089
Cash and cash equivalents HekBeEHEER 91,992 94,971
Other financial assets EmemEE 28,653 194,896
Other unallocated assets (Note) EtRpBEE# L) 18,628 10,255,607
Consolidated total assets REBAE 25,438,229 36,504,465
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

5

2022 included trade receivables of US$1,256,801,000
(approximately HK$9,793,370,000) and trade payables
of US$1,236,565,000 (approximately HK$9,635,685,000)
respectively that relate to the 140 Transactions.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 7o EBE #t @)
Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or Ao HNER SEHEERHEM
loss, assets and liabilities and other material BEXREEHE®)
items (continued)
2023 2022
—EB-= —=E_—
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(#EE3))
Reportable segment liabilities AE2/ATFERE
Logistic services Ym R 4,305,575 4,682,157
Commodity marketing e S 5,011,896 5,469,960
Engineering services Ti2AR% 313,927 285,489
Financial services RS 9,902,966 10,150,152
Elimination of inter-segment liabilities HERfE A EH (419,624) (492,330)
Total reportable segment liabilities AIZ2RD A B EETE 19,114,740 20,095,428
Unallocated liabilities: RAMETE :
Perpetual notes (Note 27(c)) KARE W E27(c) 359,587 358,446
Promissory Note (Note 27(a)) B (KT 7E27(a) 716,000 716,000
Current tax payable FETBNHARS 18 64,943 63,496
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIABE 249,040 249,390
Other unallocated liabilities (Note) H R B A& H ) 135,757 10,190,503
Consolidated total liabilities REBAaRE 20,640,067 31,673,263
Note: Other unallocated assets and liabilities at 31 December Mt RZTEZZ—_F+=-A=+—H ' &ft

ROMEERABREDAIE140IER
SHBENEWRE 5IRIE1,256,801,000
X T (#)7%8%9,793,370,0007T) M & -+
Z 5 BRI81,236,565,0003 7T (4978 1
9,635,685,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

R E B RS 3R R M e
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —F =4+ _H=+—H I
5 oIER@
i EE R

Geographic information

The logistic services and commodity marketing segments
are managed on a worldwide basis and the Group operates
principally in Mainland China, Singapore, other parts of Asia
Pacific Region, Europe, North America, Africa continent
and South America. Engineering services are primarily in
Singapore. Financial services operate mainly in Mainland
China, Singapore and North America.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical
segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical
locations from which the Group derives its revenue from
continuing operations. Segment non-current assets (other
than loans and receivables, financial instruments and
deferred tax assets) are based on the geographical location

VRRBEkEmE SO iR REEEE
B AEETERPEAM - BN R
O EM B AR - BUN - B3 - 3EM
RERmREEMEE - TIRRBEZEHM
¥ MeBREREZERTBEANL - 0
B RIEEMES -

i D BELEZRERE - DEBAR
AEBEEFELLEXBRBRAZAEL
BEE - DEIERBEE (BEREEURK
B eRMTAREEHBAEERINREE
PRt E -

of the assets.

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REMBEE ZWA BEFRRBEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-= _EF_— —E-= —=E-=
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BB F T
(Restated)
(#CE )
PRC s 25,335,560 25,841,494 125,696 111,541
Singapore SIS 3,731,910 2,600,163 4,239,029 4,440,300
Hong Kong B 69,788 69,156 3,416 5,576
Korea EE 1,522,842 1,272,158 491 326
Other Asia Pacific Efbon K RIA#E R
jurisdictions 2,919,914 2,859,925 544,122 536,141
Europe M 3,223,506 5,389,695 1,136,430 1,154,263
North America dEEM 241,815 328,606 22,268 23,543
Africa continent FEIM A e 148,467 223,027 54,364 59,671
South America mEM 32,493 104,806 8,656 12,251
37,226,295 38,689,030 6,134,472 6,343,612
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 D EE R @)
Information about major customers EREXEEFZER
No single customer contributed over 10% or more to the RZBZ=FRZFT-_—F  HEE—K
Group's consolidated revenue from continuing operations FAAEBZHBEREEBERGEAERA
for both 2023 and 2022. #10% A L ©
6 OTHER INCOME 6 Hab g A
2023 2022
—E-=HF —=E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
(Restated)
(= &%)
Continuing operations BESEER
Interest income on financial assets REEN T ECEREBEER S
measured at amortised cost WA 462,499 134,240
Dividend income from other financial HEihemEERSRA
assets 263 910
Government grants (Note) B w8 B (F7at) 7,971 12,757
Others HAh 34,442 86,383
505,175 234,290
Note: The Group received several government grants globally Biat - AEBESRGBEAWE ZHERNH

as measures introduced by local governments to protect
businesses and people from the economic disruption
caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. Singapore government
also introduces several grants to stimulate workforce and

human capital development.

8 DEHBRARELEBRARS
XCOVID-19RBERMKETEME
HEEYHEBE o B DN B IR HE % TR RS
REBSHHRANEAEE -
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7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER NET (LOSS)/GAIN

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

7 Hits(EB) WREFR

2023 2022
—g=-= —E -
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT B F T
(Restated)
(#EE 7))
Continuing operations FERSEER
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - HERREZ
equipment W 58 2,001 2,744
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries, HEHBAR - BE AT REE
associates and joint ventures ¥ (BB, WS FE (14,289) 228
Net foreign exchange gain b 5 W= F 5 10,926 28,443
Reversal/(recognition) of impairment FEUWE 5 BRTE & B FE I GRTE
losses on trade and other receivables BEEBERE, (FR) 1,809 (15,691)
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets & REEEREEE - (8,417)
Net loss on financial instruments carried AR EEF ABEZN S TA
at FVPL (Note(i)) BRFRE () (164,999) (358)
Others (Notefii) B (A a2 (7) (70,334) 20,484
(234,886) 27,433

Notes:

Wizt -

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group (i)
recognised a fair value loss on unlisted equity securities
carried at FVPL of approximately HK$163,920,000 (2022:

Nil).

(ii) As at 31 December 2023, the Group made a provision for (ii)
onerous contracts of HK$67,407,000 (2022: Nil).

HE-_T-_=F+=-A=+—HLHF
[ AEERERIZRALBEFABED
FLETRABLEAABEBELBE
163,920,000 (ZE = —4F : ) o

RZE-_=F+=-A=+—H8 ' ~5H
FHREBEES OB EHE67,407,0007T
(ZZE=Z=F : @) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMKHRERMT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ _—F =4+ _H =1+—HIFFEF
8 FINANCE COSTS 8 ELE= 0N
2023 2022
—EBC-Z=HF —=E-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T B F T
(Restated)
(#EE5l|)
Continuing operations FEREER
Interests expense on: FMERAZKE :
Bank borrowings and other facilities RITER R EMEE 272,411 174,950
Lease liabilities HEGE 102,882 107,297
Others HAh 54,792 12,824
Other finance costs A B & AR AN 41,169 20,685
471,254 315,756
Bank charges IRITFEE 49,997 52,477
521,251 368,233
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMKHRRMT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —F =4+ _H =—4—H ILFF
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9 B F5% A % A
Profit before taxation has been arrived after charging: B A& A2 0k
2023 2022
—E-=F —=E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(A& E )
Continuing operations HREREER
Staff costs, including Directors’ ETRAN(BRESHE) :
emoluments:
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEAREMEFR 1,419,894 1,318,983
Retirement benefit scheme RIREFIFT S 5R
contributions 99,940 94,267
1,519,834 1,413,250
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - WEREETE
equipment 212,187 207,740
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEENE 332,440 367,797
Amortisation of intangible assets mEE#H 28,967 29,154
Auditor's remuneration % ERN N 21,727 17,709
Cost of inventories sold EHEFENA 32,072,487 34,901,612
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MEMBHRRME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ _—F =4+ _H =—4+—H ILF &
10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10 FSHEX
2023 2022
—E-=F —F-—
HK$000 HK$'000
BETF T VBT T
Current tax (=R
Provision for the year — overseas FARE - BINTISHE
income tax 96,848 169,613
Under/(over)-provision in respect BEFERETIRS
of prior years (EBFER M) 2,260 (23,625)
99,108 145,988
Deferred tax charged for the year FRMBRELET I (H7231)

(Note 31) (7,322) (37,073)
Withholding tax A 15,812 11,170
Total income tax expense RSt 8% 107,598 120,085
Attributable from: FEML

- continuing operations - BECEER 121,642 118,277

- discontinued operation - EARIEREER (14,044) 1,808

107,598 120,085

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for
both years.

Taxation outside Hong Kong is calculated on the estimated
assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

BEZ-_=FR-FT-__F+=ZA=+
—HLEFE  ARAEERMEFE T E
REBELERRTEF - WL EREEF
SHRIEL B -

BRI HARB AT FARRT @
TR BB R AR 2 RITRH R E -
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10

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The Group has determined that the global minimum top-
up tax which is required to pay under Pillar Two legislation
is an income tax in the scope of HKAS 12. The Group has
applied a temporary mandatory relief from deferred tax
accounting for the impacts of the top-tax and accounts for it
as a current tax when it is incurred.

The tax jurisdiction of the Group's ultimate controlling
party, intermediate holding companies and immediate
holding company is the PRC. Although the PRC has not
enacted Pillar Two legislation, the Group is subject to Pillar
Two legislation as the Group has operations in certain
jurisdictions where the Pillar Two legislation is, enacted
and/or substantially enacted but not yet in effect during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

The Group has no tax expense related to the Pillar Two
legislation during the year ended 31 December 2023.

For group entities operating in jurisdictions where the Pillar
Two legislation is enacted or substantially enacted but not
yet in effect, the Group is in the process of assessing the
exposure to the Pillar Two income taxes arising from the
Pillar Two legislation. Based on the Group’s preliminary
assessment, the average effective tax rates calculated
based on accounting tax expense and the accounting profit
in two of the jurisdictions of which Group has operations in,
may potentially be less than the minimum tax rate of 15%.

However, all the adjustments required to determine
the effective tax rates in accordance with the Pillar Two
legislation have not been considered which could give
rise to different effective tax rates under the legislation.
Accordingly, other entities in the Group with higher
accounting average effective tax rates may also be
exposed to Pillar Two income taxes. Due to the complex
nature of the legislation and the calculations including the
determination of the adjustments required under the Pillar
Two legislations, the Group assessed that the quantitative
impact of the potential top-up tax arising from the enacted/
substantially enacted legislation is not yet reasonably
estimable.

10

Pigcrade )
AEEDETREE - S EEARNN
2HREBARBAE S HERE125
BENNFAEE - AEBEDHHBIHD
Y RRELH BT EREREIRR -
A AEE A RS S ELAE A ERRL B BR o

REBFKEES T - PRZERARRERE
ERAFMNREREEEATE - BEFP
BN AREHE ISR ERRAEE
EEEMK,REL FRHE ST E
BREEZTE-_=F+=-A=+—HILHF
EEAESNE TaAERBETER - W
NEBBEBTE - HEE o

HE-FT-=F+-A=+—BLLFE
A B 48 5 = SR OB B
i ]

ARERMAEE LBME - AEDEE
MAERNAZEREENEEER
B AKRELAENGS - XELEAELER
F_XEMEHER - REAKENY)ZS
arfh - RIEASBEKEAEMEREER
VEARAX R EFIENFENTHER
HER AR ER RIEHE15% o

7’

AW RIBEE - IHEIDEEEBRH XA
FOMARERARZE  HAEEEHT
AR THERBREEMAR - Bt - A&
EE FHERRERSNEMER A
BEMERSF —XIEMSHAR - ARIDER
AHENEME(BRREES —XMEDEEAT
PR AR REEREEE M EE LR
RO SDEEENBEMERNE(LEEN
REEERMEEF ©

2023 Annual Report / CWT International Limited

155



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10 FIEHEZ@
The Group continues to assess the financial impact of the rEE %%ZE FEE AN B
Pillar Two legislation and has engaged tax consultants to Z UWEENEERBASEETTE
assist the Group in the impact assessment. A o
Reconciliation between income tax and profit FrIEHEREABETEREFER
before taxation from continuing operations at EEBRBANGF 2 BAE IR
applicable tax rates:
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T JEMETF T
(Restated)
(A€ &)
Profit before taxation from continuing REFELEEBHRBRNR T
operations 179,365 489,979
Less: Share of profits less losses of W D EEREARIREERER
associates and joint ventures, Fm & B (kR i IE)
net of tax (44,241) (67,404)
135,124 422,575
Notional tax on profit before taxation, BRIGAIR A 2 BEIE - IRE
calculated at the rates applicable to AVEREE 2R EAREGTE
profit in the jurisdictions concerned 48,181 137,554
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TTTD%RF%&Z%R&‘*??‘E 97,298 47,653
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERMWA 2 R & (24,037) (15,985)
Tax effect of utilisation of previously not B/ %t Bl A FERR 2 B4 18 & 18 & &
recognised tax losses and allowances BRENERIMETE
and temporary difference, net HEE (28,876) (40,357)
Effect of changes in tax rates HEEgs g 957 =
Under/(over)-provision in respective BEFEBRETR(BREEE)
prior years 12,307 (21,708)
Withholding tax TR 15,812 11,120
Income tax expense FrigFif 121,642 118,277
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& B R R M 2
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —F =4+ _H =—4—H ILFF
11 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 11 EEREETHAEME
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments (a) EERBESTHAENS
Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments for the BE_Z-_=ZFR-_FT-_—_F+=
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are set A=+—BLFE EFRERT
out below: BABZMEHNMOT :
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions  emoluments
&R BHEA
e HiigFl HE LS “@ps
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
2023 —Z-=F
Executive Directors BiTES
Wang Kan (Note i) TR A - 1,865 181 2,046
Zhao Quan ezl - 1,051 - 1,051
Peng Biao £ - - - -
Xu Xu (Note if) &F(732i) - - - -
Yan Shen (Note i) BRfR (B &) - 958 58 1,016
Independent Non-executive ~ BIFHITES
Directors
Leung Shun Sang, Tony RIEE 300 - - 300
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin W 300 - - 300
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey Mg 300 - - 300
Liu Yifei (Note iv) BB EWiztiv) 24 - - 24
924 3,874 239 5,037
2022 —EC-CE
Executive Directors HiTES
Zhang Can (Note v) RIE(Hfzt) - - - -
Wang Kan (Note i) BRI iE) = 1,214 135 1,349
Zhao Quan izt = 1,103 = 1,103
Peng Biao 24 - - - -
Wu Jinfeng (Note vi) RE&Htvi) = 1,203 = 1,203
Yan Shen (Note i) BRf (B i) = 520 36 556
Independent Non-executive ~ BIFHTES
Directors
Leung Shun Sang, Tony 2% 300 = = 300
Liem Chi Kit, Kevin M 300 - - 300
Lam Kin Fung, Jeffrey Mz 300 = = 300
900 4,040 171 5111
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ ~F =41~ H =1 —HILF &

1

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments
(continued)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Wang Kan was appointed as an Executive
Director on 21 February 2022. Mr. Wang Kan is also
the Chief Executive Officer and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the Chief Executive Officer.

(ii) Mr. Xu Xu was appointed as an Executive Director
on 7 August 2023.

(iii) Ms. Yan Shen was appointed as an Executive
Director on 29 July 2022 and resigned on 7 August
2023.

(iv) Ms. Liu Yifei was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 20 November 2023.

(V) Mr. Zhang Can resigned as an Executive Director
on 21 February 2022.

(vi) Mr. Wu Jinfeng resigned as an Executive Director
on 29 July 2022.

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The Independent Non-executive Directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services as Directors of the Company.

During both years, no remuneration was paid by the
Group to the Directors or the Chief Executive Officer
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. There was no
arrangement under which a Director or the Chief
Executive Officer waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the years.

1

BEERERSTHAEMES®

(a)

EERBSTHRAEME (@)

Hiat -

(i) FRAEENR-_ZE-_—_F_A=
+—BREZEABTES - T
MALENBITHRAR - X
BEEHMEBIERERTTR
REIR M 2 RTE -

(ii) BEERER-_ZE-_=ZENALt
BEZTEBHTES -

(iii) BHMZtN B+ A=
THhBEEZEANTES I
R-ZZE-_=FN\ALHET-

(iv) BIRELLIR B =F+—
A+ REZERBIIIEHRT
-

(v) RBEEEN T -_—_F-_A—
+—HBERITES -

(vi) ReBEER-ZT-__F+A
ZHAHEBERITES -

EXFARZATEEME T BER
EFERARRRAKEFH 2 R7
B -

EXFARZBIFATEEME X
ERRERFERZIRGER -

RAEFER  AEBEYERAES
HITBARNME - (ERIMAK
AR B IL 2 SRR AE R RE R A
8 REZFFERNLEZEHITH
RENELREREZEAMENL
BEe
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11 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 11

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Five individuals with highest emoluments (b)

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments in
the Group, none (2022: none) of them is a Director
of the Company whose emoluments are set out

BEERERSTHAEMES®

EEREHFMAL

RAEERERSHFMALH - I
B|(CE__F B)ARAES -
BEZHEEN X - HBTE

above. The emoluments of the remaining five (2022: (ZE_ZF - mR)ATZEEwW
five) individuals are as follows: T
2023 2022
—E-=HE —E-=
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Salaries and other benefits FehEMmEF 30,063 35,838
Bonus TE4T 44,281 37,715
Contributions to retirement benefit BRREFETE 2 73R
schemes 312 627
74,656 74,180
The emoluments were within the following bands: HEZHESHENT ¢
2023 2022
—ZE=-= —E-—
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
EEHE EE#E
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 FE 14,500,001 TTE B EE
5,000,0007C - 1
HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000 719,500,001 TTE 7B
10,000,0007T 1 1
HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000 711,500,001 TTE B
12,000,0007T 2 2
HK$12,500,001 to HK$13,000,000 75 112,500,001 TTE B
13,000,0007T 1 =
HK$28,500,001 to HK$29,000,000 75 128,600,001 TTE B 1
29,000,0007T 1 =
HK$35,500,001 to HK$36,000,000 75 135,600,001 TT =78 1
36,000,0007T - 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

Bt 75 R 2R MY &

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ ~F =41~ H =1 —HILF &

12

13

DIVIDEND 12 KRE
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders ARARBEZZ_=F R =__F+
of the Company during the years ended 31 December 2023 A=t HUEFEVER LT BRARES
and 2022, nor has any dividend been proposed after the M@ MEARE - BRERREL
end of reporting period. BEBRIMNEAEKE -
DISCONTINUED OPERATION 13 BRIELKEHEK
The Group ceased structured trading services business AEER-ZT=FRILAEBUE IR
in 2023. Structured trading services business engages in X HEUEIRBEBREREFEXK
structured trade financing and trade facilitation according MM HERMEEEEEIMERESE
to the customers’ requirements and market demand At BRemREOBOEEEBELD
which represented a major line of business in the financial Eit - Z"EBNEEEE ZRBEBHER
services segment. Accordingly, the Group’s structured BREBEEZZT_=F+A=1+—HL*F
trading services business was considered as discontinued EEIE -
during the year ended 31 December 2023.
The profit/(loss) for the year from the structured trading RELBEE FIRGEENEE R, (&
services business is set out below. The comparative figures B)HINWT - iRe B REMEEKER
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other FRLBRETEOLEY - UBEBLHES
comprehensive income have been restated to re-present RISEBEF2INRERILEET -
the structured trading services business as a discontinued
operation.
2023 2022
—E-= —EF-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT JEMETF T
Results of discontinued operation CRIEREXETEE
Revenue (Note) WA (HTa2) 1,615,916 5,210,425
Cost of sales SHE R (1,607,327) (5,151,835)
Gross profit EH 8,589 58,590
Other income and net (loss) HEmA K (EE)F58 3,623 (125,479)
Selling and distribution costs HERSHER - (12,336)
Administrative expenses THRAX (1,004) (31,741)
Finance costs B AR (3,781) (3,839)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREL AT F,(B518) 7,427 (114,805)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrigdiEe, (Ax) 14,044 (1,808)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEmM(E8) 21,471 (116,613)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: LATATEEFE
wmF, (Ei8) -
Owners of the Company KATEE A 21,360 (116,823)
Non-controlling interests IR 111 210
21,471 (116,613)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 13 BRIEKLEEL®
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue Wt - RBEZT-—_F+-_A=+—HIHF
generated from structured trading services includes B RAEMEIHRBELRABER
US$160,000 (approximately HK$1,253,000) net revenue 14078 58 R F A 160,000E 7T
that relates to the 140 Transactions, of which US$120,000 (#)7%8%1,253,0007T) * E71120,000%%
(approximately HK$940,000) and US$40,000 (approximately JC (%97 #940,0007T) &% 40,0003 7T (#)
HK$313,000) were generated from Singapore and North 75 %313,0007T) 75 Bl EE A B #Th03 Kk dtb
America respectively. EM
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operation REBKIEEEEBOFENEF, (E18)
included the following: BIETSIA
2023 2022
—E-=FE —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
B FT Vit v
Staff costs, including Directors’ BINA(BEEEHE):
emoluments:
Salaries, wages and other benefits H& - TERHMER 337 9,339
Retirement benefit scheme RIREAIFT B 5R
contributions 157 188
494 9,527
Auditor’s remuneration % ERRN BN & 267 274
(Reversal)/recognition of impairment (Bm),/ TEREWE SRE R
losses on trade and other receivables H A UGRIE RV AR 1B (17.404) 12,205
Provision for a legal case —TNEARRNRE - 125,119
Cash flows from/(used in) discontinued operation: ERIEEEEBHG  (FRBESRE
2023 2022
—E-=F —F-—
HK$°000 HK$'000
B FT Vet v
Net cash (used in)/from operating asEE)(FTR) TR IRE F5
activities (20,625) 58,037
Net cash from investing activities WEEBFBIAEFE 554 513
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities & EBNFTS, (FrA)IR & F 5 21,290 (88,738)
Net cash flows for the year FAREREFRE 1,219 (30,188)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE 14 BRKRER
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXEF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is ERERBMNIIRE T 75X E
based on: g
(i) The profit for the year attributable to (i) KL AHEEAEGFEEZF

owners of the Company

2023 2022
—EB-= —F -
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T B TF T
From continuing and REFELERDKRLEL
discontinued operations =ES
Profit attributable to owners of RARVHER AEE T
the Company 39,093 153,213
From continuing operations REFELSEEL
Profit attributable to owners of RARHER AEE T
the Company 39,093 163,213
Less: Profit/(loss) for the year B REBRIEEEER
from discontinued MEERF,
operation (E518) 21,360 (116,823)
Profit attributable to owners of REFELEEBHERR
the Company from continuing AIYER AEE R A
operations 17,733 270,036
(i) The weighted average number of (i) FARAEBBTETBBRMNEFLHEE
ordinary shares of 11,399,996,101 (2022: 11,399,996,101f (=& = =
11,399,996,101) in issue during the year, 11,399,996,101 %) & EIFE L& &
which is the same as for both continuing B IEREEEB A RIS ELE TS
and discontinued operations and continuing R o
operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b)

(c)

Diluted earnings per share

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings
per share presented for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 in respect of a dilution as
the Company does not have any dilutive potential
ordinary shares in existence.

From discontinued operation

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the
discontinued operation is HK 0.18 cents per share
(2022: Loss HK 1.03 cents per share), based on the
profit for the year from the discontinued operation
of approximately HK$21,360,000 (2022: loss for
the year HK$116,823,000) and the denominators
detailed above for both basic and diluted earnings
per share.

14 BRERN@

(b)

(c)

SR#ERR

R AR F I EAT A E B LR
B MR B E T =K
T —_F+-_A=+—HIFEEZ
Nz BREARFGEERFE -

RECKRIREETK
ERIECEEBNERERN R E
BAFNAFRISHBIN(ZE==
F o TREE1.038M) - HRE
BRI EERFE R ML B
21,360,000 (ZZE=——4F : FRE
1875%116,823,0007T) LA K& &
e EARGRET &GRSR
O RETE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 ¥ BERRKE

Furniture,
Leasehold Plant, Motor fittings,
land,  machinery vehicles  computers, Assets
buildings and and and and office under
improvements  equipment trailers  equipment  construction Total
Bl %8
8% BE - HER ERRHAE
JUEE FE  REAEE Ed kEEE Gl
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
B¥Fr  BEFT B¥Fr BETT B¥Tn BT
COST A
At 1 January 2022 RZE--%-A-H 4,031,540 69,433 42,279 45,879 5000 4,194,201
Transfers EE 26,179 = = 154 (26,333) =
Reclassifications (Note 16 & 17) ENPBWRI6R17) = 4010 176 = (381) 3805
Additions AE 2,978 10,880 14,628 10,758 22,567 61811
Acquisition through business combination ﬁ}ﬁ%% Pris - = = 4 = 40
Disposals e (8,235) (2,963) (10,743 (5,448) - (27,389)
Write-off ks (2,140) - - (1,908) - (4,045)
Exchange realignment BHAR (39,185 (8,234) (1,814) (5,695 (623) (55,551
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 W=B-ZE+ZA=1-BRK
“E-=E-B-H 4,011,137 13126 44,526 43,783 320 4,172,892
Transfers g () 99 - (58) - -
Reclassifications (Vote 16) EAEW:16) - 3827 - - - 3827
Additions ?I‘\E 5922 20,188 22,41 15,551 1567 11475
Disposals & (782) (11,973) (15,818) (5,344) - (33,917)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAA - - - (292) - (292)
Exchange realignment B3 a% 83,642 5,789 1,669 285 124 91509
At 31 December 2023 RZB-ZE+ZA=1-H 4,099,878 91,056 52,624 53,925 8,0m 4,305,494
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND RERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2022 R-2ZZ4-R-R 503437 1,501 12,920 20873 - 538,731
Reclassffications (ot 76) BB (Wit16) - 3,981 176 - - 4,157
Charge for the year EMEHR 171,003 18,90 8,849 8983 = 207,740
Disposals e (2,99 (3179 (9.998) (5,352) - 21,521)
Write-off fi (2,140) - - (1,549) - (3,689)
Exchange realignment B3 % (23,283) (6,200) (1,708) (4,476) - (35,667)
At 31December 2022 and 1 January 2023 R=E-ZE+-f=t+-AR
“E-ZE-B-R 646,025 15,008 10,239 18,479 - 689,751
Reclassifications (Note 16) ENnRi6) - 3827 - - - 3827
Transfer Etcd (18) - - 18 - -
Charge for the year R 175,785 18,933 7,203 10,176 - 212,187
Disposals ik (688) (11,932) (14,435) (5,117) - (32172)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAF - - - (286) - (286)
Exchange realignment L 26,117 4,802 1221 174 - 32,920
At 31 December 2023 R-%=ZF+-f=t-R 847,821 30638 432 23,444 -6
NET BOOK VALUE BERE
At 31 December 2023 RZB-ZF+-A=1-H 3,252,057 60,418 48,300 30,481 8,011 3,399,267
At 31 December 2022 RE-ZF+ZF=1+-H 3,365,112 58,118 34,287 25,304 320 3,483,141
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16 FRAEEE
Furniture,
Office, Plant, fittings,
buildings ~ machinery Motor  computers
and and vehicles  and office
Land  warehouses  equipment and trailers  equipment Total
B B
HAE BF HE #H EMRMAE

1# keE kR REREE R @t
HK$ 000 HKSO00  HK$UOO  HKSUOO  HKSOOO  HKSU00
AT E8Tn  E¥Fr ¥ ERTr BETr

COST A

At 1 January 2022 RZE-ZF-F-H 849,311 3,188,490 89,442 24,571 7,385 4,159,199
Reclassifications (Note 15) SRR - - (4,010 (176) - (4,186)
Additions NE 3,520 59,333 9,452 4,846 2,207 79,358
Retired/terminated &8/ (52,551) (62,054) (4487) (2,929) (392 (122413
Lease modification HEE] 5,926 (267.810) 47 631 (1973 (262,754)
Exchange realignment EiAE 28126) (13523) 2,233 1,198) (56) (45,133

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 RZEZZE+ZA=1-RAR

“E-=E-B-R 778080 2904436 88,636 25,748 171 3,804,071
Reclassifications (Note 75) BN BW15) - - (3.827) - - (3.827)
Additions hE 829 52,431 9,989 4,388 356 67,993
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAT - (6,027) - - - (6,027)
Retired/terminated HE /&1 - (218,926) (5,998) (2,783) (134)  (22780)
Lease modification REEBHT 42,021 35,293 (548) 338 292 77,396
Exchange realignment A% 16,446 35,190 2,181 290 118 54,225
At 31 December 2023 R-B-zE+-A=t-8 837376 2,802,397 90,433 27,981 7803 3,765,990
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

Bt 75 R 2R MY &

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

16 FHAREE®

Furniture,
Office, Plant, fittings,
buildings ~ machinery Motor  computers
and and vehicles  and office
Land  warehouses  equipment andtrailers  equipment Total
Bl %8
WAZ BT HE AR ERRHAE
i# kEE RitE  AEREE Ed st
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
Vel A A¥fr  BFTn EEFn EEFn BETx
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND ZiERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2022 RZB--%-F-A 221,743 1,020,804 46,813 13,549 3,197 1,312,106
Depreciation charge for the year ENERH 37,940 305,679 17,142 5,591 1,445 367,797
Reclassifications (Vote 15) ENARMWi) 279 - (3,981) (176) - (3878)
Retired/terminated #E /A1 (62,551) (62,054) (4,487) (2,929 (392) (122.413)
Lease modification U - 13,849) (68) (506) (1,598) (16,021)
Impairment losses HEFE = 8417 = = = 8417
Exchange realignment EiAE 4,443) (2,063) (1,017) (834) (56) (8.413)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 RZB-Z§+ZA=1-Ak
ZE-=f-F-A 208,968 1,256,934 54,402 14,695 2596 1537595
Depreciation charge for the year FRETL 35,469 22,21 17,037 6,231 1,482 332,440
Reclassifications (Note 15) Exipplliral) - - (3,827) - - (3,827)
Retired/terminated #E /AL - (218,926) (5,998) (2,783) (134) (227,841
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLE - (4,236) - - - (4,236)
Lease modification i - (37,365) (1,021) 134 (70 (38322)
Exchange realignment 7% 3924 13,762 1314 189 57 19,246
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=E+ZA=1-A 248,361 1,282,390 61,907 18,466 3931 1,615,005
CARRYING AMOUNT HEfE
At 31 December 2023 RZB-Z%+-A=1-H 589,015 1,520,007 28,526 9,515 3812 21150935
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZE+ZfA=1-H 569,112 1,647,502 34,234 11,063 4575 2,266,476
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMKHRRMT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —F =4+ _H =—4—H ILFF
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17 BREE
Customer LME  Computer Business
contracts Licence  software relationships Brand Total
LME
EFEH FUE BEE# E304 1A miE B3
HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
BEFT BT BEFT BEFT  BETT  BMTT
COoST K&
At 1 January 2022 WZE--5-A-H 24,600 36,841 43,345 104,172 249,441 458,399
Additions NE - - 3,555 - - 3,555
Reclassifications (Note 75) Eiprl(iE) = = 660 = = 660
Exchange realignment BT 157 236 (1,023) (706) 700 (636)
At 31 December 2022 and RZB-ZE+-A=+-AEK
1 January 2023 “E-zE-A-H 24,757 37,077 46,537 103,466 250,141 461,978
Additions NE - - 1,476 - - 1,476
Exchange realignment EHRE 440 659 358 (980) 2,615 3,092
At 31 December 2023 R=BZ=f+-A=+-H 25,197 37,736 48,371 102,486 252,756 466,546
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION ~ Z5ris
At 1 January 2022 WZE-_-F5-f-8 21,320 36,841 5,681 102,936 107,272 274,050
Charge for the year FRGHE 3227 = 1268 = 24,659 29,154
Exchange realignment AR 210 236 (894 (714) 3653 (809)
At 31 December 2022 and RIB--—&#4+-F=1+-HEK
1 January 2023 “E-=F-f-H 24,757 37,077 6,055 102,222 132,284 302,395
Charge for the year FREHR - - 3,670 - 25,297 28,967
Exchange realignment ERAE 440 659 174 (1,001) 893 1,165
At 31 December 2023 R=BZ=f+=-A=+-H 25,197 37,736 9,899 101,221 158474 332527
NET BOOK VALUE REFHE
At 31 December 2023 RZE-=%+-A=t-AH - - 38,472 1,265 94,282 134,019
At 31 December 2022 WZE-_—%+-A=+-H - - 40,482 1,244 117,857 159,583
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

18

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18 REE QTR
2023 2022
—E=-= T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT B F T
Share of net assets [EIE & EFE 258,402 195,334
Goodwill on acquisition KhEmeE 31,871 6,289
Quasi-equity loan to an associate BT —EBE R a2 B8
RARE K 2,090 2,094
292,363 203,717

Quasi-equity loan to an associate is interest-free and forms
part of the Group’s net investment in that associate. The
loan is unsecured and settlement is neither planned nor

likely to occur in the foreseeable future.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, all associates are
unlisted and each of them does not have a significant
financial impact on the Group's results and financial
position. Aggregate financial information of associates that

BY-—HBERAZBURKTER SR
B UBKAKEREE QR ZREFR
Z— B o HERAEEN - WHESEIT
PARATRER ] B ARKAES ©

RIB-_=FR-_FB_—_F+-_A=+—
A FEBEARHAELT  BEEY
REBZE¥BERMBHERIEHEE NGB
2o EEARIERBENRZBAEMBEER

are not individually material is as follows: AN
2023 2022
—B-= —E -
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T B F T
Carrying amount in the consolidated RERE M EHRE 2 REE
financial statements 292,363 203,717
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share ANEBERZEBE NG 2 2E
of associates’
— Profit for the year - FREH 38,571 67,433
— Other comprehensive expense -Ht2EAX (4,980) (270)
Total comprehensive income 2EK AR 33,591 67,163
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19

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18 REE DT 2 EHE W
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group BE_ZTZ-_=F+ZH=1T—BL*#F
acquired additional interests in CWT-SML Logistics LLC B ARBEURE16EEHBNE(HEE
("CWT-SML"), an existing joint venture of the Group, 34,553,0000) WEEAEBIR AL ¥
with consideration of AED16 million (approximately CWT-SML Logistics LLC([CWT-SML])
HK$34,553,000). Upon the completion of the acquisition MR ED  c RAEEZTKKER - K
by the Group, the Group's interests in CWT-SML increased SEENRCWT-SMLAEZH40%E INE
from 40% to 45%. Under the new cooperation agreement, 45% - RIS ERHE - 5B — BRI
there was an additional shareholder in CWT-SML. The FENRCWT-SML  RNREBEEHFFECWT-
Group reassessed the controlling structure of CWT-SML SMLEVIZE & - WS HEHR - A5E
and concluded that the Group no longer has joint control HCWT-SMLN B A L RZEHIE - Bt
in CWT-SML. Accordingly, CWT-SML ceased to be a joint CWT-SMLTBAXRRGMEEDLE I
venture of the Company and is accounted for an associate ABRINERRRIMBEE ARG - REER
of the Company. The Group's interests in CWT-SML CWT-SMLI = EE AR AZAR - M
continue to be accounted for under the equity method Fri R BB BFT U B & A R BEIME R IE
and the excess of the consideration paid over the share of HEEEREEN - BRREEEK
carrying amount of net assets attributable to the additional 25,100,0007T + Wt AHEE A =AY IR
interests in associates acquired was recognised as goodwill M1 -
of HK$25,100,000 included in the carrying amount of
interests in associates.
INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19 NREegEhLEIRESR
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, all joint ventures are RIE_=FR B _—_F+_A=+—
unlisted and each of them does not have a significant B ABeECEIRIELT  A8EY
financial impact on the Group's results and financial REBZEZERVBRAEBEERV B
position. Aggregate financial information of joint ventures 2 ERREREELE I EBEUBTER
that are not individually material is as follows: NN
2023 2022
—E-= —EF-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT JBEMETF T
Carrying amount in the consolidated RirA I HE 2 RAE
financial statements 139,372 212,208
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share ARNEBERZEAE X AE
of joint ventures’
— Profit/(loss) for the year - FRm Al (E518) 5,670 (29)
— Other comprehensive income/ - Em2EiE (A2
(expense) 3,518 (3,384)
Total comprehensive income/(expense)  2EW#,(Fix%) 8% 9,188 (3,413)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ ~F =41~ H =1 —HILF &

20 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 20 HihE@mEE
2023 2022
—E-= g
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
k23 BT T BT
Non-current: FERE :
Financial assets measured at BAREBEFTABRFENS
FVPL AEE
- Unlisted equity securities - EEMRAES 28,908 195,152
Financial assets measured at BAREBEFAHMZE KRS
FvOcCI HWemEE
- Unlisted equity securities - EETMRAFE S5 (i) 1,539 1,530
30,447 196,682
Current: E
Financial assets measured at REBHERITENESREE
amortised cost
- Quoted treasury securities -BEBRERKZ26(b)
(Note 26(b)) (1) 1,336,965 1,410,748
Financial assets measured at BAREBETABRFENS
FVPL BEE
~ Listed equity securities - ETRAES 788 1,844
1,337,753 1,412,592

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

The Group designated the unquoted equity securities as at
FVOCI as these equity investments represent investments
that the Group intends to hold for the long-term for
strategic purposes. The unquoted equity securities are
equity shares in American Financial Exchange LLC.

As at 31 December 2023, the treasury securities are
quoted with yields ranging from 4.32% to 5.44% (2022:
1.05% to 4.75%) with maturity dates between 1 to 12
months (2022: 1 to 12 months). The treasury securities
were purchased using customer segregated funds held
and are either pledged as margin deposits with the Chicago
Mercantile Exchange (“CME"), pledged as margin deposits
with a subsidiary’s carry brokers or held in a safekeeping
account at a subsidiary’s settlement bank.

w2 -

(i)

(i)

AEBRETERERAFSREAAE
Bt AREMEZERE @ RESZERA
REEAEERMERE B OREFHEN
RE - BREBRAEZAEBRESRS
PRA R A BRI B AR -

R-IEBE-_=F+_A=+—H BEE%
WA RRENFA4.32%E5.44% (= F
T 1 1.05%%4.75%) - BIEENF
12128 (ZF==F : 1Z121@A8) -
BEAFERMBsEEFOBESREE -
WRZMIFERR S ((ZRF)) KR
BRES R—TENBRRREAELL
ANEHARESSIR —HWB AR
HIRTRERFAFE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

21

22

INVENTORIES 21 FE
2023 2022
—EBC-Z=HF —=E-—
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Commodity inventories at fair value BEARBEFEZARTE 2,331,980 1,200,592
Commodity inventories at lower of cost  RAKA N Al IR FERIEKETE
and net realisable value ZEmEE 640,217 2,014,775
Raw materials R 3,843 8,179
Finished goods LIRK oh 8,585 10,803
Others Hb 12 6
2,984,637 3,234,355
TRADE RECEIVABLES 22 EWEZERE
2023 2022
—EB-=HF —E-=
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Trade debtors and bills receivables at RBERAFTENRKNE SER
amortised cost ANERR &R E R 750,123 10,674,319
Less: Loss allowance B BER s (28,479) (64,299)
721,644 10,610,020
Trade receivables containing provisional  #Z AR EBEAEBRAENEE
pricing features, measured at FVPL Tk EBRENEREZRE 1,553,720 1,782,141
2,275,364 12,392,161

All of the trade receivables are expected to be recovered

within one year.

BHIMARWE ZRESR —FAKE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

Bt 75 R 2R MY &

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ ~F =41~ H =1 —HILF &

22 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 22 EWEZERE®
Trade receivables at 31 December 2022 included balance of KRB - F+_-_A=+—HHEWKEZE
US$1,256,801,000 (approximately HK$9,793,370,000) that SBEBERFEHE140ER 5 (R HiE2(a))
relate to the 140 Transactions (see Note 2(a)) and was fully Bz 81,256, 801 OOO%TE(Z’] B
settled by the end of August 2023. 9,793,370,0007T) ' EREN T =4
/\H ’_lelil/ﬁ ©
As at 31 December 2023, trade receivables amounted to RZE-_=F+-_A=+—H  EKE
HK$9,130,000, HK$5,335,000 and HK$3,742,000 (2022: SHRTEE 9,130,000t * & #5,335,000
HK$12,624,000, HK$5,317,000 and HK$3,205,000), are TN EH3,742,000L (Z 2 ZF : B
due from the Group's associates, joint ventures and other 12,624,0007T * #%5,317,0007T K&
related parties, respectively. 3,205,0007T) % 7l A& B YL AN & [F B & A
A AEEREAMRBEE S 2B -
As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis RMEER - EREZAHRCHBRER
of trade debtors and bills receivables based on the invoice BERTEZERRESES AR EK
date and net of loss allowance, is as follows: FERZREROTHT
2023 2022
—E-= =S
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
0-90 days 0-90H 2,186,879 2,443,275
91-180 days 91-180H 78,242 9,933,051
181-365 days 181-365H 8,153 14,043
1-2 years 1-24F 2,090 1,792
2,275,364 12,392,161
Further details of the Group’s credit policy and expected FRRKBEGEERRREREEEERE
credit loss allowances are set out in Note 37(b). ZHE— B ERMEE37(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23 FEMNFRIE - RERHEAMEWK

RECEIVABLES b1 |
2023 2022
—E-= =
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
&t BT T BT
Assets held or segregated in NBVRPRBS D2 EE
separate accounts (a) 9,507,969 9,657,697
Deposits and other receivables e ME M ERFRIE (b) 288,849 632,530
Amounts due from other related [ Ug E {th B Es 5 718
parties (c) 3,546 6,079
Loans to non-controlling interests  [AIFEFE MG RE2E B X (d) 4,121 4,252
9,804,485 10,200,458
Prepayment and deferred costs FEA B R IRIERK AN 224,810 139,889
10,029,295 10,340,347
Less: non-current portion B SERBER D (82,350) (29,621)
9,946,945 10,310,826
Notes: Btet -
(a) The balance included customers’ funds of HK$7,831,546,000 (a) EHRPREABASERASECHRE
(2022: HK$8,510,793,000) held by the Group in respect of SGRERBEBERBECEFPESAY
the Group's commodity marketing and financial services, 7.831,546,000c (Z =4 : B
which are required to be held in segregated accounts by laws 8,510,793,0007T) * & ZEH S IRIEF M
and regulations of the Securities and Futures Act ("SFA”") FermERER(HMESRERR])
governed by Monetary Authority of Singapore (“MAS"), the FREEvEHFRBER((RFREE
Commodities Trading Act (“CTA") governed by International ED - FMEEERCEERRER (5 M
Enterprise Singapore (“IE Singapore”), Commodity BERCERRERDMEEZHRREE
Futures Trading Commission (“CFTC") in the USA and ((RRXBZE])  XBERRBERSE
the Commodity Futures Trading Law in Indonesia. These Eg((BRPERSEER]]) RIHER
customers' funds are included in “trade and other payables mEBERGEZERRER - BER
(see Note 26(b)). BUYKRFIE  REEFPESTTAIE
NESEEBEREMEMSRE] (BT
26(b)) °
(b) Deposits and other receivables included guarantee deposits (b) BHe REMEKRIBBREFEN SN
of HK$72,315,000 (2022: HK$19,087,000) placed at CME RN A R 5 M (IR EARS
and Asia Pacific Exchange (“APEX"). Frl) 2 ReE R & 5%72,315,000T (=%
4 : #%19,087,0007T) ©
(c) Amounts due from other related parties represented non- (c) JE M EL i B S 5 SR B PR FE M = A A -
trade amounts due from associates, joint ventures and BELERERER ZIFEHHNIR -
non-controlling interests are unsecured, interest-free and BEEE - B RIREREE -
repayable on demand.
(d) Loans to non-controlling interests include a balance of (d) MIIEEREZERBEEHRBE

HK$249,000 (2022: HK$390,000) which is unsecured,
interest-bearing at 9% (2022: 9%) per annum and repayable
by May 2027. The remaining balance is unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

249,0007T (Z & = — 4 : #%390,000
J0) A AEERE  BFEFEI%
(ZZEZZF 9% B RARZZE =
tFERARIEE - REAEEF 28
MBIRERIER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

24 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 24 BHEEREGHERE
LIABILITIES
The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's rights AHEEFTEARSEREERYARBER
to consideration for work completed but not billed at the MEAHETHRENAREER TRERR
reporting date for logistics services rendered. The contract BOENBE - BEAKASEEER &
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights WEERERZREKNEZRE  BEAXR
become unconditional. This usually occurs when the Group SENRFHAEBEEREA -
invoices customers.
The contract liabilities primarily relate to advance EHNBBEFZHBEREFPRELR H#E
consideration received from customers. During the years CEC=FR-E_F+ZA=1+—H
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, current contract IEFE - FYNRESENBEERFAR
liabilities at beginning of the year has been recognised as RN o
revenue during the year.
25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 25 HEeRBREEEBEBUREM
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION HEeEREEHR
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BRERFESEEEBEEHZAK:
2023 2022
—E-=F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ST IT
Cash and bank deposits, representing 38& RIRTTIFEK © EREGREET
cash and cash equivalents in the BHRARZESMREE
consolidated statement of financial (ERERE]
position 1,998,840 1,609,650
Less: VA
Bank overdrafts RITEX (4,221) (5,741)
Cash and cash equivalents in the R RERERZEES R
consolidated statement of cash He%EIER
flows 1,994,619 1,603,909
Bank balances carry interest at prevailing bank saving WITEFREENTF0.01%E
deposits rates ranging from 0.01% to 4.05% (2022: 405%(ZZFE=Z=_F :0.01%=%
0.01% to 3.40%) per annum. 3.40%) 2 BATIRITRAB T R FIEE
5 .
174
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 25 HEeRBREEEBEBUREM
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION HEREER®
(continued)
(b) Reconciliation of profit for the year to cash (b) FERMNELEEKEMERS
generated from operations Z ¥ iR
2023 2022
—EB-= —F -
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
HtaE BT T BT T
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRELATE ], (B518)
- from continuing operations ~ — 3K BB K S TS 179,365 489,979
- from discontinued - REERIEREFET
operation 7,427 (114,805)
186,792 375,174
Adjustments for: P
Depreciation of property, Y - BEREEITE
plant and equipment 15 212,187 207,740
Amortisation of intangible B EEH
assets 17 28,967 29,154
Depreciation of right-of-use CREEENE
assets 16 332,440 367,797
Interest expenses and other FERTREMREE
finance costs BN 475,035 319,595
Net loss on financial BAnBEFAERSN
instruments carried at TR TEEE
FVPL HEE 7 164,999 358
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of:  HETNIER ZEE,~
(U zs) 58 -
— subsidiaries, associates -HEAR - BEAA
and joint ventures LEEE 7 14,289 (228)
- property, plant and - - BB RS
equipment 7 (2,001) (2,744)
Interest income FEUA (463,152) (133,859)
Share of profit of associates DR E R REE D
and joint ventures vl (44,241) (67,404)
Dividend income from other HHEMEeREEESH
financial assets AR B A 6 (263) (910)
Reversal on deferred BOREEERE
purchase consideration - (6,635)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =41~ H=1—HILFE

25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit for the year to cash

HEeERBEESEEBUREM
BeEREER®

(b) HFEBNEKEXBHRERE

generated from operations (continued) 2 ¥ iR (48)
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
HtaF BT T JBEMEF T
(Reversal)/recognition of TIEE 2 REBE
impairment losses on: (B[R, TR
- right of use assets - FREEE 7 - 8,417
- trade and other receivables - JEUE 5 BR1E K Hith
FEU T IB (19,213) 27,896
Provision for a legal case —TNERRMNRE - 125,119
Gain on bargain purchase BT E - (6,102)
Gain arising from lease MEE]FTEE /WS
modification (4,032) (28,852)
Operating cash flows before EEECEBIYIIKERS
changes in working capital mE 881,807 1,214,516
Decrease/(increase) in FERL /(5
inventories 302,740 (637,268)
Decrease/(increase) in trade FEUE 5 BR 18 K E Ath R UK
and other receivables and REREHNEERL
contract assets (& n) 6,067,300 (9,886,716)
Net change in derivative PTESMITAFES
financial instruments 132,814 130,237
Decrease in warrantable LME AR 2 LMER &
commodities - 64,927

(Decrease)/increase in trade BT E ZAR1E R H Ab e

and other payables and REREGHEE
contract liabilities CR ) /1 hn

Decrease in employee benefits 18 2 & FjE 4

Decrease in provisions B

Cash generated from
operations

REXBGABZRE

(6,394,305) 11,162,410

(3,446) (2,241)
(35,909) (36,309)
951,001 2,009,556
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(continued)

(c)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group's
liabilities from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as
cash flows from financing activities.

25 HeRBREEEBEBUREM
BEREER®

(c) BMEFBELRBEZHIR

TRHFLAEEREBRELZHNE
EEH(ERRERFRCED) -
REDEANRBER/RSRER
IRKRERERRAKEGEER
EREXRTRESBELDREER
BZRE-

Loan from
Loans and non-controlling
borrowings Lease liabilities interests Total
REFER
BRRER RESE BRZER ait
(Note) (Note 29(a)) (Note 26(e))
(Hit) (Hf5229(a)) (H&£26(e))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETR BETT
At 1 January 2023 RZZE-=F—F—H 5,726,355 2,454,226 87,566 8,268,147
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ BRERLHELH
New borrowings raised BTN 1,788 - 26,572 28,360
Issue of digital bonds BETES 381,544 - - 381,544
Repayment of borrowings BEER (499,655) - - (499,655)
Capital element of lease payment REMTKEREH - (318,225) - (318,225)
Increase element of lease payment RERFFBBH - (102,660) - (102,660)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ #BERETEEH (116,323) (420,885) 26572 (510,636)
Changes from operating cash flows: ~ EEBREHELH
Interest paid ERHE (323,762) - - (323,762)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SEEXREH 2 &€ 28,368 35,381 8,441 72,690
Other changes: Hit2
New leases e - 67,993 - 67,993
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBAF - (1,806) (115,554) (117,360)
Lease modification HEEHT - 111,732 - 111,732
Net movement in other payable HhERFETED (45,234 89 - (45,145)
Interest expense and other finance MERT REMBERK
costs 372,153 102,882 - 475,035
Total other changes BHEE 326,919 280,890 (115,554) 492,255
At 31 December 2023 RZFZ=51-A=1-H 5,642,057 2,349,612 7,025 7,998,694
177
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 25 HERRSEEERURHAM
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION HEREER @
(continued)
(¢) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) BMETHELEEBZHIER®E

financing activities (continued)

Loan from
Loans and non-controlling
borrowings  Lease liabilities interests Total
REFER
EFRfEH HEAR BRZER at

(Note) (Note 29(a)) (Note 26(e))

(liz3) (H#29) (H#26e))
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BETT BEFT BETT BETT

At 1 January 2022 RZZE-—F—F—H 5,403,589 3,034,542 103,173 8,541,304
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ BEREHELH :
New borrowings raised EEIER 462,632 = = 462,532
Repayment of borrowings BEER (144,815) - (8,091) (152,906
Capital element of lease payment RERFERSH - (344,360) - (344,360)
Increase element of lease payment HE R M EHH = (107,297) - (107,297)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ BREELHEED 317,717 (451,657 (8,091) (142,031)

Changes from operating cash flows: ~ EEBEHELH

Interest paid BRFIS (181,457) = - (181,457)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes NEER# 8 5/& (25,792) (41,694) (7,516) (75,002)
Other changes: Hit#25
New leases Mg - 79,358 - 79,358
Lease modification REBET - (273,620) - (273,620)
Interest expense and other finance costs | 85I B E gt 4B K 212,298 107,297 = 319,595
Total other changes BEhE 212,298 86,965) = 125,333
At 31 December 2022 RZB--F+-A=1-A 5,726,355 2,454,226 87,566 8,268,147
Note: Hiat
Loan and borrowings consist of all the current and non- ERRERBENT27EEN AR
current loans and borrowing as disclosed in Note 27, R IEENEIE R R AR - MHERITEZBR
except the bank overdrafts. G o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(continued)

(d)

(e)

Major non-cash transaction

During the year ended 31 December 2023, trade
receivables and trade payables of approximately
US$552,170,000 (equivalent to HK$4,088,802,000)
that relate to the 140 Transactions (see Note 2(a))
were offset and settled under net settlement
agreements.

Pledged bank deposits

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged
to banks to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group. The deposits have been pledged to
secure bank overdrafts/short-term bank loans/
undrawn facilities and are therefore classified as
current assets. Details of the secured facilities are
disclosed in Note 27. The pledged bank deposits will
be released upon the settlement of relevant bank
borrowings.

HEeERBEEEEBUREM
BeEREER®

(d)

(e)

FEFRERS
HE_T-_=F+-A=+—HL
FE BURESEBREMNESK
TH47552,170,0003 T (18 & R 4975
#4,088,802,0007T) E21407B X 5
(RHisx2(a) 6@ - CIRIBEFEELS
Eip R R ER -

SR ARITHERK

EEMBITEFERER TRITALR
HAKEERRITRENTR ° &%
SHEXREBERITES EHRT
B RIZREE RS - FutE
DERRBEE - CEAREN
BRH 2755 - SEARITHERX
B AEB AR RTTE IR ARRR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =41~ H=1—HILFE

26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26 FENESRERHEMESFIE
2023 2022
—E-= —EF-=
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
Hat BT T BT
Trade and bills payables ENEZERERENMER
- measured at amortised cost — R SERR AT E 146,161 9,626,828
~ containing provisional pricing - BIEEREEREKR
features and measured at FVPL BAREBEEFAER
e 1,086,671 1,036,079
(a) 1,232,832 10,662,907
Amount segregated for customers  ENFEPZ S HE (b) 9,168,511 9,921,541
Provision for a legal case — RS (c) 88,639 188,206
Provision for onerous contracts EEEE R E 67,407 =
Other payables and accruals Hih et skIA R EIEE 1,171,815 1,410,283
Amount due to related parties P& AN 75 BUIE (d) 652 538
Loans from non-controlling interests 2K B 3E¥Epe 25 2 70 (e) 7,025 87,566
11,736,881 22,271,041
Less: non-current portion W IERENERD (130,705) (107,504)
11,606,176 22,163,537
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

26 ENEZREREMENSKE

(%)
Hiet -
The following is an ageing analysis of the trade and bills (a) ITRARBREHAREZEMANE ZFEREER
payables based on the invoice date as at the end of the ENEBERERE 2RI
reporting period:
2023 2022
—EBCZ=F —F-—
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BHFT
0-90 days 0-90H 1,158,367 956,329
91-180 days 91-180H 39,965 9,668,149
181-365 days 181-365H 16,986 16,684
1-2 years 1-24F 11,368 16,062
Over 2 years 26 DA E 6,146 5,683
1,232,832 10,662,907
The average credit period for purchase of goods ranged ARG FHEERN FI90£180
from 90 to 180 days. The Group has financial risk H - ASBEXRBUBRKRERBE - &
management policies in place to ensure that all payables RIMEER R E AN 250 E AR
are settled within the credit time frame. I8 o
Trade payables measured at amortised cost at 31 R-ZZBE-_—_F+-_A=+—8 - H#H
December 2022 included balance of US$1,236,565,000 BAGENEMNE SRBBIER14018
(approximately HK$9,635,685,000) that relate to the 140 RSB M2 ##1,236,565,000% 7T (47
Transactions and was fully settled by the end of August #5%9,635,685,000T) ' EEHEN =T
2023. Z=FENARLEE -
As at 31 December 2023, trade payables measured at RZZBE-_=ZF+-_A=+—8 ERNX
amortised cost amounted to HK$222,000, HK$1,258,000 SEBEAR AECEREMBE
and HK$103,000 (2022: HK$937,000, HK$948,000 and FRIBEBEHKAFENENE HERIA
HK$314,000), are due to the Group’s associates, joint 2Bl A4 %222,0005T « 1,258,000
ventures and other related parties, respectively. LR 103,000 (Z = —4F + &
#937,0007T - /& #£948,0007T & & ¥
314,0007T) °
As at 31 December 2023, except for the amount of (b) RZZEZ=F+ZA=+—8  BH

HK$1,336,965,000 (2022: HK$1,410,748,000) which were
used to purchase quoted treasury securities and pledged
as margin deposit with the CME (see Note 20(ii)). The
remaining balance of amount segregated for customers of
HK$7,831,546,000 (2022: HK$8,510,793,000) were held by
the Group in segregated accounts (see Note 23(a)).

#1,336,965,000C(Z T - —F : &
#1,410,748,00070) ANBE B ERHE
HERIMIFEAZ RTNRES (RWiE
20050 - BT 2588 %7,831,546,000
TT(ZZF=—4 : #%8,510,793,000
TOHAAEBABYRAFHA (RKE23
(@) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ ~F =41~ H =1 —HILF &

26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

As at 31 December 2023, the balance of provision of
HK$88,639,000 (2022: HK$188,206,000) was recorded
in the book of Straits (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (“SSPL")
and Straits Financial Group Pte. Ltd. (“SFG"), indirect
subsidiaries of the Group, in connection with a litigation (the
“Case") which involved certain repurchase agreements.
Details of the litigation proceedings of the Case in 2022
were disclosed in the Company's annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2022 dated 17 September 2023. The
provision was recognised in profit or loss in the previous
years.

On 10 August 2023, the Group entered into a settlement
agreement with the plaintiff in relation to the Case. The
management has made up the provision amount for the
year ended 31 December 2022, on top of the net asset
value of the subsidiary that was provided in the previous
years, to reflect the agreed settlement sum. Hence there
were no additional provision made for the year ended 31
December 2023. According to the terms of the settlement
agreement, approximately HK$49,544,000 (2022:Nil) will be
settled after 12 months and accordingly was reclassified as
non-current liabilities.

Amounts due to related parties represented non-trade
amounts due to associates, joint ventures and other related
parties which are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Loans from non-controlling interests are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

26

BN E 5 RERE RN

(&)

Hret - ()

(c)

(d)

(e)

RZBZ=F+ZA=+—H  £&H
2 FE B A R Straits (Singapore) Pte.
Ltd.([SSPL)J) & Straits Financial Group
Pte. Ltd.([SFG B — R ¥ k& TE
HEOFA(ZREDERE PEHER
BRI #2358 BB 188,639,000T (= =
—4F : ##188,206,0007T) ° E@:%:
ZEZRHENFREFFBEREAR
E%%_Q_—iﬂﬂ+taﬁi_7
T+ A=+ —HILEFENFRFP
WE - BECHNBAEFEERPER -

RZZ=Z=FNA+AH  AEERZE
HHRERTN@ERE  c TEEBERE
2 -_—F+-_A=+—HLFEE
ZHBARNBAEFERNEEEE
ZtE o ETIRMEGSE  URBIBE
M@EEE - Bt WERBE =T =
=F+-A=1+—BILFEFIREI
BAE o BIBFAR i IR ER - B
49,544,0007T (=T = —4F : #)EN12
BAREE TRAKEFSEAEIER
afE -

SRR IR RN ZE AR - A&
EEREMERT ZEESHE  BE
IR - RRRIEERKEER -

REFIERERZE
RIRERKEE -

TRBEERAR RS
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27

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

27 EXRREX

2023 2022
—E-= —F-—
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
it BT T BT
Non-current FERE
Promissory Note L E R (a) 716,000 716,000
Secured bank loans HIRFRITER (b) 728,832 838,779
1,444,832 1,554,779
Current TRED
Perpetual notes KAEE (c) 359,587 358,446
Secured bank loans HIRFRITER (b) 126,999 128,713
Unsecured bank loans ERIRTTER (b) - 88
Revolving short-term trade facilities fBIREHIE FRLE (d) 3,323,467 3,684,329
Digital bonds BEFEH (e) 387,172 =
Secured bank overdrafts BEBIRITEX (b) 4,221 5,741
4,201,446 4177,317
Notes: B -

(a)

The balance represents the Promissory Note, entered
into between the Company and an affiliate of the Trust
with principal amount of HK$716,000,000. The balance is
interest-bearing at 5% per annum, which shall be payable
semi-annually in arrears. The Company may elect to defer
payment of interest, in which case interest of 5% shall
accrue on such deferred interest amounts until payment.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Promissory
Note with an original maturity date on 2 September 2022
were renewed with another 3 year period. All accrued and
unpaid interest and all unpaid principal shall be paid in full
on 18 February 2025. The Promissory Note is not secured
by any assets of the Group.

(a)

HEHEA N EZETHB ARG L2
K& %8 BB 716,000,000T 2 & HE
1B o BRI FRNEb%TE - AREY
FHRZ N o ARR) AR BILES (N F)
B ERERT @ ZERLEF S S5
Z55%FE EENK AL -BHE=
E__F+-_A=1+—RHILEFE RE
AT _—_FNAZAZEALER
EEE=F - AR RATFEUR
FrIERNAEBR-_E-_RAE-A+N
B S o &N ZEY & U AREBT
A EEMERA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ ~F =41~ H =1 —HILF &

27 LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued) 27 EBERRER®

Notes: (continued)

(b) At 31 December 2023, the bank loans and bank overdrafts (b) RZZBZ=F+=ZA=+—8" ﬁ%

were repayable as follows: RRBRITBEBIRATHREE
2023 2022
—E-=F T
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BMFT
Within 1 year or on demand —FANIEEK 131,220 134,542
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERWERN 602,561 127,434
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBEBRAEFA 112,837 692,997
After 5 years A& 13,434 18,348
860,052 973,321

(c) Perpetual notes are issued by a subsidiary of the Company (c) KRR —EMHE R R RUECWT SG(E
in connection with acquisition of CWT SG (as defined E A3 HITKARE - AR
in Note 39). Perpetual notes with aggregate principal /46,000,000 7T Z kK A BIE B ZIEFT
amount of US$46,000,000 are guaranteed by an affiliate KB ARIER REZRBRARER - R
of the Trust. The notes are unsecured, interest-free and BENHAAEBIMEES  EREE R
repayable at the discretion of the Group, but redeemable EhhzEmEtESH(BEETRRE
upon occurrence of subordination events (including but BERABR)BLEZIER - ARE
not limited to liquidation of the note guarantor) as set out BERAZEBYAZAEEEH - &
in the notes’ subscription agreement. Since the liquidation KABBRBRETETENSERIR
of the note guarantor is not controllable by the Group, the ARl -
perpetual notes are therefore classified as “current liability”
in accordance with the prevailing accounting standards.

(d) Revolving short-term trade facilities of the Group relate to (d) AEECZRREHESRERARAASE
short-term trade related self-liquidating facilities to finance IZ?‘]’uu%ﬁ%%ﬂ“’(% X2 HHE 5 aTT
the Group’s commodity marketing business. BERERR -

(e) Digital bonds relates to bonds issued by a group entity (e) BETFEHFEAEEERBETASEA

Hiet - (&)

with a principal amount of US$60,000,000. The balance is
unsecured, interest-bearing at 2% per annum, which shall
be payable monthly. All accrued and unpaid principal plus

G0,000,000%EE'HE%EF% o KEERAE

AR REFE2%E R

Hﬁlﬁi

H P Bt BRI A& A 8 AR

interest shall be repayable in 2024. TMUFEE -
At the end of the reporting period, assets used to secure RBERAR - AFREHRREBERRER
the Group’s loans and borrowings were as follows: WEENT :

2023 2022
—EC=E B F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T B F T
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE REE 1,769,691 1,876,766
Pledged bank balances and fixed deposits & I $R 1T 45 8 & & Hi1F K 145,075 169,429
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 BRIE K H fth FE U Gk IE 701,342 944,991
Inventories s 2,331,980 2,833,438
4,948,088 5,824,624

184
Q CWT International Limited / 20234 4



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

TERMS AND DEBT REPAYMENT 28 M(FRREEEKER[ER
SCHEDULE
The terms and conditions of outstanding loans and MAREEERRERZERREGNT

borrowings are as follows:

2023 2022
—ECCE “EoCE
Year of Nominal Carrying Year of Nominal Carrying
maturity interest rate amount maturity interest rate amount
HEER SEAE FEfE HEFR SEAZE HEfE
HK$ 000 HK$'000
BETT BEFT
USD floating rate revolving shortterm %703 SEEREHE HRE NA  583%808% 3,323,467 NA  588%731% 3,684,329
faclities @A TR
USD fixed rate honds SIEEES 2024 2.00% 387,172 = = =
USD perpetual notes STKAEE N/A N/A 359,587 N/A N/A 358,446
NER NER NER ER
SGD floating rate loans FIETEEER 20%  SORA+1.7% 704,101 20%  SORA+1.7% 805,088
FIERRTY TIERRTY
Fl&41.7% FIZ41.7%
EUR floating rate loan BTIEER 2027 EURIBOR +1.5% 67,004 2007 EURIBOR +15% 68824
BTRITRERS BITRIAERE
FZ415% % 415%
HKD fixed rate note BEEBEN 2025 5.00% 716,000 2025 5.00% 716,000
EUR fixed rate loan BITRER 2027 240% 55,033 2027 240% 57,894
TRY fixed rate loans iﬁﬁiﬁl; SE7 = = - 2003 6.25%-750% 8
INR fixed rate loan 1l J:ttmf}ﬁ 2005208 7.10%-9.00% 2623 20032007 7.10%820% 2,03
PHP fixed rate loans FRERRTEE 2025 9.72% 178 = = =
PEN fixed rate loan S %* - - - 2023 117% 4427
MYR floating rate loan SREGLEIEER 2036 4.90%-6.10% 25,99 2036 4.90% 29243
Bank overdrafts R78% NA  10.00%-18.23% 421 NA - 10.00%-12.49% 5,741
TER TNER
5,646,278 5,732,09%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ ~F =41~ H =1 —HILF &

29 LEASE LIABILITIES

(a) The Group as lessee

29 FHESRE

(a) AKREEHEBAA

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT T

Lease liabilities HEEaE
Current BIER 289,875 299,313
Non-current JEENER 2,059,737 2,154,913
2,349,612 2,454,226

The Group mainly leases land and warehouses.
Land leases typically run for a period of 5 to 30
years of which some leases have option to renew
the lease. Warehouse leases typically run for a
period of 2 to 23 years of which some leases have
option to renew the lease. Lease payments are
renegotiated before the expiry of each lease. Some
leases provide for additional rent payments that are
based on changes in local price indices. For certain
leases, the Group is only allowed to enter into any
sub-lease arrangements for a prescribed percentage
of the leased assets. Some property leases contain
extension options exercisable by the Group up to
one year before the end of the non-cancellable
contract period. Where practicable, the Group seeks
to include extension options in new leases to provide
operational flexibility. The extension options held are
exercisable only by the Group and not by the lessors.
The Group assesses at lease commencement date
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options. The Group reassesses whether
it is reasonably certain to exercise the options if
there is a significant event or significant changes
in circumstances within its control. The Group has
estimated that the potential future lease payments,
should it exercise the extension option, would result
in an increase in lease liability of HK$18,887,000
(2022: HK$25,171,000).

AEBTEMHELHEERE - +iy
HEBTE AHSZE30F » EdIiHm
HERAERREE A EHER
BAH2E2F  HhHnHEEE
BERREE - HEMZNESER
EEMAEITTENRER - FHHEE
BEERE M ERESEEHHEBHN
Hedm -mBETHEmMS &
SEEREMRETESELNEES
EF Mo HELEE - S mER
ERESTTHASERTAIBEEAL
RS RAITTERNERE &2
EH—F - EAITIBRT  A%EE
FHRHAEP AT - AR
HELTE N - FENTEHEED
RAEETE  mABHEATT
o REBERAERMIRBHPTEHE
REAEBESITELTHE - Wi
WEAEHNEANEHFRIRENE
AEE  AEFESEFIHERD
AEERBITEZBES - A£EH
fBet - WITETEEARE - BIBERR
HEMREERAE A ERINEE
18,887,000 (=B = =4 : A&
25,171,0007%) °
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29 LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

The Group as lessee (continued) (a)

Information about leases for which the Group is a
lessee is presented below.

29 HEESBE®

REBEREEAE

REBIEREREANEENIEWE
B2FmT -

Expenses recognised in profit or loss RIER B RIB %
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T JEMETF T
Leases under HKFRS 16 ARV EWEEIE165RIET
MHEE
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGHE 102,882 107,297
Variable lease payments not included st ATHEBE =M E2H
in the measurement of lease EfFR
liabilities 893 1,382
Expenses relating to short-term leases %2 EiFH E+HEF 2 39,471 43,419
Expenses relating to leases of low- EEEEEAE(KEEEE
value assets, excluding short-term RHEERINEERX
leases of low-value assets 245 B3
Total cash outflow for leases HEBES R HAEE
2023 2022
—EZ=F —E -
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT B F T
Within operating cash flows FFAAKERSRE 40,609 45,324
Within financing cash flows FFARERSRE 420,885 451,657
187
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ ~F =41~ H =1 —HILF &

29 LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

29 HEESGE®

(b) The Group as lessor (b) AXEEEARAEHBA
The Group contracted out part of their leasehold REBRBYREQOKEDBHEE
buildings to clients under logistic contracts. The EFIBETER GHBENS
contracts typically run for an initial period of 1 to BHEH1E10F(ZZEZ2F 1 1210
10 years (2022: 1 to 10 years). Rates are revised F) EERNR - FEFLAER -
at renewal of contract to reflect market rate. None AR TIGHE - ZF 50T
of the contracts include contingent payments. The FEHART K o TAIBEER A K IR
non-cancellable contract payments receivable are as I ¢
follows:
2023 2022
—E-=F —F-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T JEMETF T
Within one year —FR 93,090 90,876
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE—_ZEFRF
(BHEERMF) 231,901 244,762
Over fifth year FRiB A F 35,694 81,604
360,685 417,242
30 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 30 EEEA
(a) Defined contribution plans (a) REMKEE

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the "MPF Scheme") under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not
previously covered by the defined benefit retirement
plan. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately, there is no forfeited contributions that
may be used by the group to reduce the existing
level of contribution.

AEBERBEFERHMEATEEFE
P RE AR RGO RDAER T X
B RBENTFERFIRKG IR
BZRERIAHMEATEERE
((BEEE]) - BESFE AR
EHFRINGT ) - BBUIREAR
17 RIFBESE - BEERHE
EXBAREEHEBRAZE%IR
aaTEIEL SR - S AMBKRA L
PR %78 #30,0007T ° 5t &I #tFENE
B BEEADREHESRAIRA
SERERDIRE FHFKFE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

30 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Defined contribution plans (continued)

The Group also contributes to various other defined
contribution retirement plans for eligible employees.
The plans are managed either by the government in
the countries where the employees are employed,
or by independent trustees. Contribution levels are
determined by the relevant laws and regulations
concerned.

Defined benefit obligations

The Group operates a pension plan for its employees of
a subsidiary in Switzerland whereby the plan participants
are insured against the financial consequences of old
age, disability and death. The pension plan is operated
by an independent, legally autonomous collective
foundation of an insurance company. Consequently, the
plan assets are completely segregated from both the
Group and the plan participants.

The pension plan is funded by contributions from
the Group whereby funding is determined by the
provisions stipulated in The Swiss Federal Law on
Occupational Benefit and Disability Pension Plans
and the Federal law on Vesting in Pension Plans.
The latest independent actuarial valuation of the
pension plan was at 31 December 2023 performed
by Mercer (Switzerland) SA, using the projected unit
credit method. Mercer (Switzerland) SA is an affiliate
of Marsh & McLennan Companies, Inc., a global
professional services firm headquartered in New
York City. The actuarial valuation indicated that the
Group's obligations under the pension plan is 82.4%
(2022: 85.6%) covered by the plan assets held by
the insurance company.

30 EER®A®

(a)

(b)

SEMNREE(E)
AEENAEEREEMSTHEM
FE HFBRKETBIHER - ZFE
HEEXEMEBRRK BT NEE
VRFEAER - HFOKFIERE
BREAMERE °

RERRNERE
AEBERERRLTZHMBAREER
RGBS FE - UEZTE2HE
ARZHAER BERETHRZ
MR - RASFEIA—RERR
RBEZEBY - AFBEIZERES
SEE - At FEIEETEEY
RAKE R ZETEI2EA -

BRAREFTEHRAEEHTEE -
AR IR I T B B R A A5
EEMAEEREHARKEE T
FFEVERTHE 2 ROEE - BRke
BB BURENGER S
—=F+=-A=+—H@AEMercer
(Switzerland) SAfF T R iE & T
BALE#ETT - Mercer (Switzerland)
SABMarsh & MclLennan
Companies, Inc.2¥B Q7]
Marsh & MclLennan Companies,
Inc. 2@ RAHT » B—fEE
KEERBAR - BEFEBATRAN
SERZBRARESETEI T2 AER
REARIFAFE 2T & EASE
82.4%(ZFE__%F : 85.6%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =41~ H=1—HILFE

30 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued) 30 EETA®@
(b) Defined benefit obligations (continued) (b) REBAAE®E
The net defined benefit obligations recognised in N A B4R & S AR LR N i
the consolidated statement of financial position R ARATRAMASEFEGEHR %
at the reporting date, which are expected to be THRFAFHBREFTHREESHLE
cleared over the remaining life expectancy (based on BZEEHERTIEEEE)WOT

unconditional future indexations for active and post-
active participants), are as follows:

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Present value of funded obligations B ;T &&EIRE 153,731 124,095
Fair value of plan assets FEIBEEZAREE (126,685) (106,224)
27,046 17,871
Details of the fair value of plan assets are as follows: AEEENARBESFBNOT
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT JBEMETF T
Assets held by insurance company R R FFEEE 126,685 106,224
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

30 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued) 30 EETA®@
(b) Defined benefit obligations (continued) (b) REBAAE®E
Total amounts recognised in profit or loss are as RIEBRPERRZBRENT -
follows:
2023 2022
—E-= —ET-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T JEMETF T
Current service cost B ER A AR 4,924 7,558
Interest cost BB 2,497 273
Interest income FEWA (2,200) (188)
5,221 7,643
Total amounts recognised in other comprehensive REMEERY (W) EER
expense/(income) are as follows: ZHRFIE
2023 2022
—2=-= T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT B F T

Remeasurements on changes of ~ Bt B REEEF

assumptions 9,178 (20,924)

Loss/(return) on plan assets FTEIEERE(E#H)
(excluding interest income) (TBEEMEHA) 1,138 (7,774)
10,316 (28,698)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =41~ H=1—HILFE

30 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued) 30 EETA®
(b) Defined benefit obligations (continued) (b) REBAAE®E
Changes in present value of defined benefit REBAIAEREZSHOT -

obligations are as follows:

2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T JEMETF T
Defined benefit obligations at R—A—HZRATEBHFEE
1 January 124,095 146,039
Current service cost E HAR A AR 4,924 7,558
Interest cost FLERLAR 2,497 273
Remeasurements on change in ENTEREED
assumptions 9,178 (20,924)
Benefits forfeited R WE F (712) (6,449)
Exchange realignment bE 0 A 13,749 (2,402)
Defined benefit obligations at RTZA=+—R2
31 December FLTE 18 R A dE 153,731 124,095
Weighted average duration of the defined benefit HE-_T-_=F+=-A=+—8"
obligations as of 31 December 2023 is 17 years REBMAENEFLHFERR17E
(2022: 21 years). (ZZE=Z=F : 21%F) »
Changes in the fair value of plan assets during the FNFEIEEAABEEZSHNOT -
year are as follows:
2023 2022
—E-= —ZE-—
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T JBEMETF T
Fair value of plan assets at R—A— B8l EEAREE
1 January (106,224) (95,814)
Interest income FEMA (2,200) (188)
Employer contribution BEHK (8,670) (9,896)
Actuarial losses/(gains) BEEE (e 1,138 (7,774)
Benefits forfeited R W E F 712 6,449
Exchange realignment b H (11,441) 999
Fair value of plan assets at Rt+—A=+—HZ
31 December AEBEEAAEE (126,685) (106,224)
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30 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

30 EEEN®@

Defined benefit obligations (continued) (b) REBAAE®E
The principal actuarial assumptions are as follows: FEBERRAT :
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—

Mortality tables, actuarial statistics J6T-R %k » EEHE (BE

(disability, mortality, etc.) BT %)
Discount rate ALIR = 1.40% 2.00%
Rate of salary increase HeTiE 1.50% 1.50%
Rate of the projection of BEE ATE B =

the saving capital 1.40% 2.00%
Rate of pension increase BIREFHIE 0.00% 0.00%
Turnover LR 17.21% 16.64%
Sensitivities of significant actuarial assumptions FTERBERRZHRE

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date
to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding
other assumptions constant, would have affected

RBEBRH  Eh-RBABRER
RZEEAREEH(HMBRR
BYERTRANAE ISR eH

the defined benefit obligations by the amounts FIREATR -
shown below:
Increase Decrease
N W
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT
2023 —E-=
Discount rate (0.25% movement) B3R & (2 %)0.25%) (4,567) 4,821
Future salary growth (0.25% RERF S LR (EH)0.25%)
movement) 1,329 -
2022 —Eg-=
Discount rate (0.25% movement) BLIR = (#&0.25%) (3,608) 3,804
Future salary growth (0.25% RIRF LR (BE)0.25%)
movement) 1,164 -

The above sensitivity calculations are based on
one assumption changing while others remain
unchanged. In practice, however, there are certain
correlations between the individual assumptions. The
same method was used to calculate the sensitivities
and the defined benefit obligations at the end of the

financial year.

BRgREAFETIER AR

B LERIRER 2 RAFESR THEE
RNV RFER > BRERRE

BAAERBERITTEFE -

R
R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =41~ H=1—HILFE

31 DEFERRED TAX 31 EZEHIE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) NTRAEBRZEIBZEEHBEE (B
recognised and movements thereon during the current and BE) UMWERERAFERBEFE L
prior years:
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) EEHBEER (BE)
Recognised
At Recognised in other At
1 January in profit  comprehensive Translation 31 December
2023 or loss income difference 2023
iy
R —EC-ZF
Bz REM2E +=A
-A-H REZRED KERER REEE =+-H
(Note 10)
(Hfzt10)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

VL ERTFT V-t V-t V-t

Property, plant and equipment  #1% - & kiR 232,065 (6,868) - 4,219 229,416
Right-or-use assets ERERE 60,140 91,504 - (7,446) 144,198
Intangible assets BVEE 20,064 (4,485) - 473 16,052
Financial assets PREE - 490 - 1 491
Trade and other receivables ~ EIRE 8RB K
LR R 7,255 3,431 - (63) 10,623
Trade and other payables EREBSRER
AR (30,012) 706 - 34 (29,272)
Lease liabilities MHEAE (65,723) (94,900) - 8,307 (152,316)
Unutilised tax benefits ABANBES (29,224) 3,827 - (263) (25,660)
Others Hite (2,340) (1,027) (1,219) (289) (4,875)
192,225 (7.322) (1,219) 4973 188,657
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

DEFERRED TAX (continued) 31 EBEHE®
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) LWTAEBRAZEIBRELEHBEE (B
recognised and movements thereon during the current and B UWRERAFERBEFE T
prior years: (continued) (#8)
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) (continued) FEEHEAE (BE) (@)
Recognised
At Recognised in other At
1 January in profit ~ comprehensive Translation 31 December
2022 or loss income difference 2022
i
N —T-CF
it S REMEE +=R
—A-H RERER WEER hEZE =+-H
(Note 10)
(Hzt10)
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

T BT BT BT BT

Property, plant and equipment  #1% ~ [RE RiR1E 240,583 (8,224) - (294) 232,065
Right-or-use assets ERERE 52,071 7,371 = 698 60,140
Intangible assets EVEE 24,755 (4,024) - (667) 20,064
Trade and other receivables  JEWE 5818
REM KR 5,311 2,696 = (752) 7,255
Trade and other payables ERESRER
Eft IR (24,364) (7,371) = 1,723 (30,012)
Lease liabilities MERRE (55,172) 9,936) - (615) 65,723)
Unutilised tax benefits ABAHBES (9,477) (20,503) = 756 (29,224)
Others Ht (8,694) 2,918 3418 18 (2,340)
225,013 (37,073) 3418 867 192,225
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e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =41~ H=1—HILFE

31 DEFERRED TAX (continued) 31
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxation authority. The amounts determined after
appropriate offsetting are included in the statements of
financial position as follows:

IEFE B 18 ()

BEEREEE (BE) @)

678 &K 58 B BT RIS B A IR A 2
BRI REEREE - BEERBS M
Fl—BBiE  AREHRBRENREETR
A EMEHE - MEEREREE < ST
AMBMRRERA - TR :

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIARE 249,040 249,390
Deferred tax assets EETIBEE (60,383) (57,165)
Deferred tax liabilities, net BEERIBEEE - FE 188,657 192,225
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of WHERMTY)IEE BRIELEHIEEE
the following items:
2023 2022
—E-=F —F-—
HK$000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Deductible temporary differences AN SR ERE 149,710 223,634
Unutilised tax losses RENARIEEE 184,809 308,754
334,519 532,388

196
Q CWT International Limited / 20234 4



31

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) (continued)

At 31 December 2023, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$184,809,000 (2022: HK$308,754,000)
which are available for offsetting against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
tax loss due to the unpredictably of future profit streams
as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. Except for below, other

31

IE FE B 18 ()

FEEHRBERS (EE)#®)
RZZE-_=F+-A=+—8 K&EFEAE
A BN IEE 18 4788 184,809,000 T (—
T-— 75 #308,754,0007T) © ATAR
BERTEH - E_T_ZFR =T
F+—-A=+—8 BHRRITEFNKREH
VATERT - SRR B R TE s B M R T (IR T

losses can be carried forward indefinitely. HIBEE - R TR - EfbEET &
PR BR 4%
2023 2022
—E-=F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T JEMETF T
Tax losses to be expired in RT3 B A ER 2 BB EE
-2027 _?_ti - 14,159
-2028 —EN\F 17,827 -
17,827 14,159

The tax losses are subject to agreement by the tax
authorities and compliance with tax regulations in the
respective countries in which the subsidiaries operate. The
deductible temporary differences and tax losses, other than
disclosed above, do not expire under current tax legislation.

The Group did not recognise deferred tax liabilities relating
to unremitted accumulated earnings in foreign subsidiaries
amounting to HK$1,077,538,000 (2022: HK$1,213,518,000)
as it has control over their dividends policy, with no earnings
forecast to be repatriated in the foreseeable future.

HEBRALHBERERE - LETHE
NGIE **Fﬁ%‘tl%zmﬂﬁlii‘ﬁ o AR
= R R A R 1R (Ff L PR B8 & M) B
SERITBATRLE

A& B KRR IR INK B A R R IE
LEFBNEENECHRIBEEE A
1,077,538,000c (= = —F : Bk
1,213,518,0007T) * REAAARSEBEEH AR
BHBERAEHE - BEAAERER KRN
SEQZF -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMKHRERMT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ _—F =4+ _H =—4+—H ILF &
32 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 32 EBEXKf#E
(a) Movement in components of equity (a) H=ZBHZEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REEEESHEKE D 2 F R
balances of each component of the Group’s equity FREBEZHERHENGREERE
is set out in the consolidated statement of changes R o AR AR F Y R FRE IR
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s AR D EBFBEEHIAT ¢
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
The Company VNN
Perpetual
Share Capital capital Translation Accumulated
capital reserve instrument reserve losses Total
BA  EXfE KAERIE ERRE B4 2| L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT EBEFT BEFT  BEFT BY¥Fr  BETr
At 1 January 2022 WR-B-—F—FA—H 4731480 158100 1819390  (66,156)  (3,387,939) 3.254875
Profit and total comprehensive S i A )k 2 E UL ES
income for the year HakE] - = = = 97,491 97,491
At 31 December 2022 and RZBZZf+ZA
1 January 2023 =t-Bk
“E-=f-H—H 4,731,480 158,100 1,819,390 (66,156) (3,290,448) 3,352,366
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FEEEREE
expense for the year Fx 8% - - - - (39,595)  (39,595)
At 31 December 2023 R-ZZ=%
+=R=+-H 4,731,480 158,100 1,819,390 (66,156) (3,330,043) 3,312,771
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

32 EXKkF#E®

32 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Share capital (b) MR
Number
of shares Amount
BHEE -]
HK$'000
B F T
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: B 217 M2 2 Z@A% :
At 1 January 2022, RZZEZZF—H—H "
31 December 2022, 1 January 2023 —Z - —4F+_f§
and 31 December 2023 =+t—HB ZBZ=%
—A—BR-ZT_=f
+-A=+—H 11,399,996,101 4,731,480

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the
Company do not have a par value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company's residual assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Capital reserve

Capital reserve mainly represents (i) waiver of
a payable to a related company of the Group,
which is considered as deemed capital
contribution and is credited to capital reserve;
and (ii) accumulated reserve for effect of
changes in shareholding of subsidiaries
without losing control (see (d) below).

(i) Translation reserve

Translation reserve comprises foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations whose functional
currencies are different from the functional
currency of the Company.

(c)

REBEFERAEDIFE 1350 - AR
AIEmAR Y B E(E o

ERESEAGRERTEEIRZ
BB AERRARBRE LIAE
BR—FETRR - WARFRIBE
EME @ EEBBRLRS -

RELERAR
(i) BAXEE

ENFHRIZERREN
AEERB A RMRIA - 5%
FIBER B REEIL A
BEARNGEE - RliVETRAE
IR Y B0 T ST P B X AR
REFTENRFTHE (R
TX(d) °

(i) EXEE
EXFREEERREBINE
BEDEEBEARFZ
WetEE AR M B HRKRE
HEZINEZEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ ~F =41~ H =1 —HILF &

32 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iii)  Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective
portion of the cumulative net changes in the
fair value of cash flow hedging instruments.
(iv)  Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve mainly represent reserve
set aside by certain subsidiaries operating in
foreign jurisdictions where profits of these
subsidiaries are set aside according to local
legislations.

(v) Perpetual capital instrument

Perpetual capital instrument represents
a perpetual loan of S$316,000,000
(approximately HK$1,819,390,000) from
affiliates of the Trust. The Group has no
contractual obligation to repay any amount of
the perpetual loan under any circumstances
and any repayment is entirely at the
discretion of the Company. Consequently, the
Directors are of the view that the economic
substance of the perpetual loan is a non-
reciprocal capital contribution from the Trust
and credited directly to reserve.

Change in shareholding of subsidiaries
without losing control

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group acquired an additional 32.88% equity interest
in Globelink Fallow Limited, a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company incorporated in the United
Kingdom, from the non-controlling shareholders at
a consideration of GBP3,754,000 (approximately
HK$37,099,000). Upon the completion of the
acquisition, the Group holds 100% equity interest
in the subsidiary. The difference between the
proportionate share of net assets and translation
reserve attributable to non-controlling interests of
Globelink Fallow Limited and the consideration paid
by the Group of HK$26,507,000 was credited to
capital reserve and accumulated in equity as ‘capital
reserve’.

32

BEXRREE®

(c)

(d)

REMLERAR®E)

(iii) PR
HHREEHEEERRSRER
TAZRFAAABEZF
B2 BB

EERE
EEBEEBIEREINADE
HEEIE B TH B R G
B2 s ZEWB QTR
TRE A BB R R o

(iv)

(v) KAEZAXTA
KXKABARTAERBZE
BB ARMKAEBRER
316,000,000 AN 7T (X978
#1,819,390,0007T) ° A&
J‘ﬁé&fﬁj'l%ﬁ?i@ﬁ%ﬁ%m

ABRZEMEE AL
E i A& 335 52 ’i\EEZ!X
RAEAIBMEXN - At - &

%iud%ﬂdk% AL IEBEEE
REBZEFRIIFEREE
B WHEERFARE -

EREKRIEFIRNER T M
BRI E
RBE-_Z_=ZF+_-_A=+—H
IEFE - AEEAIEERIREIKREE
HGlobelink Fallow Limited(4~2 &]
RERFEMAZOMEIEEZEWB
NTE))EEIN32.88% N IEHE - R1BA
3,754,000 5 (494 %37,099,000
T0) o WIE R - AEBIFAW
BRAE100%M AR - Globelink
Fallow LimitedJE{E R E S B /F &
ERELGENL G EAEED
REWNZE% A/B%26,507,0007T °
Bt AE R EEIL AR 255
eI E A FEE] -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMKHRRMT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —F =4+ _H =—4—H ILFF
SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 33 LROAEBZNNRRXS
TRANSACTIONS
On 29 May 2012, the Company terminated the share RZZE—ZFRAZ+TNH  AREKIE
options scheme adopted on 7 June 2002 (the “2002 RZZEZT_F ARt BHEM ERETE
Scheme”) and adopted a new share option scheme (the ((ZZ2Z2_F5E8]) R -IETNER
“2012 Scheme”) with effect from 25 May 2012. Under e =2——F5t8)) - 8a=F—=
the 2012 Scheme, the Board of the Company may, subject FRAA-THHBER - BE_ZT——F
to and in accordance with the provisions of the 2012 8 ARREETEARE-_Z——F&
Scheme and the Listing Rules, grant share options to any 2R TR A2 G R E AR R T M
eligible participant to subscribe for shares in the capital of SERSEERDBRE  ARBERRF
the Company. The 2012 Scheme was expired on 29 May BAFZRG « ZE—ZFFHEBER=Z
2022 and no share option has been granted under the 2012 ZZHFRAZtTNABER - BEHEREMAE
Scheme since its adoption. Details of the 2012 Scheme MERE T ——Fr a8 HERE - =
was disclosed in the Company’s annual report for the year T FHENFBERERNEARRBHA
ended 31 December 2022 dated 17 September 2023. ZEC=FNATEREBEEZE__F+
ZAZT—HIEFENFR -
CAPITAL COMMITMENT 34 EBEAREAE
2023 2022
—E-= —ZE-—
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T JEMETF T
Capital expenditure in respect of the BRWEDE  BEEREEZE
acquisition of property, plant and RTHBRTELRE WS MmKRET
equipment contracted for but not REEERRAX
provided in the consolidated financial
statements 13,481 11,355
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35 THAREE

The Group is subject to various litigation, regulatory and
arbitration matters in the normal course of business. The
Group vigorously defends against these claims and, in the
opinion of the management, the resolution of these matters
will not have a material effect on the financial position of
the Group.

AEBREFEKABRFEERYSER
A EERMHEEE AEEHAHER
BiGe MEEBRARAZESETH
TEEARERZ MBI NEKRERTE -
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36

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group
will balance its overall capital structure through new share
issues as well as raising of new borrowings or redemption
of existing debt using cash flow generated from operating
activities and disposal of assets. The Group's overall
strategy remains unchanged from the year ended 31
December 2022.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes loans and borrowings (excluding
collateralised short-term trade facilities) (See Note 27) and
lease liabilities (collectively referred as “Total Debt”); net
of pledged bank balances and fixed deposits and cash and
cash equivalent (“Net Debt”). Total capital of the Group
comprising issued share capital and reserves attributable to
owners of the Company and Total Debt (“Total Capital”).

Straits Financial LLC, Straits Financial Services Pte. Ltd.
and PT Straits Futures Indonesia, the Group’s subsidiaries
incorporated in the USA, Singapore and Indonesia
respectively, are subject to minimum capital requirements
pursuant to laws and regulations of the USA, Singapore
and Indonesia. Management has established controls
and policies to ensure that the subsidiaries comply with
the minimum capital requirements. The subsidiaries
have complied with the minimum capital requirements
pursuant to laws and regulations of the USA, Singapore and
Indonesia during the year.

Other than disclosed above, the Company and its
subsidiaries are not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

36 EAEHE

AEEEREEANRRASEERNESEE
BRAIFHEAHEE  BNERELER
REZFHABNHETREADF - A%
15 15 B BT HT AR A I S 48 3T B SR AR
BEHREENEMSREeREERRAE
BERTEHEERERER - NEB 2 HE
FHRERE T _-_—F+_A=+—81t
FERBTE -

AEBEEAERBBEFER (HERERK
ERTEEEEREREIME) (RHFE
2N RMERBE(GEIRERE]))  mike
ERBRTERLRERFRERERREE
BB (REK]) - AEEZREARAE
EARBEE ARG 2B BITRA RS
RBEHTBRER]) -

N [E [t B A ) Straits Financial LLC
Straits Financial Services Pte. Ltd. & PT
Straits Futures Indonesia® BIIAEE - #T
i R ENfE AL - BFFAER - #
WRENEERERRECHEERERK -
EIEEE E MBS MR AR R B B A A
HFEREEARER - FRN - WBAREE
SFEBR - N ROEAEERIBEEST
RIEEREK -

B EXFTIREEE SN - ARBRENEB AT
BRBTINBIEIN 2 BEARTE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a)

(b)

Overview

The Group has a system of controls in place to
create an acceptable balance between the cost
of risks occurring and the cost of managing the
risks. The management continually monitors the
Group's risk management process to ensure that
an appropriate balance between risk and control is
achieved.

The Audit Committee oversees how management
monitors compliance with the Group's risk
management policies and procedures and reviews
the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Audit
Committee is assisted in its oversight role by the
internal audit function. The internal audit function
undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk
management controls and procedures, the results of
which are reported to the Audit Committee.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group.

The Group's primary exposure to credit risk arises
through its trade receivables and contract assets.
Concentration of credit risk relating to these trade
receivables and contract assets is limited due to
the Group’'s many varied customers, which are
internationally dispersed. Management reviews the
ageing of receivables monthly to ensure that the
Group's credit risk exposure is monitored regularly.
Cash and fixed deposits are placed with banks
and financial institutions, which are regulated. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

37 SRERER

(a)

(b)

R ot

AEBEDRBERGE - AGEF
BRERLERRE 2 KA EEEER
A - EREERBEAEARE
ZREBERIRF - HERAEE
F iy HE BT -

ENEESEREEBIAEER
SEETRRERBRIERFZIE
S Wi s B 5 A B 2 LR
FHzZRAREBREBREATE -
Bz B eh N E APt &
= ARESSFAEEHREER
ERwNAREREZERERF - I
REZZEBQERMIER -

FERR
EERREHFHEREHEEM
EUAKBELHHER AR -

AEENTEFERRKEREE
FRBENEBKNEE - ARANEED
EFRZMEZ  »EARERE
o AEEZEFERRESERER
BREEABNEERRETESR
R - BEEES AR BEFIANE
i AEREHERAKENEE
Rk - Be RERFERGFERRE
EEMRITREBEE RSEE
RREGRAMBRRARASERE
EMREE -
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37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group has a credit policy in place whereby
new customers are subject to credit evaluations
based on available financial information and past
experiences. The Group has established credit
limits for customers and monitors their balances on
an ongoing basis. Certain sales by the commodity
marketing and financial services segments are
generally guaranteed by letters of credit. The
Group generally does not require collateral for
sales in other segments. As at 31 December 2023,
trade receivables of the Group secured by letters
of credit amounted to HK$1,071,410,000 (2022:
HK$1,297,176,000).

As at 31 December 2023, except for trade
receivables containing provisional features with
carrying amount of HK$1,553,720,000 (2022:
HK$1,782,141,000), the Group measures loss
allowance for trade receivables and contract assets
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. To measure
the ECL, trade receivables and contract assets
have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The contract
assets relate to unbilled work in progress and sales
made but yet to be invoiced as the final amount
is not due until pricing and assays are known. The
contract assets shared the same risk characteristics
as the trade receivables for the same type of
contracts. The Group has therefore concluded that
the expected loss rates for trade receivables and
contract assets are a reasonable approximation of
the loss rates for the contract assets.

37

ERERE

(b)

)

EFEEREE)
EREZSRERGHEE
AEEREREERER  REAES
ZHBERRBALERENRF#E
TEEFG - AEBEEHEETFE
VEEREETHEERE ST - I
RESREEBRBEOBNETHE
BAEUAMEHEBEER - AEE—KT
ERhEMSHTNEEERKERRD -
R-ZZE-_=F+—-_A=+—8 "
ERBERZASBERE SRE
AEH1,071,410,0000(—F = =
£ 1 75¥1,297,176,0007T) °

R-E_=F+-_A=+—H K
SHREBNERE S EHEGR
[ {E A5 #1,553,720,00070 (— Z
Z 4 #¥51,782,141,0007T))
O REBIBEERNEEE BN
EHEEFENSBIERERE S
FEERANEENEIBRE - A5t
EEHEEEE  BERKESHEENK
AHEEEREBEEREERKREFD
MBERB O E - RAREMNER
ITRERBERBERMAZEZHEEME
BERNANEE  EARKESHEER
FE SrERERERERE
IE - AHEEHRRESONERE
SREEFERRRESE - Bt -
AEENLEwRE  BRESEERK
BHEENEYNEBEBRERAANEE
BRERMAIEFLIE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

Except for amounts due from customers with
known financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection that are assessed individually, if any,
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date collectively using a provision matrix. ECL for
trade receivables and contract assets with past write
off history are based on the historical credit losses
experienced in the last 5 years. The historical loss
rates are adjusted to reflect current conditions and
estimates of future economic conditions. ECL for
trade receivables without past write off history are
measured as follows:

o Trade receivables and contract assets with
corporate credit rating — applying Moody's
credit rating or match to Moody's equivalent
credit rating to the carrying amount and loss
given default (“"LGD") or

o Trade receivables and contract assets without
corporate credit rating — applying industry
probability of default to the carrying amount
and LGD.

37 SREREE®

(b)

EERRE
BREZGREREHNEE (&)

R T BRI N EE S IR THEE L
B EFRENEE T FKIBREE
AEfE (B SN - BEDHT TR E R
SRMARERREREET - B
BEMHCENEEEZERARS
MEENBEHEEBRDEREE
IFHBRNELEEBRBL - &
EEBEXRTEHEBARRE /AR
RERREEMR A G - BBE
MR EM RN E 5 RENTAME
EEEFENT

. ABbREEFNENELE
FERBERBHEE - HRE
BRENBR(ENER])
ERBBEENRxERE
BENEEFRK
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =41~ H=1—HILFE

37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022,
the loss allowance was determined as follows for

trade receivables and contract assets:

As at 31 December 2023

37 SREREE®

(b) FERRE

EREZRBARSNEE (B
R-EBE-_=F+-_A=+—HK=
E-—F+-_A=+—8 EKE
SRENENEEZBIEREETE
R

R=-B-_=5+=-A=+—H

Collective assessment Total
el @t
Gross Expected Gross

amount Loss Rate ECL amount ECL
R AHEEE ROGEER BE EHEERE
HK$°000 % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT % BETT BETT BETT
Not past due KB H 604,776 0.00% - 604,776 -
Past due 1-30 days AH1-308 143,198 0.05% (65) 143,198 (65)
Past due 31-90 days #H31-908 55,370 0.07% (36) 55,370 (36)
Past due 91-180 days #H91-1808 23,653 3.28% (776) 23,653 (776)
Past due 181-365 days #1181-365H 6,501 15.94% (1,036) 6,501 (1,036)
Past due more than 1 year BHIBB1F 29,041 91.48% (26,566) 29,041 (26,566)
862,539 (28,479) 862,539 (28,479)

As at 31 December 2022

R-B-Z-HF+Z-A=+—H

Collective assessment Total
Fai @it
Gross Expected Gross

amount Loss Rate ECL amount ECL
g EHEEX EREEER BE  EHEEER
HK$000 % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFT % BT BEFT BEFT
Not past due N aE 10,434,729 0.12% (12,148) 10,434,729 (12,148)
Past due 1-30 days AH1-308 164,507 0.00% - 164,507 -
Past due 31-90 days #AH131-908 84,328 0.36% (302) 84,328 (302)
Past due 91-180 days #H191-1808 25,520 12.31% (3,141) 25,520 (3,141)
Past due 181-365 days #H1181-365H 31,070 64.28% (19,971) 31,070 (19,971)
Past due more than 1year AEIEHE1F 31,943 89.96% (28,737) 31,943 (28,737)
(64,299) 10,772,097 (64,299)

10,772,097
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

SRRk E )

Credit risk (continued) EERb(E)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect FANREHAEWEZSRERENEE
of trade receivables and contract assets during the MEERERE BT :
year is as follows:
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BB F T
Balance at 1 January R—A—Bz#&#% 64,299 31,196
Amounts written off during the year — F A& 58 (16,459) (773)
Amounts recovered during the year FRUE SRR (20,339) (1,843)
Impairment loss recognised during FASERREERE
the year 1,126 37,684
Exchange realignment IE i (148) (1,965)
Balance at 31 December R+—A=+—82#&% 28,479 64,299
Derivatives PTET A

The derivatives are entered into with bank and
financial institution counterparties, which are rated
Aal to A3, based on Moody's credit ratings.

Debt investments

Impairment on debt investments have been
measured on the 12-month expected loss basis and
all of the Group's debt investments measured at
amortised cost are considered to have low credit
risk. Management considers “low credit risk”
for listed bonds to be an investment grade credit
rating with at least one major rating agency. Other
instruments are considered to be low credit risk
when they have a low risk of default and the issuer
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term.

PTHETEDEETREBEERS
HFRIEBRBEEFHEN AT
EY N HRVAD

EBERE

ERRERETIR1218 A A EE
HEFTHE - MAKBEIZEHK AT
ENMBEFREGRAR/EEE
R - BEERERSLHESFOHME
FERRIREL —REBFMRH
BRRBESTR - HTARE
HmEREEAETAREHRAES
ERNBETEHNRSMEAERD
R REEERR -
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37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

208

(b)

Credit risk (continued)
Debt investments (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount
of the Group’s debt investment amounted to
HK$1,336,965,000 (2022: HK$1,410,748,000) and
the ECL on debt investment were considered
immaterial and thus the did not recognise any loss
allowance in respect thereof.

Assets held or segregated in separate accounts,
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents

These financial assets are mainly held with bank and
financial institution counterparties, which are rated
Aal to A3, based on Moody's credit ratings. The
Group uses a similar approach for assessment of
ECL for these financial assets to those used for debt
investments. Impairment on these financial assets
have been measured on the 12-month expected
loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the
exposures. The Group considers that these financial
assets have low credit risk based on the external
credit ratings of the counterparties.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of these
financial assets amounted to HK$11,651,884,000
(2022: HK$11,336,676,000) and the ECL on these
financial assets were considered immaterial and thus
the Group did not recognise any loss allowance in
respect thereof.

37

SRRk E )

(b)

EEREE)

EXRE(E)

R-_TB-_=F+-"A=+—8 -
AEBEBEERENEAEABE
1,336,965,0007c (ZE == : /&
#1,410,748,0007T) © MEBEIEKE
MIEREERBERATYTIEKXN
A b N 48 6 b RE R ] S 1B R 4 o

REVIRFHFEXDBRIEE
ERFRITEHARREEREE
FHEER
HEEMEETIZHRITL BB
BRXZUF (REBAGEETRE
A RAATEAFA - NEE AN
BUEEREENEREEBEREDN
TEBRURARBEBREN A -
ZE T REERE 1218 A B
BREERE - WRRERREH
FHA AEERR - REXZH
FESNREERFR  ZEERMEE
MEERBERIE

RZEZ=F+=—_A=+—H "
ZECHMEENEREAEARBE
11,651,884,0007C (=T = —4F : /&
#11,336,676,0007T) * Mz E % @/l
BEMNEHREEBBREEATTE
A AHAEBETERZESRE
EMRAIEIERE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
mainly comprised of amounts due from other related
parties, loans to associates and non-controlling
interests and deposit and other receivables. These
financial assets at amortised costs are generally
considered to have low credit risk. In determining
the ECL, management has taken into account the
credit ratings, historical default experience and the
financial position of the counterparties, adjusted for
factors, where applicable, that are specific to the
debtors and general economic conditions of the
industry in which the debtors operate, in estimating
the probability of default of each of these financial
assets occurring within their respective loss
assessment time horizon, as well as the loss upon
default in each case.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of
these financial assets amounted to HK$224,198,000
(2022: HK$623,774,000) and the ECL on these
financial assets were considered immaterial and
thus the Group did not recognise any loss allowance
in respect thereof.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands, subject to approval by the Company’s
Board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants.

37 2EERE

(b)

(c)

H@
EERRE
BBEALTENREMTHBEE

HEEKAGTENEMERMEEST
BRI b BERE T FRIR F? it
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BABENEZRESAREE
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e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 37
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group's non-derivative financial liabilities and
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of
the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay.

cREREE®

(c) HBELEAKE
T & 854 £ BRI HR 2 34T
ESBABRITASRABIRT
BHTHIEN - ZEEBRBRIEAL
KRUBEERE(BIENAOFE
SRS R SRR AR E
BRI E R 2 BITFI R
RALEEATEN2EREHE
%o

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

EHABBELTE
Within Total
1 year or 2-5 Over5 undiscounted Carrying
on demand years years  cash flows amount
AER

-ERFEEX  ZEIF IENLE BEREEE RAR
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BT AR

2023 b St 3
Lease liabiliies HERR 383,772 963,394 1780579 3,127,745 2,349,612
Trade and other payables ENESRERAMEMNTE 11558360 - - 11558360 11,558,360
Perpetual notes KAEE 359,587 - - 359,587 359,587
Other loans and borrowings A EFRER 3,916,886 1,475,312 17,661 5409859 5,286,691
Derivative financial instruments fTESBIA 496,693 11,089 - 507,782 507,782
16715298 2449795 1798240 20,963,333 20,062,032

2022 —ECCE
Lease liabilities HERE 396,747 999830 189633 3292912 2454226
Trade and other payables EREFRERAMENTE 21975331 107,504 - 2208283 22,082,835
Perpetual notes KAZE 358,446 = = 358,446 358,446
Other loans and borrowings AHERRER 3,857,754 1,551,830 18394 5427978 5373650
Derivative financial instruments ITESRIE 645,476 65,904 = 711,380 711,380
27233764 2725068 1914729  31,873561 30,980,537
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in equity prices,
commodity prices, interest rates and foreign
exchange rates, will affect the Group’s income, or
the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return on risk.

(d)

(i)

(ii)

Equity price risk

The Group hold listed and unlisted equity
securities which are measured at FVPL and
FVOCI totalling approximately HK$29,696,000
(2022: HK$196,996,000) (see Note 20). A
10% increase or decrease in the underlying
equity prices at the reporting date with
all other variables held constant would
have increased or decreased the Group's
profit before taxation by approximately
HK$2,970,000 (2022: HK$19,700,000).

Commodity price risk

The Group uses derivative financial
instruments such as commodity futures,
commodity option contracts, commodity
futures and commodity swaps to hedge
certain exposures. The markets used are
the London Metal Exchange (“LME") for
base metals, such as copper, lead and zinc
and aluminium, the London Bullion Market
Association ("LBMA") for gold and silver,
and the Intercontinental Exchange (“NYSE:
ICE”) and the New York Mercantile Exchange
("NYMEX").

37 tREREE®

(d)

™ 35 & B

MR EREER - BmER -
MERIMNEEXRZEHKZEANEH
WASEFEELRTABEZA
R o MGAKREEZBERERY
EHEE M ERREN RS
BHER - FEFESER LR -

(i)  REREMRE

REBFE LT RIELTR
RFEH  BARLBETA
BaitE MEAREBER
AHErmkzms L4058
#29,696,000C(— T ==
% #%196,996,0007T)
(RF3E20) - FIEEMES
RETE  HEREEER
HRE B AL N SOR A 10% 1§
3 00 SRk A AN 55 B R B AT U
R &2 970,000 (= F
—— 4 :%A%19,700,000
JL) ©

(i) EmEERRE
AREFEMNBHEESRITA
(nERPE  BREs
H - ERBERERES)
HhETERR - XHWMH
BRFALEBERSAH(LME)])
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37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 37 S EERER @

(d)  Market risk (continued) (d) ™WERREGE)
(i)  Commodity price risk (continued) (i) AEBEREEE)
The following table presents the quantities by TEREVZEmOBEZH
commodity, to which the Group is exposed 2 ERPAKEERERE
to commodity price risk. Base metals, such KRR -  EAXE B (iR -
as copper, lead and zinc are shown as, metric i R EE IR AN (AN 25
tons (mt), precious metals such as gold and mE®E(ESMAR K
silver are shown as ounces (oz) and gasoil is HR(BRDET - TR
shown as barrels (BBL). (B 2% -
Copper Lead Zinc Gold Silver  Aluminium
# h & X B E
mt mt mt 0z 0z mt

A A A &3 &8 A

2023 ~%-=k
(ross exposure Bk 68,367 107 7284 58442 861,046 10,310
Hedges EHRE (68,225) (100) (73000  (58370)  (858,008)  (10,350)
Net exposure FER 142 7 (16) 72 3,038 (40)
Copper Lead Zinc Gold Silver  Aluminium
i i 22 % SEE i
mt mt mt 0z 0z mt
A A A &a] El A
2022 —E_C_F
Gross exposure BE ke 10,499 33 19,685 98861 543,098 =
Hedges EHRE (10,800) (150)  (19,575)  (99,028)  (546,089) =
Net exposure FERE (301) (117) 10 (167)  (2,991) -
Exposure to commodity prices is mostly EmERERZEETET
covered by derivatives and therefore, BEEE . At mEERE
changes in market prices are not expected BRI TR HANEE B
to significantly impact the Group's financial FAENERATE - BESD
performance. Changes in weight and content BEEksE 28 aeH
of the metals within the concentrates can REBE 2 MBRIBEK T
impact the Group’s financial performance. 2.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Market risk (continued)

(iii)

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily
from loans and borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates and at fixed rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk
respectively. The Group may also enters into
interest rate swap to hedge its interest rate
risk if necessary.

The interest rate profile of the Group's loans
and borrowings is disclosed in Note 28.

At 31 December 2023, it is estimated that
a general increase or decrease of 100 basis
points in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would have increased or
decreased the Group's profit before taxation
by approximately HK$41,250,000 (2022:
HK$45,933,000). This sensitivity analysis
excludes the impact from cash and bank
balances as the management considers the
impact to be insignificant having regard to
the stable trend in interest rates and thus no
material fluctuation is anticipated in the near
future.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's profit
before taxation that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk at
the end of the reporting period. In respect
of the exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk arising from floating rate non-derivative
instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period, the impact on the
Group's profit before taxation is estimated
as an annualised impact on interest expense
or income of such a change in interest rates.
The analysis is performed on the same basis
as 2022.

37 tREREE®
(d) iSRRG

(iii)
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AR B FE 28 BE -
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B - E R R — I8 ISR
D100 XS - MEMABE
A EARERTE ZBER
T - NEBEBRT AR F A5 38
s A #)78# 41,250,000
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45,933,0007T) ° I RKE
DITHEBR IR RIRTTHETF 2
FE RRAATEELEEZEE
FMEZREBEEREEH
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ ~F =41~ H =1 —HILF &

37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d)

Market risk (continued)

(iv)

Currency risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign currency risks arising from
various currency exposures. Where possible,
the Group seeks to minimise its foreign
currency exposure in operations by matching
its exposure to foreign currency receivables
to its exposure to foreign currency payables.
The Group may also explore using derivatives
to hedge its foreign exchange risk.

The Group seeks to minimise its foreign
currency exposures in foreign subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures by repatriating
their earnings, where practicable. The
Group also requires the foreign subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures to maintain their
borrowings in the relevant foreign currencies
which match their respective functional
currencies.

In respect of the other monetary assets and
liabilities held in currencies other than the
functional currencies, the Group reviews
the balances periodically to ensure the net
exposure is kept at an acceptable level.

37

cREREE®

(d)

i &Lk ()
(iv] E¥mEpE

AEBMEDIREE  ERK
BZRBE%E R MNER
@ A REZIBRT - A%
%] 5 5K 8 5 EL 7R Y S BE R
Bex B & A< 1 BE L PR AR - 2R
ERDHEREETR ZINER
& o AEMENAERAITE
T REEPINERR

AEBSKEANTZER
T EBRACEINGE R
A BERRREEREZ
&ax - BERDEBERZIN
P - NEBIRERKEIN
MEAR  BEARREE
CERRFEERZHEBE
BRERETEZIEEE—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 37 S EERERE @)

(d)  Market risk (continued) (d) ™WERREGE)
(iv)  Currency risk (continued) (iv)] E¥mEpg(E)
The Group's significant exposures to foreign REBEREFELEEBZ
currencies from its continuing operations are FEINEREIAT ¢
as follows:

Singapore  Peruvian
US Dollar Dollar Sol  Renminbi Euro
En  FEr WEERH AR BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
BT  BEFT  EBEFrT  BETT  BEFr

2023 —BI=f
Trade and other EWE SRR

receivables H it I FRIE 469,846 124,447 39,760 1,089,391 12,428
Cash and cash RekBeSE

equivalents JHH 397,071 16,117 1,830 2,456 65,264
Trade and other ENEZRER

payables Hit BT 508 (355,611)  (598,466) (618) (1,038,594 (7,845)
Loans and borrowings B R {EH (55,430)  (531,916) - - -
Tax recoverable AREIFIE - - 9,946 - -
Current tax payables ~ [EfTENEIRIE - (20,782) (2,987) - -
Net exposure arising CERZEER

from recognised BEMEEZ

assets and RkFE

liabilities 455,876  (1,010,600) 47,931 53,253 69,847
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 37 S @EMRERE @)

(d)  Market risk (continued) (d) ™WERREGE)
(iv)  Currency risk (continued) (iv)] E¥EpEE)
US  Singapore Peruvian
Dollar Dollar Sol Renminbi Euro
XL WNET  WERS AR BT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT  BETFT  EMTrT BEFr  BEFT
2022 —E--F
Trade and other EWEFRIER
receivables H it RURIR 6,453,454 72,827 38,900 = 12,358
Cash and cash RAekBReEE
equivalents 15H 476,192 92,780 1,210 31,654 62,409
Trade and other BB SEER
payables H A fE R 3B (6,543,155)  (524,609) (1,059) (50) (15,101)
Loans and ERRER
borrowings (55,282) (526,722) (4,427) - -
Tax recoverable ARETIE = = 9,238 = =
Current tax payables ~ [E{TENEARIE - (5,556) (1,803) - -
Gross exposure ERAEER
arising from EEMEEZ
recognised ek
assets
and liabilities 331,209 (891,280) 42,059 31,604 59,666
Forward exchange BREIMNER D
contracts - - - - (37,571)
Net exposure FEB 331209 (891280 42,059 31,604 22,095
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e M RER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 37 S EERERE @)

(d)  Market risk (continued) (d) ™WERREGE)
(iv)  Currency risk (continued) (iv)] E¥EpEE)

Sensitivity analysis BREE T

A 10% strengthening of the functional RFEBH  ARFINBA
currencies of the Company’s subsidiaries RIZINEEE B K AT EE T
against the following currencies at the B10%KBE T XFIREE
reporting date would positively/(negatively) AEERBATLEEFEEN
impact the Group's operating result before FE/(BE)FE - &AM
taxation by the amounts shown below. This BREFMBEMEE(LERE
analysis assumes that all other variables, in F ) M5 T o

particular interest rates, remain constant.

2023 2022
—E=-= —E-
HK$’000 HK$'000
B FT Vet v
US Dollar ETT 45,588 33,121
Singapore Dollar s oo (101,060) (89,128)
Peruvian Sol WERR 4,793 4,206
Renminbi AR & 5,325 3,160
Euro BT 6,985 2,210
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e UMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =41~ H=1—HILFE

37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 37 S EERER @

(e)  Fair values (e) 2AAEE
(i) Fair value hierarchy (i) AREEER
The table below analyse fair value measurements TERANMRMERARIZEE
for financial assets and financial liabilities MEESNESHEERSH
measured at the end of the reporting period BEZAREBEMNE  RE
on a recurring basis, by the levels in the fair HMEFTEZBASEE S 2
value hierarchy based on the inputs to valuation DREBEBHKFEZY -
techniques.
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

& E=R E=H st
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
EBRFr EBETr EETT  EETR

Financial assets and liabilities BRAREBEIRZEHEE

carried at fair value kA&
2023 —B-c=E
Interest rate swaps Fl&iE 5 - 5,299 - 5,299
Commodities futures BmiE 225,910 38,924 - 264,834
Commaodities forward contracts EmEHAH 9,153 231 - 9,384
Capital return notes BEARREE - 17,048 - 17,048
Derivative financial assets TEERmEE 235,063 61,502 - 296,565
Trade receivables containing PEERTERINERE
provisional pricing features L - 1,553,720 - 1,553,720
Other financial assets HitepgeE 788 2,457 27,990 31,235
235,851 1,617,679 27,990 1,881,520
Commodities futures EmiE (349,232)  (154,251) - (503,483)
Commodities forward contracts EREHAL (24) - - (24)
Commodities options 7 fn - (3,742) - (3,742)
Currency forward contracts ERRBAN - (533) - (533)
Derivative financial liabilities fTEemBE (349,256)  (158,526) - (507,782)
Trade payables containing AEERTERENENE
provisional pricing features SEE - (1,086,671) - (1,086,671)
(349,256) (1,245,197) - (1,594,453)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 37 <REAMEE®)

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities not carried at fair value
are not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

(e)  Fair values (continued) (e) 2REEE
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (i) AREEERE)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—8 E-R F=H et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BEFT BETT  EMFT  BETrn
Financial assets and liabilities BRAREBEIRZEHEE
carried at fair value kA&
2022 —EC-CF
Interest rate swaps Fl&iE 5 = 7,708 = 7,708
Commodities futures BmiE 522,516 105,648 - 628,164
Commodities forward contracts EmEHAH 128 686 = 814
Commodities options i m HE - 506 = 506
Currency forward contracts ERRBAH = 413 = 413
Derivative financial assets THEEmEE 522,644 114,961 - 637,605
Trade receivables containing DEEREEREMEKE
provisional pricing features 5ER - 1,782,141 - 1,782,141
Other financial assets HindmiE 1,844 256 196,426 198,526
524,488 1,897,358 196,426 2,618,272
Commodities futures B E (453,651)  (230,010) - (683,661)
Commodities forward contracts ARERBEH (105) - - (105)
Commodities options 75 fn A - (26,812) - (26,812)
Currency forward contracts ERRHAH - (802) - (802)
Derivative financial liabilities TEemaE (453,756)  (257,624) - (711,380)
Trade payables containing BEERTERBNERNE
provisional pricing features KB - (1,036,079) - (1,036,079)
(453,756)  (1,293,703) = (1,747,459

RZEBE_=FK_FT__
+ZA=+—H ' AEBEW
FIEARBEIEZCEME
EFABZEREEHEAR
BETESEAZE -
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e UMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =41~ H=1—HILFE

37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 37 S EERER @

(e)  Fair values (continued) (e) 2AAEBE®E
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (i) [AEBEERE)
The following table shows the carrying TRINTEREECHMEEZ
amounts and fair values of significant non- REEEAAEE BFE
financial assets, including their levels in the RARBEERY 2KFE -

fair value hierarchy.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£—4 E-4 E=h st

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BMTr  ERTrT  ERTr  EETx

Non-financial assets measured at X AR BEFEZ

fair value FEWEE
2023 —E-=%
Commodity inventories where the ~ ANEEEF &40
Group acts as a broker-trader ROBIEREE - 2,331,980 - 2,331,980
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—1% E-8 E=R 4at

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ERTT  BETT  EETT  EETIL

Non-financial assets measured at RAABENEZ

fair value FeRMEE
2022 St -3
Commodity inventories where the AN BEIE(T &40
Group acts as a broker-trader RHBLEmEE - 1,200,592 - 1,200,592
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37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 37

(e) Fair values (continued

(ii)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

SRRk E )

(e) RDREEGE

Measurement of fair value (i) AAEBHEE
The following tables show the valuation TRINTFERZTZ=F
techniques used in measuring Level 2 and +ZA=+—HBEREH
Level 3 fair values of assets with material CEEZE_BRE=FA
balance at 31 December 2023 as well as R EERERZEETENR
the significant unobservable inputs used (if MFERZEXTAIERE A
applicable). 2R -
Inter-relationship
between key
unohservable
Significant inputs and fair
Type Valuation technique unobservable inputs  value measurement
IZTAREGA
HERAARE
52 #ER%E EXTUBRRARE EzHzEDBE
Interest rate swaps Market comparison technique: Not applicable Not applicable
FlsE &R - HER TNER
The fair values are based on market value (MTM value)
provided by the bank.
MAREDNEARE MEARE
Commodities futures, options and Market comparison technique: Not applicable Not applicable
forward contracts BRUEREE: TER iR
BREE  BEREHAN The fair values are based on month end spot and
forward prices received from broker.
MABEMMEEARE ARRERAEBRAEE -
Capital retum notes Market comparison technique: Not applicable Not applicable
UNEk &R - TER TER

The fair values are provided by investment bank which
is calculated with reference to the market value and
volatility of the underlyings written in the capital
retum notes.

MEEIRERASZEARRR BT RHNET
AETERREHENG -
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e M |RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 37

(e) Fair values (continued

< B B B ()

(e) RDREEGE

(i)  Measurement of fair value (continued) (i) AAEEEGE)
Inter-relationship
between key
unobservable

Significant inputs and fair
Type Level  Valuation technique unobservable inputs  value measurement
IEFTREEA
HERAAEE
L1 BR  fhERE EXTABRBARE HE B EBRE
Trade receivables and payables 2 Market comparison technique: Not applicable Not applicable
containing provisional pricing TRUREE: oyl AR
features The fair values are based on month end spot and
RRERTERFHZEN forward prices, until prices are fixed for metals
RENESEE for weights and content of metals basis third party
inspections/certificates (if applicable).
MBEDNARRERARERARE -
BESBEENASNERENE=TRE /B2
(&R FAER «
Inventories where the Group acts 2 Market comparison technigue: Not applicable Not applicable
as a broker -trader TERER%: TER NER
AEEEMARRSE ERRE The fair values are based on quoted prices of contracts
of similar products obtained from exchanges and
market data providers adjusted for forward market
assessment of premiumydiscount associated with
the inventory.
ArBEDNERSHRTSEEREERGNENER
ANMBEARE - UHEFLTEENEE/ TR
R EIELEE -
Other financial assets 3 Net asset value technique: Income growth rate and  Increase/decrease in
- unlisted equity securities BEFEIETE: discount rate income growth rate
measured at FVPL The fair values are based on the fair value of the WABREREER & would result in
A S REE - RALEEIARS underlying property using income capitalization hased increase/decrease in
SEMELARAES on a discounted cash flow model. fair value.
ArBEDNERERRS RERYERUAEAL WABREEN/ D
HERBEMEN A BERER BERLARE
2/ wp -

There were no transfers between Level
1, level 2 or level 3 in the reporting and
comparative period.

RS BB - F—
B FoREE =R ZEL
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37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(e)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

Fair values (continued)

(iii)

Offsetting financial assets and liabilities

37 SREREE®
(e) AABEE®E
(i) HELHEERERE

Gross
amounts  Net amounts
of recognised of financial
financial assets/
assets/ liabilities
Gross liabilities presented
amounts  offset in the in the
of recognised  consolidated  consolidated
financial ~ statement of statement
assets/ financial of financial
liabilities position position  Net amount
REERE  REERE
HAREH2 RRREGZ
BRASE CRAcR  emEE/
LE/BROE HE/8RLEE BETH B
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
BRI BETT BETT BETT
2023 ===
Type of financial assets SREERER
Derivatives PTHEIA 2,323,251 (2,026,692) 296,565 296,565
Type of financial liabilities A= -REEEic)
Derivatives PTHEIA 2,534,474 (2,026,692) 507,782 507,782
2022 =—2-=
Type of financial assets SREERR
Derivatives PTET AR 4,641,304 (4,003,699) 637,605 637,605
Type of financial liabilities cRIEERR
Derivatives PTETA 4,715,079 (4,003,699) 711,380 711,380
223
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e UMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~ % ~ =41~ H =1—HILFE

38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38 BHAIRS
Apart from the disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated BERE T BRREMIBOAFEESEIN - &
financial statements, the Group has the following related SECBEBMARSHIT

party transactions:

(a) Income (a) WA
2023 2022
—EB-= —F -
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT B F T
Sales of goods and/or services to MESHEER ERHEES
entities in which directors have an & RS
interest 46,770 62,128
Sales of goods and/or services to Mg R EIHEE MR, X
associates il 65,517 108,190
Sales of goods and/or services to joint A& S EEEER N &
ventures AR 7% 40,755 84,519
Dividend received from associates REEE AR ZRE 64,408 89,797
Dividend received from joint ventures REAZEZKRE 4,399 20,662
(b) Expense (b) BX
2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Purchase of goods and/or services MESHEERCERBEE
from entities in which directors B@ kSR
have an interest 16,582 23,875
Purchase of goods and/or services mEEARBEER LK
from associates Pk 75 21,839 42,262
Purchase of goods and/or services MEETEREERKL
from joint ventures AR 7% 28,520 80,299
Interest expense to connected parties  [A] B838 77 B F BB % (A7 22)
(Note) 35,800 35,963
Note: Hiat -
Connected parties refer to affiliates of the Trust. MRERIEZETHEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 38 FBAEEA R B (4

() Compensation of key management (c) EFEEBAEZME
personnel
The remuneration of key management members, FEEBAEBEIARRBES)HR
who are the directors of the Company are set out in MIEETT ©
note 11.

The remuneration of directors is determined by EEehFMEESRBARE
the remuneration committee having regard to the NGB eETE -
performance of individuals and market trends.

(d) Details of balances with related parties of the (d) HBEAEBEEHAIEHEZERTES
Group are set out in Notes 22, 23 and 26 to the BIE AR A SR :E22 23 %
consolidated financial statements respectively. 26 °©

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39 AQATTIEMEAT TS

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 AR TFEWNBATIR-_ZE_=FF_F

December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: ZZE+ZAZ+—HRZERHT

Issued and The Group's effective
Place/ fully paid interest over nominal
country of Principal share capital/  value of issued share capital/
incorporation/  place of registered registered capital
Name of subsidiary registration operation capital held by the Company Principal activities
ARERADRFRE
HMAL/ BEARARRA/ BRTRE/
WEARER HMbE /AR IEEERY aZEx  EMEAEECEREE 2 TELERH
2023 2022
“E-ZE ZZEC-CF
% %
CWT Pte. Limited ("CWT SG") Singapore Singapore 600,304,650 100 100 Investment holding &
Mg IR shares of management, warehousing
5$174,338,331 services, project logistics
174,338 3315 MK T2 management & services
600,304, 6508k A REBRRER  2BRE -
BEMRER kRS
CWT Commodities (Antwerp) N.V.  Belgium Belgium 63,663 shares of 100 100 Provision of commodity
[ bl EUR5,093,040 warehousing, logistics,
5,093,04081 T2 transportation and
63,663 AR forwarding services
REBRER R EBER
KBRS
CWT Sitos B.V. The Netherlands ~ The Netherlands 620,000 shares of 100 100 Investment holding & provision
i i EUR620,000 of commodity
620,008 2 warehousing services
620,0008% 15 REZRRRHARARRS
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39.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

39 ARRFFEMBLATZFE@®

Issued and The Group's effective
Place/ fully paid interest over nominal
country of Principal share capital/  value of issued share capital/
incorporation/  place of registered registered capital
Name of subsidiary registration operation capital held by the Company Principal activities
FEEREARFRE
HEMERL,/ BEARARRAE/ BETRE/
WEAR R HMes /AR TEEEHY aMER  HEMEAEEzERERE < TELEXR
2023 2022
“B-ZE  ZEC-CF
% %
CWT Commodity Logistics (UK) Ltd  United Kingdom  United Kingdom 10,527 shares of 100 100 Provision of commodity
5E 2E GBP10,527 warehousing, transportation
105275882 and forwarding services
10,5278 %13 REBRAR BRRAR
k%
CWT Commodities (Amsterdam) BV The Netherlands  The Netherlands 18,000 shares of 100 100 Provision of commodity
Gl HHE EUR18,000 warehousing, transportation
18,000817T.2 and forwarding services
18,000 %153 REBRAR  BRRAR
%
CWT Anadolu Lojistik AS Turkey Turkey 7,670,350 shares of 90 90  Provision of commodity
1EH 1EHE TRY7,670,350 warehousing, transportation
7,670,350t EEBH 2 and forwarding services
7,670,360 %13 REBmAR  BRRAR
R
CWT Globelink Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore 800,000 shares of 100 100 Provision of cargo
g I $$800,000 consolidation and sea freight
800,003 MK TT.L forwarding services
800,008 & 17 RESNHERIMERBRE
MRI Trading AG Switzerland Switzerland 115,933 shares of 100 100 Physical trading and supply
BT i CHF1,159,330 chain management of
1,159,3305 T 2 non-ferrous base metal
15,9338 & 17 concentrates
BERGBREBIENRS
RftEBEER
Straits Financial Services Pte. Ltd.  Singapore Singapore 30,000,000 shares of 974 974 Toact as brokers for trading in
g AN UUS$30,000,000 futures contracts and
30,000,000% T2 centrally-cleared OTC
30,000,008 15 commodity derivatives

RESERNRANETEE
MENLAEMITEm
Mk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MIHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39 AQFRETEMBATRZFHFE®
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(continued)
Issued and The Group's effective
Place/ fully paid interest over nominal
country of Principal share capital/  value of issued share capital/
incorporation/  place of registered registered capital
Name of subsidiary registration operation capital held by the Company Principal activities
FRERADAFBE
HRRL/ BEARARRAE/ BETRE/
WEAREHE HMes /AR TEEEHY aMER  HEMEAEEzERERE < TELEXR
2023 2022
“B-zE  ZEC-CEF
% %
Straits Financial LLC USA USA 33,000,000 shares of 98,5 985 Provision of financial brokerage
XH X UUS$33,000,000 services
33,000,000% T2 RESRLLRE
33,000,0008% 1
Indeco Engineers (Pte) Ltd Singapore Singapore 6,000,146 shares of 100 100 Engineering maintenance
IR AT $$20,600,580 services, design & building
20,600,580%7 1% L2 services for industrial
6,000, 146R% 13 properties, facilities
management and special
trade services
TRRERE  TENERH
MRS XBERR
BHE SHR%
Save as disclosed in Note 27, none of the other subsidiaries BRETEI27ATIBEE SN BE_T-=F R

had issued any debt securities for the years ended 31

December 2023 and 2022.

RS+ R=+—RHILFE  HE
H B A RBETEREEES
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40

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

40 ARARFBRREKRIEE

2023 2022
—E-= -
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB K& 256 384
Right-of-use assets EREEE 3,160 5,192
Interests in subsidiaries BB AR Z = 4,049,351 4,124,443
4,052,767 4,130,019
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TERIE -~ e REAMERGRIE
receivables 1,681 2,329
Bank balances and cash RTHEGFE MRS 48,286 11,697
49,967 14,026
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables, deposits received and H AR FRIE - EWRS RIER
accruals THH 32,425 32,606
Lease liabilities HEaE 3,201 2,584
Amount due to a related company JE A B HE A B RIE 473 381
Amount due to subsidiaries FEfT I B A =) A 37,578 37,003
73,677 72,574
Net current liabilities REBREFE (23,710) (58,548)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RER M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

40 AATFHBARRTREHE@®

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BEMTF T
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERABERS 4,029,057 4,071,471
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Borrowings B 716,000 716,000
Lease liabilities HERE 286 3,105
716,286 719,105
Net assets EEFE 3,312,771 3,352,366
Capital and reserves BARG#EE
Share capital (%N 4,731,480 4,731,480
Reserves 1 (1,418,709) (1,379,114)
Equity attributable to owners of the RARFEEAELER
Company 3,312,771 3,352,366

The Company’'s statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 27 March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wang Kan
X/
DIRECTOR
EF

Zhao Quan

HitE

DIRECTOR

EFE

KRB ZHMBHRARENR _E_NF=A
“ttEESEse i ERBETE > WH

THEEREREE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ ~F =41~ H =1 —HILF &

41

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS TO
HKFRS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2023

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRS,
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2023 and have not been adopted in these consolidated
financial statements. These developments include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

41

BE-—E-=fF+=-H=1+—
AIEFEEEFERRERZ
ERNKBREEIMET R 2B
g
HEZSYBERREMAE - B S
AREEEMEERBE_T_=F1+_H
T —BIEFERARERE HARRZEZL
B BmERPERMN 2 BBUERE LR
BRI - ZEREBREAEAEEEH
AT &IE ©

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RTIBEHEZ%

B 2 Bt AN

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
BEMBHRELNE16KERIA) ERHELOXSHHERRE

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

BREHENFIRIERR) - KRED BB RBAIFREREEZFEFLIE (20209F) 2

HHEIEET

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

ARG EUFIRIETRN) - WHERFLNIERE R E

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements
BRI ERETRREENBWMELNET RSN - HEHHELH

Amendments to HKAS 12 Lack of Exchangeability
ERGFERIFE125RUEFTAR) - 5o AT 4

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

1 January 2024
—E_mMFE—-HF—H

1 January 2024
—F-FE—H—H
1 January 2024
—E-OF—A—H

1 January 2024
—E_MFE—H—H

1 January 2025
—E-hAF—A—H

A B AT S 3T AR B R e B £
CHEMPE - HEAMAL  ARERA
RS ETRTA T G YA BB
REEBARE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 # £ —~F ~ =4~ H =1 —HILFE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 8 January 2024, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Group agreed
to acquire 30% equity interest of Globelink Uniexco,
S.L., a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
incorporated in Spain, from the non-controlling shareholders
at a consideration of EUR4,800,000 (approximately
HK$41,409,000). Upon completion of the acquisition, the
Group will have 86% equity interest in Globelink Uniexco,
S.L. and the change in shareholding will be accounted for
as an equity transaction.

42

WREHREE
RZZE-_MF—ANH ' A&EBEEFYEE
ek - B - AEEREMIEERRRE K
BARRNARFEMALNIEEZENE
‘A AGlobelink Uniexco, S.L.HJ30% A& #E
A& A&4,800,0008 T (4175 ¥41,409,000
J0) o WEETERK 1%+ NS % 5 Globelink
Uniexco, S.L. 86% /A% - M AXHE & Eh 15
ABRSIERR IR 5 ©
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LEMBRE

RESULTS E3

For the years ended 31 December

BE+-RA=1t-HLEE

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
—TNF —TEF —T-—F —E-—& —E-=&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

EETT EETT BT BETT AT

(Loss)/profit attributable to:  FE{5 (B548) %A :

Owners of the Company RATHEAA (597,557) 41,465 208,905 163,213 39,093
Non-controlling interests AR 46,255 26,843 80,454 101,876 40,101
(551,302) 68,308 289,359 255,089 79,194

(Loss)/earnings per share Sk (ER) B

Basic (HK cents) EARCENM) (5.24) 0.36 1.83 1.34 0.34

Diluted (HK cents) B8 O5) (5.24) 0.36 1.83 1.34 0.34
Dividends f% 8 - - - - -
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BE - BERFEERES

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

As at 31 December

W+=A=+-H
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
“T-NF “T-FF - Sabk:3 —T-CF —BCZZF
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT BETFT

Total assets wEE 24,020,577 24,915,974 24,934,882 36,504,465 25,438,229
Total liabilities BEE (19,399,586)  (20,417,616)  (20,211,573)  (31,673,263) (20,640,067
4,620,991 4,498,358 4,723,309 4,831,202 4,798,162

Equity attributable to owners of 7K Al B AFE(G

the Company W 4,166,882 4,367,648 4,537,861 4,630,000 4,671,281
Non-controlling interests IEFEREAE = 454,109 130,710 185,448 201,202 126,881
4,620,991 4,498,358 4,723,309 4,831,202 4,798,162
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CWT International Limited

Suites 1101-3 & 12, 11th Floor, Tower 2, The Gateway,
Harbour City, Kowloon, Hong Kong

FBNERDEEEH
BEAE=E11#1101-3 & 12F

www.cwtinternational.com
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